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CORPORATE MISSION
DA

Backed by an established corporate track record, technological excellence and strong
mergers and acquisitions capabilities, SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. envisages itself as a
leading operator and investor in the environment industry in the People’'s Republic of China
by adhering to the development model of integrating industry and finance. In the pursuit of
company growth, we remain committed to protecting the planet, conserving the environment
and preserving natural resources
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SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (“SIIC Environment”, stock code: BHK.SG, 807.HK) is a top-
tier integrated player in China's water and environmental markets. It is engaged in wastewater
treatment, water supply, sludge treatment, solid waste incineration and other environment
related businesses. Headquartered in Singapore and listed on the Mainboard of SGX-ST, the
Company successfully launched on the Mainboard of SEHK in 2018. Being the controlling
shareholder of SIIC Environment, Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL", SEHK
stock code: 363.HK) was established in 1996, with infrastructure, real estate and consumer
products as the core businesses. China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection
Group (“CECEP"), an important strategic investor of the Company, is a state-owned enterprise
mainly engaged in energy conservation and environmental protection, which was reorganized
and established in 2010 with the approval of the State Council. SIIC Environment has shown
tremendous growth and continued to increase its market share in China’'s environmental
market.

SIIC Environment is an active investor and operator in the environmental protection
industry, with an operating history of more than 15 years in China. Currently, it boasts an
overall portfolio of about 250 wastewater treatment and water supply projects, solid waste
incineration projects and sludge treatment projects across 20 provinces, municipalities,
autonomous regions and special administrative region in China, namely Shandong,
Guangdong, Hubei, Hunan, Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Jiangxi, Anhui, Fujian, Guangxi,
Ningxia, Henan, Liaoning, Inner Mongolia, Shanxi, Sichuan, Jilin, Heilongjiang and Macau
Special Administrative Region.

Leveraging on the Group's distinctive strategic positioning and business model, SIIC
Environment will continue to expand its business in water and solid waste treatment
and proactively explore opportunities in other environmental-related markets such as
industrial wastewater treatment, seawater desalination, sludge treatment and disposal, soil
remediation,-renewable energy, water treatment technology and pollution-prevention. The
is committed to expandmg its market share, increasing its scale and efficiency, and
consolldatmg? dmg pasrt-rorr in China’s waeran envmn nenlakprotg
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BUSINESS STRUCTURE
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Water Treatment and Supply
KR

Central (Wuhan Business Unit)
E (RED )

South (Nanfang Business Unit)
Z¥ (BH2H)

North (Shandong Business Unit)
ZE (ILWRD )

Northeast (Longjiang Business Unit)
Rt (FEI2H)

East (Fudan Business Unit)
ZR (BE2H)

Ranhill (Industrial Wastewater Business Unit)
B (TH5K5H)

Waste Incineration
EREEE
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OVERVIEW OF MAJOR PROJECTS

FEFER-8§
Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special
Business  administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
s/ EED/
BaR/
5% pE FRlITHE R ERER AERE () b
1 Ranhill Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Nanchang Xiaolan Economic Development Zone WWTP WWT 50,000 60.0%
Project 2nd Phase
BE i} IEEE/ N ERERERTKEER (ZH)ER KR
2 Nanfang  Guangdong Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center 1st and 2nd Phases and the WWT 200,000 100.0%
Advanced Treatment Project
2] ER EMTIEHREF RO — B RAERETIRER AR
3 Nanfang Guangdong Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center Project 3rd Phase WWT 100,000 100.0%
(2] BER BMNTIEIKE R R O =B IRER KRR
4 Nanfang Guangdong Pinghu WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 55,000 100.0%
2] ER THakEEmERER KRR
5 Nanfang Guangdong Pudixia WWTP Project WWT 50,000 100.0%
£ BEX 5 K RIERIEE HKERE
6 Nanfang Guangdong Egongling WWTP Project WWT 50,000 100.0%
(2] BER BrBTKEERER KRR
7 Nanfang Guangdong Henggang WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 100,000 100.0%
2] ER BEkEER_HEE KRR
8 Nanfang ~ Macau Macau Taipa WWTP 0&M Project WWT 69,000 60.0%
#h il BRI KEERETECEE HKERE
9 Nanfang Guangxi Beihai Hongkan WWTP Project WWT 200,000 90.0%
(2] i BRIk R E R KRR
10 Nanfang Hunan Chenzhou City WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 80,000 100.0%
2] il WM TS KRR —HEE KRR
11 Nanfang Hunan Chenzhou City Second and Fourth WWTP Projects WWT 160,000 100.0%
BA e WNTE=  MWaKER R EEE AR
12 Shandong  Guangdong Dongguan City Dalang Songshanhu Southern WWTP Project WWT 100,000 75.5%
1) BER RET ARSI LA 5K RIE A B K2
13 Shandong  Guangdong Dongguan City Shijie Shayao WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 60,000 75.5%
& BEx REmARESESKEER—BIRER KRR
14 Shandong  Guangdong Dongguan City Fenggang Yantian WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 75.5%
T ER REmEEERSKEER_HER KRR
15 Shandong  Liaoning Dalian Quanshui River WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 105,000 75.5%
113 BE REFASREIER (ZH8) BR KRR
16 Shandong  Liaoning Dalian Lingshui River WWTP Project WWT 60,000 86.5%
& EE R#EEKTFKEEBER RN 3L
17 Shandong  Liaoning Dalian Laohutan WWTP Project WWT 80,000 75.5%
T EE REZFESKEERIER AR
18 Shandong  Shandong Dezhou City WWTP Project WWT 100,000 75.5%
113 1= BNk EIERIE B KR
19 Shandong  Shandong Weifang High Technology Industrial Development District WWTP Project WWT 100,000 75.5%
& & B R RMEERERSKEERER KRR
20 Shandong  Shandong Weifang City WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 200,000 75.5%
T HLE HHTIKRERERRIER AR
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Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special

Business  administrative Daily Capacity Effective

No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests

&/ EEM/
BaR /

Fik o AT R BRER AEsE () b

21 Shandong  Shandong Weifang City Shawo WWTP Resumption and Upgrading Project 1st Phase WWT 60,000 75.5%
1) iz WM B S KEERIERAESEE -5 BN BE

22 Shandong  Shanghai Qingpu Second WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT 60,000 87.8%
HE L8 BRETKRERER=H N BE

23 Shandong  Shanghai Qingpu Second WWTP Project 4th Phase (Expansion) WWT 60,000 87.8%
R LA BRE KB ERER BELE HKEE

24 Fudan Guangdong Dongguan City Chang'an Sanzhou BOT Project 1st and 2nd Phases WWT 150,000 35.5%
g8 ER REmEZ = MBOT— ZHEE BN BE

25 Fudan Henan Nanyang City Baihenan WWTP Project WWT 100,000 69.1%
Az A BlEmaTESKEERLRE N BE

26 Fudan Hubei Suizhou City Cheng Nan WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 92.2%
(4E isihi BN kR ER— SRR HKEE

27 Fudan Jiangsu Wuxi Huishan Economic Development Zone WWTP Project WWT 100,000 50.8%
g8 LE mHTELLERERESKEEER BN BE

28 Fudan Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project WWT 100,000 92.2%
Az L8 SRS S KEERIEE N BE

29 Fudan Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project 2nd Phase (Expansion) WWT 50,000 92.2%
(EAE] LA EERNTKEER - HERIER KRR

30 Fudan Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project 3rd Phase (Expansion) WWT 50,000 92.2%
g8 A ZERNSKRER=HERER BN BE

31 Fudan Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Water Purification Plant Project 1st Phase Batch 1 WWT 60,000 69.1%
Az T Rk (NER) KEFCBE—HEE -t N BE

32 Fudan Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Water Purification Plant Project 1st Phase Batch 2 WWT 60,000 69.1%
g8 L Rk (NER) KEFCB—HER 8t KRR

33 Fudan Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Municipal WWTP Project 3rd Phase (Upgrade and WWT 75,000 69.1%

Reconstruction)

(142 ipan Rk CNER) BT KR RR RIS E = TR KRR

34 Fudan Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Municipal WWTP Expansion Project 3rd Phase WWT 50,000 69.1%

Second Stage (Upgrade and Reconstruction)

(EAE] iipan Ak CNER) B TKEERREEGE =S (R R TR KRR

35 Fudan Zhgjiang Ningbo Hangzhouwan New District WWTP Project 1st Phase (Expansion) WWT 60,000 64.5%
g8 T ERMNENRSKEER—REETR BN BE

36 Fudan Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern WWTP Project 3rd Phase first stage WWT 80,000 92.2%
Az ipan THmRAAKEERIEE =B N BE

37 Fudan Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern Preprocess Treatment Project WWT 50,000 92.2%
(4E piipan THmRAEKEEREREER HKEE

38 Fudan Zhgjiang Tiantai County WWTP Project WWT 80,000 100.0%
g8 T A EM KRB R BN BE

39 Wuhan Hubei Huangshi City Cihu WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 125,000 75.3%
HiE iihig EAMETKERR - HIRER N BE

40 Wuhan Hubei Hanxi WWTP Project WWT 400,000 80.0%
HiE isihi ERSKEEREE HKEE
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OVERVIEW OF MAJOR PROJECTS

FEFER-8§
Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special
Business  administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
s/ EED/
BaR/
5% pE FRlITHE R ERER AERE () b
4 Wuhan Hubei Hanxi WWTP Expansion Project WWT 200,000 80.0%
B 0ible Bl KEERRERTRZER EKEE
42 Wuhan Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Panlongcheng WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 55,000 100.0%
HE ibg ORI &S AR RSk R — A KRR
43 Wuhan Ningxia Yinchuan City Fifth WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 100.0%
HE ER BINTERTKEER—HER TAKEIE
44 Wuhan Ningxia Yinchuan City Fifth WWTP Project 2nd Phase (Expansion, Upgrade and WWT 50,000 100.0%
Reconstruction)
HE EE )T ER)KEER - fEE RPESUEER KRR
45 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Acheng WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%
B BEIL BT 3535 7K B — EKEE
46 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Acheng WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%
B BRI Bl 3585 K e — 5 AR
47 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Pingfang WWTP Project WWT 150,000 58.0%
3 BRI TEAKE KR
48 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Harbin Taiping WWTP Project WWT 325,000 58.0%
BI Y- RREATESKE KRR
49 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Harbin Wenchang WWTP Project WWT 325,000 58.0%
=N E- N RRENERKER KR
50 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Wenchang Expansion Project WWT 50,000 58.0%
P 2L XEFERTRE KRR
51 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Xinyi WWTP Project WWT 100,000 58.0%
- 2RI EE5KE KRR
52 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Jixi WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%
B BEL BFE KR — AR
53 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Jixi WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%
E BRI RS KE = Vet
54 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Jixi WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%
N BRI M5k =H AKEE
55 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Jiamusi East WWTP Project WWT 100,000 58.0%
B LN EARERETKE KRR
56 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Jiamusi West WWTP Project WWT 100,000 58.0%
B BREL FEARHT )5 KR KRR
57 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Mudanjiang WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 100,000 58.0%
Ean BRI HATE KB — 8 KRR
58 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Mudanjiang WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 100,000 58.0%
B BEL HAIE KB = 8 KRR
59 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Shuangyashan WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%
E BRI 15K E—H Vet
60 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Shuangyashan WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%
BI BRI I8 11)5 K — KRR
61 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Zhaodong WWTP Project WWT 50,000 58.0%
B 2L ERKE KRR
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Provinces/
municipalities/

autonomous
regions/special
Business  administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
s/ EET )/
BiAE,/
5% P AT R BRER AEsE () b
62 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Hegang WWTP Project (West) WWT 50,000 58.0%
B L3-8 i) K B BN BE
63 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Pingfang Landfill Leachate Project WWT 50,000 58.0%
B BEL FRAURZRRER KRR
64 Shandong  Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project (Kuailongshan Water Plant) WS 120,000 90.0%
1) i) @Ml M AKIE B &8 ILKE K
65 Shandong  Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Third Water Plant 1st Phase WS 100,000 90.0%
1) il w05 A ok IE B 8 =K —H oK
66 Shandong  Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Third Water Plant 2nd Phase (Expansion) WS 100,000 90.0%
HE il wE s mkIE R £ =KE =8 (FR) oK
67 Shandong  Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Fourth Water Plant WS 100,000 90.0%
1) i) 5 M KB B B 70K K
68 Shandong  Shandong Weifang City Hanting WS Project WS 60,000 26.2%
1) iz HOHERFEMIKAR oK
69 Shandong  Shandong Weifang City Municipal WS Project (Bailanghe Water Plant Project) WS 120,000 51.3%
HE & BT mAIKIER (BRAKBIER) oK
70 Shandong  Shandong Weifang City Municipal WS Project (Gaoxin Water Distribution Plant Project) WS 200,000 51.3%
1) Lz HHTRmAUKIER (R3EKBIER) K
71 Wuhan Hubei Qianchuan Water Plant 0&M Project WS 80,000 100.0%
HE ibg B kBEEREER oK
72 Wuhan Hubei Qianchuan Water Plant 5th Phase Reconstruction and Expansion Project WS 60,000 100.0%
HE ibg Bk siER TR oK
73 Wuhan Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Xinwuhu Water Plant 1st Phase WS 100,000 100.0%
HE iblg REMERENRKE—H K
74 Wuhan Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Xinwuhu Water Plant 2nd Phase WS 150,000 100.0%
i isible REmER R AKE =5 oK
75 Wuhan Shanxi Water Diversion Project from Wenshui to Pingchuan WS 55,000 100.0%
®iz I SIX AR IR oK
76 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Mudanjiang WS Project WS 250,000 58.0%
N RET T AK K
77 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Jiamusi WS Project WS 210,000 58.0%
3 BRI FEARETHK oK
78 Nanfang ~ Guangdong Henggang Reclaimed Water Plant Project RWT/ 50,000 100.0%
Reclaimed
water
A ER B KEREREEKIER HKER,/
BAEK
79 Longjiang  Heilongjiang Mudanjiang WS Project RWT/ 50,000 58.0%
Reclaimed
water
B 2RI AT K NG
BAK
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENSREEAESEHN

Directors’ Profile

Our Board consists of seven members, including four Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Our Board oversees our overall policies, strategies and objectives, key operational initiatives,
performance and measurement, internal controls and risk management, major funding and
investment proposals, financial performance reviews and corporate governance practices.
Approval by our Board is required for such matters including but not limited to corporate
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, major investments and divestments, material
acquisitions and disposals of assets, major corporate policies on key areas at operations,
share issuance, dividend and other returns to shareholders, acceptances of bank facilities,
annual budget and release of the Group’s financial results.

Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no other change in Directors™ biographical
details which is required to be disclosed to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
during FY2024 and up to the date of this report.

The following table sets out certain information regarding our Directors:

EEEA

ESEHLEREAN  BRNEMTESR=25
VIEITES

EFSREAMNRENN BREER BREZL
AR RERER - ARt kRRER  TERE
EERELR WHRRBGRECEEEER - RER
EZeHENZHERETRNEEEA HE X
ERERHE BEREEURKREE  EHEHAEM
MERCREER - RODET  BTRROBS REML
E%  RITEFAN FERERASERBEED
& o

BRAREAREZI  R2024MFREERRER
o HELCESEEFENEDARERE(LD
HADE1351B(1)BEETARE -

TEREFIEHESZNETER

Date of Appointment

Date of joining

Name Age  Position as Director the Group Principal Duties Relationship’
3] B OB EEEEAN MAFKEAHE FEWS m&
Mr. Zhou Yuding 52 Chairman of the Board 23 February 2024 23 February 2024 Managing the overall corporate  None
and Executive strategies, strategic planning
Director and development of the
Group
BATREE 52 EEEIR 2024524238 202452H238  EEASEERRAESR B &
FRHITES RERERE
Mr. Ji Guanglin 51 Chief Executive Officer 26 July 2024 (appointed 26 July 2024 In charge of the daily operation  None
and Executive as the Chief Executive and management of the
Director Officer on the same day) Company, and responsible
for human resources,
business performance
assessment, audit, legal
affairs and internal control
compliance construction of
the Company
REMSEE 51 BREHTE 2024FTR26H (RR—  2024F7A26H ERAQARHSLEERT &
FRHITES REERBEFHITE) - BREARAANER
MEEEER Bt &
% NEERERELE
Mr. Wang Xiwang 57 Executive Director 26 July 2024 26 July 2024 Responsible for the risk None
management of the Group
IFERSE 57 WTES 202474268 2024F7TH26R BEASEERER i
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Date of Appointment

Date of joining

Name Age  Position as Director the Group Principal Duties Relationship’
3] FiR B ZREETERN MAFEERHE FEWH R
Mr. Yang Xing 44 Executive Director 20 October 2023 20 October 2023 Coordinating the relationships ~ None
of the Group with
government authorities
1HE% A~ 44 HiTE=E 2023F10A20H 2023510H20F  WEAASEERAHMNBEER &
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming 64 Lead Independent 29 April 2024 29 April 2024 Providing independent advice ~ None
Non-Executive on the operation and
Director management of the Group
ERISET 64 BRBIIFNITES 2024F4A29H 20447298 BAKEMNELRERRENRE &
VER
Mr. An Hongjun 56 Independent Non- 1 March 2018 1 March 2018 Providing independent advice ~ None
Executive Director on the operation and
management of the Group
RHELE 56 BUFRITES 20183 A1H 2018F3A1H PASEMNELRERERE &
IER
Mr. Zhong Ming 38 Independent Non- 1 March 2018 1 March 2018 Providing independent advice ~ None
Executive Director on the operation and
management of the Group
ik pided 38 BUFRITES 20183 A1H 2018F3A1H PASEMNELRERENE &
IER
Note: BsE

(1) Relationship with other Directors’ and senior management member.

Q)

HEBEERBREZASNER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENSREEAESEHN

Mr. Zhou Yuding — Chairman of the Board and Executive Director

Mr. Zhou Yuding was first appointed as an Executive Director and Chairman of the Board
of the Group on 23 February 2024, and was last re-elected on 29 April 2024. He is mainly
responsible for the overall corporate strategies, strategic planning and development of the
Group.

Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in corporate management and asset management.
He is a senior economist of the PRC. He is currently a director and General Manager of
Asset Management Department of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd., the
Chairman of Shanghai Shangtou Property Management Co., Ltd. (/8 FREERKLHRER
al), a supervisor of Shanghai Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd., a director of Shanghai Galaxy
Investments Co., Ltd., a director of Shanghai SIIC Capital Management Co., Ltd. ( E/& FE
EAEEAFRAR), a director of Tianjin Trust Co., Ltd., the chairman of Shanghai Fudan
Water Engineering and Technology Co., Ltd., and a director of Shanghai Research Institute of
Building Sciences Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603153)).

He has held several positions, including but not limited to the deputy director of the office,
the deputy director of the allocation and guarantee division, the deputy director of the
property rights management division and the director of the comprehensive coordination
division of the Municipal State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
Shanghai.

Mr. Zhou graduated from Fudan University in July 1996 with a master's degree in
Management Information Systems.

Mr. Ji Guanglin — Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. Ji was first appointed as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Group
on 26 July 2024. He is in charge of the daily operation and management of the Company, and
responsible for human resources, business performance assessment, audit, legal affairs and
internal control compliance construction of the Company.

Mr. Ji worked in the Property Rights Management Office of Shanghai State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission from July 2005 to June 2011 and served
as the general manager of the marketing department and trading department of Shanghai
United Equity Exchange from June 2011 to October 2014, the general manager of the asset
management department and strategic planning department of Shanghai Chengtou Group
(/85 EE) from October 2014 to September 2016, the chairman of the board and the
president of Shanghai Chengtou Holding Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 600649.SH) from September
2016 to July 2018, the deputy chief economist of Shanghai Chengtou Group from July
2018 to February 2021, the temporary deputy mayor of Qionghai City, Hainan Province
from January 2019 to March 2020, the deputy general manager and general counsel (chief
compliance officer) of Tianjin Chengtou Group (X#4#% £ #) and the chairman of the board
of Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited (Stock codes: 600649.
SH and 1065.HK) from February 2021 to March 2024. He joined the Company in April 2024.
He is currently the chairman of Longjiang Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. and SIIC
Environmental Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Ji obtained a master's degree in law from Tsinghua University in July 2005 and a

doctorate in philosophy from Fudan University in June 2011. He obtained the Chinese Lawyer
Professional Qualification Certificate in 2000.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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Mr. Wang Xiwang - Executive Director

Mr. Wang was first appointed as an Executive Director of the Group on 26 July 2024. He is
responsible for the risk management of the Group.

Mr. Wang has successively held several important positions in Shanghai International Group
Investment and Development Co., Ltd., Shanghai Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Investment Asset Management Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Industrial Development Co., Ltd.. He
worked in military service from November 1986 to November 2013.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree in law from Nanjing Army Command Academy in
December 2007.

Mr. Yang Xing — Executive Director

Mr. Yang Xing was first appointed as an Executive Director of the Group on 20 October 2023,
and was last re-elected on 29 April 2024. He is mainly responsible for coordinating the
relationships of our Group with government authorities.

Mr. Yang has extensive experience in corporate governance and finance fields. He had worked
in the Accounting Center, Financial Innovation Department and General Manager's Office of
Aerospace Science & Industry Finance Co., Ltd. from October 2004 to January 2014, worked
in the Comprehensive Management Department of Beijing Enterprises Group Finance Co.,
Ltd. from February 2014 to September 2014, the Head of the Comprehensive Management
Department of CEGEP Finance Co. Ltd. from November 2014 to January 2018, an assistant to
the General Manager in CECEP Finance Co. Ltd. from February 2018 to August 2022.

Mr. Yang is currently the Deputy General Manager and the Head of Finance of CECEP (Hong
Kong) Investment Co., Ltd., an Executive Director of Carbon Reserve Investments Limited
and a Director of CECEP (Hong Kong) Treasury Management Co., Ltd.. He is also the Vice
President of the Hong Kong Green Finance Association and a member of the Board of the
China Emissions Exchange.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor's degree in Economics from Beihang University in June 2004
and a master's degree in Financial Management from Beihang University in December 2019.
He holds the title of Intermediate Economist and the qualification of Senior Information
System Project Manager.
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Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming - Lead Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming was first appointed as the Lead Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group on 29 April 2024. She is mainly responsible for providing independent
advice on the operation and management of our Group.

Dr. Pun possesses extensive experience in investment, finance and corporate management.
She is Accredited Senior Director — Listed Companies of Singapore Institute of Directors
(Singapore), IBF Fellow of Institute of Banking &Finance (Singapore), Certified Wealth
Management Adviser of Swiss Association for Quality (Switzerland), Certified Financial
Planner of Financial Planners Association of Singapore (Singapore), Life Insurance and
Chartered Financial Consultant of Singapore College of Insurance (Singapore), Associate
Estate Planning Practitioner of Estate Planning Practitioners Limited (Singapore), Accredited
Investment Fiduciary of the University of Pittsburgh, Center For Fiduciary Studies, Center For
Executive Education (USA) and Visiting Scholar of Cambridge University (United Kingdom).

Dr. Pun is currently the Managing Director of Fiduciary Asia Family Office since May 2023
and the Adviser of Shenning Investments Pte Ltd and Family Office since April 2023. She was
the Managing Director, Shenning Investments Pte Ltd and Family Office since December 2020
to April 2023. In addition, she served as the senior managing director and head of Greater
China of EFG Bank during April 2019 and December 2020, the senior managing director,
head of private banking, market head of Greater China region and a member of management
committee of VP Bank during March 2018 and April 2019, the managing director and market
head of Greater China of Standard Chartered Bank during December 2015 and March 2018,
the managing director and head of China market of BNP Paribas, Singapore during August
2014 and December 2015 and an executive director and China and Singapore market of UBS
AG, Hong Kong during September 2011 and August 2014.

Dr. Pun is a Post Doctorate Visiting Scholar in Cambridge University, with her Doctorate
(DBA) degree from University of St Antonio, and her Master (MBA) degree from University of
Manchester. She has numerous global professional qualifications CFP, ChFC, CWMA, AIF,
AEPP and IBFA, IBF Fellow (IBF Singapore), and ASD Accredited Senior Director (Singapore
Institute of Directors).
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Mr. An Hongjun - Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. An Hongjun was first appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group
on 1 March 2018 and was last re-elected on 28 April 2023. He is mainly responsible for
providing independent advice on the operation and management of our Group.

Mr. An is the Founder and Chairman of Genharmony Capital (EF1%& ), and has more than
20 years' professional experience in the environmental industry. Mr. An had held various
senior positions, such as the Chairman and President from April 2007 to September 2016,
in Shanghai Chengtou Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600649) and a member of the SSE Corporate Governance Index.

Mr. An is a member of the private equity professional committee of the Asset Management
Association of China. Mr. An obtained a bachelor's degree in finance from Nankai University,
PRC in July 1992. He obtained a master's degree in world economics from Fudan University,
PRC in July 2001 and a doctor's degree in world economics from Fudan University in January
2005. Subsequently, he received a doctor's degree in global finance business administration
from Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in May 2016.
Mr. An was ranked 30" among the “Best CEOs of China’s Listed Companies 2017” by Jiemian
News and Jinri Toutiao in 2017.

Mr. Zhong Ming - Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zhong Ming was first appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group
on 1 March 2018. He was last re-elected on 28 April 2023. He is responsible for providing
independent advice on the operation and management of the Group.

Mr. Zhong is currently an Executive Director of Yanlord Land Group Limited, a real estate
development company listed on the SGX-ST (stock code: Z25). Furthermore, he also holds
directorships in various companies in Singapore, such as Ren Ci Hospital ({-2 %6z, United
Engineers Limited (#t4 T2 &E 2 A) and WBL Corporation Limited (&= HRAR).

Mr. Zhong graduated from the University of Melbourne, Australia with a bachelor's degree in
Commerce.
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Senior Management’s Profile

The following table sets out certain information regarding the senior management members

(the “Senior Management”) of the Company:

ERERARMY

B

TRENEEARARREEAR ((ME)NETE

Date of Appointment as Date of Joining

Name Age  Position Senior Management the Group Principal duties Relationship’
£ FE R BERERN MAFSKEBY FERE MR
Mr. Yang Anyuan 50 Deputy General 9 October 2017 December 2010 Respansible for investment None
Manager management, asset management and
segment operation assessment
BRREE 50 BliamE 2017510A9A 2010512 BEREER BEEE HHKEE B
BEIE
Mr. Li Kaibing 47 Deputy General 6 November 2024 November 2024 Respansible for the overall management ~ None
Manager of the group and assisting with
strategic planning
FHRESE 47 BliamE 2024511 A6H 2024511 A BENEAREFAEETE BYH &
B8 TIE
Mr. Qin Feng 56 Deputy General 25 June 2021 May 2020 Responsible for technology research None
Manager and development and technological
innovation, operation control and
smart water
RIERAE 56 EphGES 202156 A25H 2020%5H BERMMEERLAR  ELEE . &
BEKBETE
Ms. Xu Xiaoging 46 Deputy General 15 September 2021 September 2021 Responsible for risk management, and None
Manager assisting in audit
GlUN- 46 BliasE 20214597158 202159 A BERREBRIE BHIERHIHE &
Mr. Qiu Yihua 58 Deputy General 25 April 2023 August 2020 Responsible for the supervision and None
Manager management of major construction
projects, safety production and other
related work of the Group
MEELE 58 gl e 202354 A25H 202058 A BEAKEERNEARREEER ¥ &
PHEEEBSHABEILE
Mr. Zhu Yeliang 42 Finance Director 26 February 2025 March 2020 Responsible for financial management, ~ None
financing management, coordinating
and leading the information
disclosures of the Company
REER A 42 B e 20252 H26 H 202053 A BENBELD RMETE SEEEA &
AAMERRESETIE
Note: Bz

(1) Relationship with other Directors and senior management member.
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Mr. Yang Anyuan - Deputy General Manager

Mr. Yang Anyuan has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since October 2017.
He is responsible for investment management, asset management and segment operation
assessment.

Mr. Yang joined the Group in December 2010. From July 2004 to May 2016, he held several
management positions in SIIC Management. Mr. Yang is currently the Chairman of SIIC
Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. and Nanfang Water Co., Ltd., a director of Longjiang
Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang obtained a master's degree in laws (economic law) from Hunan University, PRC in
June 2003, and a master's degree in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in November 2014. Mr. Yang obtained a lawyer's qualification certificate issued
by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in August 1996 and a legal professional certificate
issued by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in September 2002.

Mr. Li Kaibing — Deputy General Manager

Mr. Li Kaibing has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since 6 November 2024.
He is mainly responsible for the overall management of the group and assisting with strategic
planning.

Mr. Li has experience in corporate strategic planning, industrial investment and operation
management. Mr. Li used to serve for Hubei Yangtze River Industrial Investment Group* (4]
HERIEEREEE), and Hubei Ecological Protection and Green Development Investment
Co., Ltd.* (L& ERRENZEERZEBRAE). He also served as the deputy general
manager of the strategic planning department of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings)
Company Limited from February 2022 to August 2024, and is a director of Shanghai
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 600748) since June 2023.

Mr. Li obtained a doctorate in engineering from Tongji University in July 2007 and is a senior
engineer.
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Mr. Qin Feng — Deputy General Manager

Mr. Qin Feng has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since 25 June 2021. He is
responsible for technology research and development and technological innovation, operation
control and smart water.

Mr. Qin joined the Group in May 2020 and has extensive experience in technology, operation
and construction. Mr. Qin was a Chief Engineer of Shanghai Environment Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Environment Group”, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 601200) from July 2014 to May 2020, Deputy General Manager of Shanghai
Environmental Investment Co., Ltd. from July 2013 to June 2014, Technical Director and
Deputy General Manager of Shanghai Environment Group from May 2008 to June 2013. He
held various capacities including Manager of the Engineering and Technology Department,
Director, Chief Engineer and General Manager of Shanghai Institute for Design & Research
Environmental Engineering Ltd. from March 1995 to April 2008. Mr. Qin is a director of SIIC
Environment Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd., a director of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan)
Co., Ltd., a director of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd., the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of Shanghai Fudan Water Engineering and Technology Co., Ltd. and also holds directorship
in several subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Qin obtained a bachelor's degree and a master's degree in environmental engineering
from the Department of Environmental Engineering of Tongji University, PRC in 1992 and
1995, respectively. He is also a committee member of National Technical Committee 451 on
Municipal Environmental Sanitation Standardization Administration of China (SAC/TC451).

Ms. Xu Xiaoqing — Deputy General Manager

Ms. Xu Xiaoging has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since 15 September
2021. She is responsible for risk management, and assisting in audit.

Ms. Xu has extensive internal control and auditing experience. She served as an Auditor in
the audit department of Ernst & Young from September 2003 to July 2004, Senior Manager
in the corporate management department of SIIC Management from July 2004 to April 2008,
Senior Manager, Assistant Director, Deputy Director and Director of the audit department
of SIIC Management from April 2008 to September 2021, Deputy General Manager and
Chief Financial Officer of Shanghai Huning Expressway (Shanghai section) Development
Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Shen-Yu Expressway Go., Ltd. from October 2019 to August 2021,
and currently Chairman of the labour union of SIIC Management and General Manager of
Shanghai Fudan Water Engineering and Technology Co., Ltd.. Ms. Xu is also the Chairlady of
the Supervisory Committee of Longjiang Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd., Nanfang
Water Co., Ltd., and a supervisor of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd..

Ms. Xu obtained a bachelor's degree in economics and a master's degree in western
economics from Shanghai University of Finance and Economy, PRC in July 2000 and
March 2003, respectively. She is also a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Certified Internal Auditor.
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Mr. Qiu Yihua - Deputy General Manager

Mr. Qiu Yihua has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since 25 April 2023. He
is mainly responsible for the supervision and management of major construction projects,
safety production and other related work of the Group.

Mr. Qiu joined the Company in 2020, and served as the general manager of an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Environmental
Resources Technology Co., Ltd. (“Baojingang”) from August 2020 to October 2022
responsible for the construction and management of Baojingang project. Mr. Qiu also served
as the deputy director of labour department, the deputy director of equipment department,
the deputy director of operation and reform department and other positions in Baosteel
Company and Shanghai Pudong Iron and Steel Company Limited, where he built profound
work experience. Mr. Qiu has strong level of corporate management, outstanding execution
ability, and strong ability and extensive experience in organization, coordination and
business development. Mr. Qiu also focuses on enterprise production and operation risk and
safety production, and is familiar with major project construction, management and safety
production. Mr.Qiu is the chairman of Shanghai SIIC Baojingang Environmental Resources
Technology Co., Ltd.,

Mr. Qiu obtained a bachelor's degree in economic management from the Correspondence
College of the Central Party School in December 2003.

Mr. Zhu Yeliang — Finance Director

Mr. Zhu Yeliang has been a Finance Director of the Company since 26 February 2025. He is
responsible for financial management, financing management, coordinating and leading the
information disclosures of the Company.

Mr. Zhu, has many years of work experience in various fields of financial management and
corporate management. He is currently a director and a deputy general manager of Longjiang
Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. and etc. Mr. Zhu has worked for KPMG Ireland,
ICBC International Holdings Limited, Huadian GE Aero Gas Turbine Equipment Co., Ltd (joint
venture between China Huadian Corporation and General Electric Company), etc. Mr. Zhu also
served as a director, deputy general manager, and finance director of Shanghai Fudan Water
Engineering Technology Co., Ltd as well as a director and deputy general manager of SIIC
Environmental Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd. during the period of working in the Company.

Mr. Zhu holds a master's degree in accounting from Michael Smurfit Graduate Business
School, University College Dublin, Ireland. He holds professional qualifications from the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland and the Institute of Management Accountants.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Valued
Shareholders,

FUBHHBR :

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to
announce the results of SIIG Environment Holdings
Ltd. (*SIIC Environment” or the ‘Company’,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the
12 months ended 31 December 2024 (‘FY2024").
In FY2024, the Group actively responded to various
challenges and the complex and volatile environment
by adjusting and upgrading its governance structure
to enhance management, strictly controlling financial
risks and steadily advancing the operation of different
projects. In FY2024, the Group's revenue amounted
to RMB7.596 billion, and its net profit attributable to
shareholders reached RMB605 million. Four quality
wastewater treatment projects were awarded to the
Group during the year and the group has a total
designed capacity of 13.43 million tonnes per day.
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Achieving progress while maintaining stability, striving forward

In 2024, the global economy struggled to recover amid profound changes. Even though
China’s economy has been operating smoothly, the water industry still faced various
challenges, such as local government debt, a saturated market, the need for innovation
and transformation of traditional industries, and the detailed enhancement of management
efficiencies. Still, since proposing the ‘carbon peaking” and “carbon neutrality” goals, China
has fully implemented new development concepts, adhered to a people-centric philosophy,
and embraced the harmonious coexistence of humanity and nature as a crucial feature and
connotation of modernization with Chinese characteristics, giving prominence to building a
Beautiful China in the development of a strong nation. It has actively responded to climate
change, and achieved significant results in expediting the construction of a national carbon
market, policy systems and support mechanisms, while vigorously engaging in global
governance to address climate change.

In FY2024, the Group developed and implemented the management improvement action plan
to step up the construction of the Group’s headquarters and enhance its management and
control capabilities. The Group made significant progress in strategic planning and control,
financial capital management, market investment expansion, scientific and technological
innovation, etc., and continued to boost its brand influence and core competitiveness. It also
maintained its focus on the core environmental health business, unswervingly followed the
path of high-quality development, and consolidated and enhanced its leading position in
China’s water and environmental protection industries

In FY2024, in the face of a complex and volatile environment, the Group maintained stable
operations while spurring innovation-driven development, and also focused on refining
management, which allowed its results to achieve steady progress. Revenue increased
by 0.3% year on year to RMB7.596 billion, of which income from service concession
arrangements, service revenue, and other revenue collectively rose by 2% to RMB5.8 billion.
Net profit attributable to shareholders was up by 0.2% year on year to RMB605 million.
The Group will continue to focus on refined and digital management, and use innovation to
protect and drive its high-quality development.

Preventing risks and forging ahead

The Group vigorously managed liquidity risks and reinforced its financial stability. The
pressure on local fiscal revenue and expenditures has extended the recovery cycles of water
enterprises, hence the Company has increased its fund recovery efforts, continued to optimize
its financing structure, and actively replaced high-interest loans to control financial risks.
With greater financing scale, financial expenses declined by 6.6% compared with the same
period in 2023, and the Group also avoided exchange rate risks caused by RMB fluctuations.

The Group watched closely for opportunities from high-quality new projects and continued to
expand its market share. In FY2024, the Group acquired four new projects in Hubei Province,
Shandong Province, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, and Hunan Province. Two projects
have been upgraded and expanded, and four expansion projects were completed and have
commenced commercial operation. The Group’s key solid waste treatment project, Shanghai
Baoshan Renewable Energy Utilization Center (“Baoshan Project’), started operation in
FY2024. As the first key municipal project for integrated end-processing of wet and dry solid
waste following the formal implementation of waste classification in Shanghai, the Baoshan
Project can effectively tackle the issue of waste treatment in the service segment. As of the
end of FY2024, the Group has nearly 250 wastewater treatment and water supply projects,
solid waste incineration projects, and sludge treatment projects.

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of $$0.011 per
ordinary share.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Technology leading to green development

The environmental headquarters has established a technology operations center to create a
technology innovation team, coordinate process optimization and technology innovation, and
explore and promote technology productization. The technical strengths of all segments have
been drawn to focus on niche areas such as domestic sewage, industrial wastewater, water
supply treatment, and sludge treatment. Also, a special technology center has been set up
to coordinate the plans and budgets of annual scientific research projects, conduct research
projects, and promote the commercialization of related innovations. At the same time, in
accordance with the overall planning of informatization construction, it also examines and
assesses the results and status of informatization construction of different segments, and
optimizes and adjusts the informatization construction plans to promote the standardization
and regulation of operation management and control, as well as improve the level of refined
management and intelligent operation through digital intelligence empowerment.

The Company has integrated ESG into its daily policies and operations, and continuously
improves its governance policies, commitments and goals. Several related policies have
been formulated, including but not limited to “Environmental, Social and Governance Works
Management Measures of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd.”, “Sustainability Policy of SIIC
Environment Holdings Ltd.", and ‘Management and Operation Manual for Environmental,
Social and Governance Index Database”. A professional third party has been appointed to
conduct an internal review of the Sustainability Report based on the Company's governance
structure, which is buttressed by an effective internal control and risk management system.
Compliant with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing,
issued by The Institute of Internal Auditors (The IIA), the identified processes relating to the
Sustainability Report have been incorporated into its annual internal audit plan.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
shareholders, customers, and business partners for their continued trust and support in the
Group, and my highest respect to all employees for their dedication.

In the future, the Group will continue to seize opportunities from national strategies and
policies, be attentive to high-quality new projects and business M&A opportunities, and
increase expansion efforts in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the
Asia-Pacific region. It will increase its market share, continue to consolidate its foundation,
empower corporate development with technological innovation, and enhance the Company’s
core competitiveness. The Group will reinforce its leading position in China's water and
environmental protection industries, and strive to bring fruitful investment returns to
shareholders.

Mr. Zhou Yuding
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
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Financial Highlights

Since FY2020, the Group has maintained steady financial growth, supported by consistent
expansion across key performance indicators. Revenue increased from RMBG6,252 million
in 2020 to RMB7,596 million in 2024, reflecting a 5.0% compound annual growth rate
(CAGR). The profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to RMB605 million,
demonstrated a recovery from the decline in FY2023, achieving a 0.2% increase compared to
prior year. EBITDA also exhibited sustained growth, reaching RMB2,603 million in 2024, with
a 3.8% CAGR, underscoring the Group's operational efficiency. Total assets and net assets
expanded at 6.6% and 5.4% CAGR, respectively, reinforcing the Group's financial stability
and capacity for long-term growth. The EBITDA to financial expense ratio remained within a
healthy range demonstrating the Group’s ability to meet financial commitments effectively.
The Group remains committed to enhancing profitability, optimizing cost structures, and
delivering sustainable value for shareholders.

(A) Strong Financial Position &8 IR
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(B) BOT, TOT, BOO and TOO Projects Provide Stable Cash Flow, increasing Visibility of the Group’s Future Earnings
BOT - TOT - BOOMTOOEE R TREMNR LR » THRAKERRENNER
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2024 2023 Change %
Results (RMB’000) ER/(AE®TR) 20245 20234 #8EH%
Revenue WA 7,595,654 7,572,892 0.3%
Gross profit E7 2,617,823 2,704,362 (3.2%)
Profit for the year FRFIHE 951,642 1,019,656 (6.7%)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company AREHA AEEERFIE 605,140 604,018 0.2%
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREN(ARES)
— Basic (a) — &K (a) 23.49 23.45 0.2%
— Diluted -8 23.49 23.45 0.2%
(@)  Computed based on weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the respective  (a) REEETLERAEE12A31BIESHREERM

financial year ended 31 December BEHHHE

2024 2023 Change %
Financial Position (RMB’000) MEBERL(ARETRT) 20245 2023 28%
Total assets BEERE 44,956,498 42,607,940 5.51%
Net assets (Total equity) FEE (BER) 16,082,510 15,290,456 5.18%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AARHEA ANELER 10,635,069 10,131,507 4.97%
Net assets per share (b) (RMB cents) FRFEE(D) (ARES) 412.91 393.35 4.97%
Number of shares (excluding treasury shares) BOEE (TREEFR®R) 2,575,665,726 2,575,665,726 0.00%

(b)

| 24

Equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the outstanding number of ordinary

shares
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Overall

In 2024, the Group’s total revenue grew 0.3% year over year to RMB7.596 billion. While
construction revenue declined by 3.9% to RMB1,795.9 million compared to the previous
financial year, this was offset by an increase in income from service concession arrangements,
service revenue, and other revenue streams, which rose 2% to RMB5.800 billion, benefiting
from a higher gross profit margin.

The Group continued to optimize its financing structure, leading to a 6.6% reduction in
financial expenses, which decreased from RMB834 million in 2023 to RMB779 million in
2024, despite an overall increase in financing scale. Additionally, the Group effectively
mitigated exchange rate risks, incurring RMB5 million less in exchange losses compared to
the previous year.

As a result, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to shareholders of RMB605 million,
representing a 0.2% increase from the previous financial year.

Equity

The Group's total equity as at 31 December 2024 amounted to RMB16.1 billion, strengthened
from RMB15.3 billion as at 31 December 2023. The increase reflected the total comprehensive
income of RMB933.9 million recorded for FY2024 and the proportional capital injection from
non-controlling interest shareholder, offset with interim and final dividend paid during the
year.

Cash Flow
During the financial year ended 31 December 2024, the followings were recorded:

(1) healthy net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities before service
concession arrangement projects amounted to RMB1,037.2 million;

(2) net cash used in the Group’s investing activities amounted to RMB1,707.2 million,
mainly due to purchase of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment;

(3) net cash generated from financing activities amounted to RMB1,174.5 million, was
mainly due to the net proceeds from bank and other borrowings and contribution from
non-controlling interest upon additional capital injection in subsidiaries, which are
partially offset by interest paid, acquisition of non-controlling interests and dividend
paid to equity shareholders.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's cash and cash equivalents stood at RMB2.92 billion (31
December 2023: RMB2.89 billion).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

Analysis of Key Items in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Revenue

Total revenue increased by 0.3%, rising from RMB7,572.9 million in FY2023 to RMB7,595.7
million in FY2024. This growth was primarily driven by an increase in income from service
concession arrangements, service revenue, and other revenue streams, which collectively
rose by 2% to RMB5.8 billion, benefiting from an improved gross profit margin. However,
construction revenue declined by 3.9% to RMB1,795.9 million, due to the completion of
major construction projects in FY2023, while the phased commencement of new large-scale
construction projects only started in the second half of FY2024.

Water and Sludge Treatment

Water and Sludge Treatment segment revenue increased from RMB5,220.7 million in FY2023
to RMB5,651.6 million in FY2024. The increase in revenue was mainly contributed by
increase in construction volume and the rise in wastewater treatment tariff and volume.

Water Supply

Water Supply segment revenue decreased from RMB1,376.0 million in FY2023 to
RMB1,272.2 million in FY2024, the decrease in revenue was mainly caused by the decrease
of construction revenue, partially offset by the increase from income from new projects
commencing operation.

Waste Incineration

Waste Incineration segment revenue decreased from RMB976.2 million in FY2023 to
RMB671.8 million in FY2024. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the construction
activities of Shanghai Baoshan Renewable Energy Utilization Center had been completed in
prior year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit (“GP”) for FY2024 amounted to RMB2,617.8 million, reflecting
a 3.2% decline from RMB2,704.4 million in FY2023, primarily due to a decrease in
construction revenue. The gross profit margin (“GPM") contracted by 120 basis points to
34.5%, compared to 35.7% in the prior year, mainly impacted by the amortization impact
following the commencement of operations at the Shanghai Baoshan Renewable Energy
Utilization Center and new water supply projects.

Other income

Other income was RMB102.4 million, representing a decrease of 43.5%, as compared to
RMB181.3 million in FY2023. The overall decrease was mainly due to a reduction in the
volume of work and production not related to core business activities.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were RMB657.0 million, as compared to RMB576.5 million in
FY2023. The increase was mainly due to loss allowance for expected credit losses made
during the period.
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Finance expenses

Finance expenses were RMB779.5 million, representing a decrease of 6.6%, as compared to
RMB834.3 million in FY2023. During the period, the financing structure was continuously
optimized by replacing high-interest loans with lower-interest loans, hence, financial
expenses were significantly reduced compared with FY2023, despite the increase in loans.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the profit attributable to owners of the Company was RMB605.1
million, representing an increase of 0.2%, as compared to RMB604.0 million in FY2023.

Analysis of Key Items of Financial Position
Receivables under service concession arrangements

Our receivables under service concession arrangements were RMB23,261.2 million and
RMB21,942.1 million as at 31 December 2023 and 2024, respectively, of which RMB22,374.1
million and RMB21,041.6 million were classified as non-current assets respectively.

Intangible assets

Our intangible assets were RMB8,667.7 million and RMB11,334.1 million as at 31 December
2023 and 2024, respectively, of which RMB8,651.6 million and RMB11,318.1 million,
respectively, were intangible assets related to operating concessions. The increase in
intangible assets related to operating concessions was primarily due to operations of new
projects in fiscal year 2024.

Goodwill

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying value of our goodwill remained unchanged at
RMB457.2 million.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) investment

As at 31 December 2024, our FVTOCI investments balance remained unchanged at RMB13.4
million.

Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables increased from RMB4,990.4 million as at 31 December 2023
to RMB6,394.1 million as at 31 December 2024, which was primarily influenced by the
expansion in operation scale in 2024 and the delay in the debts collection for some projects.
Our average trade receivable turnover days recorded 179.7 days for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 229.8 days for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables decreased from RMB4,306.4 million as at 31 December 2023
to RMB3,782.6 million as at 31 December 2024. The decrease was mainly arising from trade
payables, which decreased from RMB2,324.8 million as at 31 December 2023 to RMB2,125.7
million as at 31 December 2024, in line with the progress of new projects. Our average trade
payable turnover days decreased from 173.4 days for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
163.6 days for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

Material acquisitions and disposals

As disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any other material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during 2024.

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2024.

Capital structure

The shares of the Company are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company during 2024. The capital of the Company consists of net debts,
which includes borrowings, net cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

Borrowings and interest

Details of borrowings are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. Interest
and other borrowing costs are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pledge on assets

The aggregate carrying value of assets pledged by the Group to secure banking facilities
granted by banks, leased assets by leasing company and use of certain operating concession
assets as at 31 December 2024 was as follows:

a) Pledged bank deposits with an aggregate carrying value of RMB67,567,000 (31
December 2023: RMB63,010,000);

b)  Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying value of RMB4,856,000 (31
December 2023: RMB6,392,000);

¢) Intangible assets with an aggregate carrying value of RMB3,522,236,000 (31 December
2023: RMB1,432,240,000);

d)  Land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of RMB438,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB555,000);

e)  Trade receivables with an aggregate carrying value of RMB375,219,000 (31 December
2023: RMB159,450,000); and

f)  Receivables under service concession arrangements with an aggregate carrying value of
RMB13,782,315,000 (31 December 2023: RMB13,465,554,000).
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Significant investment held

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2024, the Group did not hold any
significant investments.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments and capital assets as at 31 December 2024.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its treasury
policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout 2024. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in China and have limited foreign currency exposures as bulk
of the sales and purchases are denominated in the respective functional currencies of the
Group's entities which are mainly RMB. The exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arise
from fluctuations in the Singapore dollar, Hongkong dollar, and Renminbi exchange rates.
The management carefully monitors foreign currency exposure and will also consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures and adopting suitable measures where necessary.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Part of the risks and uncertainties are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”, “Directors’ Statement™ and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” of this annual report. Further details of financial
risks of the Group are disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements for
FY2024.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had current assets of approximately RMB10,778.2 million
(as at 31 December 2023: RMB9,271.0 million), which comprised cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB2,918.2 million (as at 31 December 2023: RMB2,885.8 million), mainly
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had non-current liabilities of
approximately RMB19,609.8 million (as at 31 December 2023: RMB17,059.1 million), and its
current liabilities amounted to approximately RMB9,264.2 million (as at 31 December 2023:
RMB10,258.3 million), consisting mainly of bank and other borrowings. Accordingly, the
current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 1.16
times as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: 0.90 times). The Group's working
capital requirements were mainly financed by internal resources.

Subsequent events

The Directors have proposed a final dividend of S$0.011 per share to be distributed to
shareholders subsequent to the end of the reporting period. There were no other significant
events occurring after the financial year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report.
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Good corporate governance ensures that the interests of shareholders are protected and
enhances corporate performance and accountability. SIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.
(the “Company” or “SIIC Environment’)) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
are committed to establishing corporate governance practices in place which are in line
with the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST") Listing Manual, the
principles, provisions and recommendations of the Code of Corporate Governance 2018
(the “Code’) and the applicable mandatory disclosure requirements, principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “HK CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Hong Kong Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") to provide the structure through which the
objectives of protection of shareholders” interest and enhancement of long term shareholders’
value are met.

In the event of any conflict between the Code and the HK CG Code, the Group will comply
with the more onerous provisions. This report sets out the Group’s main corporate governance
practices that were in place throughout and/or during the financial year or which will be
implemented and where appropriate, we have provided explanations for deviation from the
Code and the HK CG Code.

The Group has set out the corporate practices in place to comply with the Code and the
HK CG Code in the Annual Report. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2024
(“FY2024”), the Group had complied with the Code and the HK CG Code, except those
explained and disclosed in this Annual Report.

CORPORATE CULTURE

As a highly regarded player in the water and environmental protection industry in China, SIIC
Environment is committed to providing outstanding environmental protection solutions to
customers with continuous technological innovation and efficient operation, while undertaking
the social responsibility to promote the sustainable development of the industry. The Group's
core values consist of persistence, integrity, innovation and mutual benefit, which represents
the attitude, foundation, development and goal of the Group respectively.

Leveraging the Group's solid strategic positioning and quality business model, we
continuously expand our business, improve efficiency and innovate to consolidate our leading
position in the water and environmental protection industry in China. We also evaluate
corporate performance indicators on a regular basis and from a multi-dimensional perspective
to consolidate our market position, continue to create value for shareholders, and drive the
sustainable and healthy development of the Group.

Adhering to a people-oriented approach, the Group strives to provide employees with a good
working environment and training opportunities. By organizing employee activities from
time to time, the Group aims to promote employee motivation and team spirit, and make
sure that the Group’s culture and values are clearly communicated to all employees so that
they can progress and thrive within the Company. The Company has adopted a range of
measures, including rewarding outstanding employees, providing training and development
opportunities, satisfaction surveys and other indicators, in implementing the people-oriented
corporate culture.
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The Board (‘Board”) of Directors (‘Directors’) of the Company evaluates the overall
performance and the progress toward goals of the Group on a regular basis to ensure
that the strategic objectives are aligned with our culture and values, and adjusts and
continuously refines management strategies in a timely manner to adapt to the constant
changes and development trends in the market.

BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s Conduct of Affairs

Principle 1: The company is headed by an effective Board which is
collectively responsible and works with Management for the long-term
success of the company.

The Board of the Company oversees the business and corporate affairs of the Group.
The principal duties of the Board include the following:

e Protecting and enhancing long-term value and return to its shareholders;

e Providing leadership and guidance on corporate strategy, business directions,
risk management policy and implementation of corporate objectives;

e  FEstablishing, reviewing, and approving the annual budget, corporate policies,
strategies, and objectives for the Group;
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Responsible for preparing the accounts of the Group;
Establishing a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risks to
be assessed and managed, including safequarding of shareholders” interests and

the Company’s assets;

Identifying the key stakeholder groups and recognise that their perceptions affect
the Company’s reputation;

Ensuring the effectiveness and integrity of Management;

Monitoring the Management's achievement of these goals;

Conducting periodic reviews of the Group's financial performance, internal
controls and reporting compliance, including to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training, programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions;

Approving nominations to the Board and appointment of key executives;

Ensuring the Group's compliance with all relevant and applicable laws and
regulations;

Considering sustainability issues;
Assuming responsibility for the corporate governance of the Group;

Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and directors;

Reviewing the Company's Compliance with the Code and the HK CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

Being the highest governing body to the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) of the Group and accountable for overall responsibility of strategy and
reporting of the ESG, and reviewing the ESG aims;

Determining and monitoring the strategy, measure and procedure of ESG, as well
as reviewing and approving the ESG report; and

Authorizing the Risk and Investment Management Committee (“RIMC”) to
monitor and manage (i) ESG tasks; (ii) ESG aims; and (iii) ESG significant matters
(including relevant risks), and report to the Board for discussion and approval.
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All Directors exercise due diligence and independent judgment in dealing with the
business affairs of the Group and are fiduciaries obliged to act in good faith and to take
objective decisions in the interest of the Group. The Board holds the Management of
the Company (“Management”) accountable for performance. The Directors have all
confirmed their responsibility for preparing the accounts, and that there were no events
or conditions which would have a material impact on the Company's ability to continue
to operate as a going concern basis during FY2024.

The Board bears primary responsibility on key decisions on all major matters, including
but not limited to its principal duties, policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, significant transactions, change in Directors and senior
management and other significant operational matters of the Group. Daily operations
and administration are delegated to the Management.

To assist the Board in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board is supported by
five committees, namely the Audit Committee (“AC"), the Nomination Committee (‘NC”),
the Remuneration Committee (‘RC"), the Risk and Investment Management Committee
("RIMC") and the Executive Committee (‘EC") (collectively, “Board Committees’).
The Board Committees operate within clearly defined terms of reference or scope and
they play an important role in ensuring good corporate governance in the Company
and within the Group. The terms of reference of the Board Committees (the “Terms of
Reference’) are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure their continued relevance. The
roles and responsibilities for each committee are specified in its Terms of Reference.
The details of the latest Terms of Reference can be found on the websites of the SGXST,
SEHK and the Company.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to, among others, approve
the quarterly, interim and full year results announcements and to oversee the business
affairs of the Group. The schedule of all the Board and Board Committees meetings for
a calendar year is usually given to all the Directors well in advance in accordance with
the Terms of Reference, the Code, and the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Notice of regular
Board meetings is served on all the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting while
reasonable notice is generally given for other Board and Board Committee meetings.
The Board is free to seek clarification and information from Management on all matters
within their purview.

Ad hoc meetings are convened at such other times as may be necessary to address
any specific significant matters that may arise. Important matters concerning the Group
are also put to the Board for its decision by way of written resolutions. Meetings
held by means of conference telephone, video conference, audio visual or similar
communication equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can hear one another contemporaneously without a Director being in the physical
presence of another Director or Directors are permitted by the Company’s Constitution.
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The following table sets out the attendance of each Director at the Board, Board
Committees and the general meeting held during FY2024:

TREJSEELFXU4HFRET2ESE
EXZBERBRAGEENEN

Board Committee Meetings

EFZEEES
General Board
Meeting Meetings AC NC RC EC® RIMC®
RRERRE
Name of Director EENR BREXE EXEER FHZHAT REZET FHZEE® RTERAEC EEERAEC
No. of Meetings Held ETEERY 1 5 4 1 1 5 5
Mr. Zhou Yuding™ ETRELD 1 5 1* 1* 1 5 5
Mr. Ji Guanglin®@ REMEER - 3 - - - 3 3
Mr. Wang Xiwang® IHEXE - 3 - - - 3 3
Mr. Xu Xiaobing® REKEAEY 1 1 - - - 1 1
Mr. Zhu Dazhi® KRBHRED 1 2 - - - 2 2
Mr. Jiang Kai® Blggrae 1 2 1 - - 2 2
Mr. Yang Xing BESE 1 5 - - - 5 5
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming™  J&&IS1E+0 - 4 3 - - - -
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang® BARNFEE® 1 1 1 1 1 - -
Mr. An Hongjun RUHELE 1 5 4 1 1 - 5
Mr. Zhong Ming EHTE 1 5 4 1 1 - -
* By invitation * e

Mr. Zhou Yuding was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and Executive Director on 23
February 2024.

Mr. Ji Guanglin was appointed as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 26
July 2024.

Mr. Wang Xiwang was appointed as an Executive Director on 26 July 2024.

Mr. Xu Xiaobing resigned as an Executive Director on 26 July 2024.

Mr. Zhu Dazhi resigned as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 26 July
2024.

Mr. Jiang Kai resigned as an Executive Director on 26 July 2024.

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming was appointed as the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director
on 29 April 2024.

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang retired as the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director on 29 April
2024.

There were 5 official EC or RIMC meetings held during FY2024. In addition, the
members of the EC and RIMC contacted each other as well as other members of the
Board and the Management on an informal basis to discuss the matters related to the
EC and RIMC, respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code Provision
A.2.1 of the HK CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) and written employee
guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the HK CG Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

The Group had adopted a set of internal guidelines setting forth financial authorization
and approval limits for investments, acquisitions, and disposals. Transactions falling
outside the ordinary course of business and where the value of a transaction exceeds
these limits have to be approved by the Board. The Directors facing conflicts of interest
would recuse themselves from discussions and decisions involving the issues of
conflict. The Directors would abstain from voting and decision involving the issues of
conflict.

Matters requiring the Board’s decision and approval include but is not limited to the
following:

Material acquisitions and disposal of assets;
e Group's major investments/divestments and funding decisions;

e Group's announcements or press releases released via SGXNet and HKEXnews,
including financial results announcements;

e Agreements which are not in the ordinary course of business;

e Major borrowings or corporate guarantees in relation to borrowings;
e Entry into any profit-sharing arrangement;

e [ssuance of shares or declaration of dividends;

e Qperating budgets, annual report, Directors’ statement and audited financial
statements;

° Convening of general meetings;
e (hange in corporate business strategy and direction; and

° ESG matters
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The Directors are also updated regularly with changes to the SGX-ST Listing Manual
and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, risk management, corporate governance, insider
trading and the key changes in the relevant regulatory requirements and financial
reporting standards and the relevant laws and regulations to facilitate effective discharge
of their fiduciary duties as Board or Board Committees members.

New releases issued by the SGX-ST, Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority
(“ACRA”) and the SEHK which are relevant to the Directors are circulated to the Board.
Mr. Lee Wei Hsiung and Mr. Man Yun Wah, the Company Secretaries (collectively, the
‘Company Secretaries” and each a “Company Secretary’) of the Company keep
the Directors informed of upcoming conferences and seminars relevant to their roles as
Directors of the Company. Annually, the external auditors update the AC and the Board
on the new and revised financial reporting standards that are applicable to the Company
or the Group.

Appropriate briefing and orientation will be arranged for newly appointed Directors
to familiarise themselves with the Group’s business operations, strategic directions,
Directors’ duties and responsibilities and corporate governance practices. They will
also be given opportunities to visit the Group’s operational facilities and meet the
Management so as to gain a better understanding of the Group's business.

The Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and receive training to improve
themselves in the discharge of Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Changes to
regulations and accounting standards are monitored closely by the Management. To
keep pace with such regulatory changes, the Company provides opportunities, at the
Company's expense, for ongoing education and training on Board processes and best
practices as well as updates on changes in legislation and financial reporting standards,
regulations and guidelines from the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing
Rules that affect the Company and/or the Directors in discharging their duties. The
Company would arrange the Directors to undergo the training on sustainability matters
as prescribed by the SGX-ST and SEHK.

During FY2024, all Directors were provided updates and news of, among other things,
the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Code, the HK CG Code and the HK Listing Rules. The
shares of the Company have been listed on the SGX-ST since 2005 and dual listed
on the SEHK for trading since 23 March 2018, and the Company is required to fully
comply with both the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules. In
order to comply with Code Provision C.1.4 of HK CG Code after the dual listing of the
Company on the SEHK, the Company has provided information related to the changes
in the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules to the Directors to
update and refresh the Directors’ knowledge on the latest developments to the SGX-ST
Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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The Company will continuously update the Directors on the latest developments to
the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance the Directors” awareness of
good corporate governance practices. The Company may from time to time arrange the
training for the Directors at the Company’s costs.

Newly appointed Directors receive appropriate training, if required, and a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on appointment. The Group provides
background information about its history, mission and values to its Directors. In
addition, the Management regularly updates and familiarises the Directors on the
business activities of the Company during Board meetings. A Director who has no prior
experience as a director of an issuer listed on the SGX-ST will undergo training in the
roles and responsibilities of a director as prescribed by the SGX-ST.

Subject to the provisions of and so far as may be permitted by the Companies Act 1967
of Singapore (the “Singapore Companies Act’), every Director, Chief Executive
Officer or Managing Director, Auditor, Company Secretary or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company against all costs, charges,
losses, expenses and liabilities incurred or to be incurred by him in the execution and
discharge of his duties or in relation thereto.

During FY2024 and as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against the Directors and senior management arising out of the discharge of
their duties and responsibilities.

To enable the Board to fulfil its responsibilities, the Management strives to provide
Board members with adequate and timely information for Board and Board Committee
meetings on an on-going basis. The Board and Board Committee papers are prepared
for each meeting and are disseminated to the members at least 3 days before the
meetings. The Board and Board Committee papers include financial, business and
corporate matters of the Group so as to enable the Directors to be properly briefed on
matters to be considered at the Board and Board Committee meetings and to make
informed decisions.

The Directors have separate and independent access to the Management and Company
Secretaries. Directors may seek professional advice in furtherance of their duties and
the costs will be borne by the Company. The appointment and removal of the Company
Secretaries are subject to the approval of the Board as a whole.
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Board Composition and Guidance

Principle 2: The Board has an appropriate level of independence and
diversity of thought and background in its composition to enable it to make
decisions in the hest interests of the company.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In designing
the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural, industry experience, skill
and knowledge. Presently, the Board comprises four Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, as follows:

EEREMRES

RR2: EEEMSRERRRAREENEIL
HESTHBERER W LUERERLFANE
ERSEHRE -

REFARENOEER  ARFAREZEQRE
HASZ AN FAEREBERRERT
TEBRNBARTE - ARAERFEFEN
BAKE eZzEIAEREZENES T
£ BREARNER - Fie - UL TEL
B REERAE - BR EZSRREANT
EER-RBUFATESNOT

Name of Director Designation AC NC RC EC RIMC
EERA B FHEEE REEZET FHMEET HTERE ERRRH

TEZRE
Mr. Zhou Yuding Chairman of the Board and Executive Director - - Member Chairman Member
BT REE EERLRERNTESR - - & TE B &
Mr. Ji Guanglin Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer - - - Member Chairman
TREMSEE WTESHKERNTE - - - 9=] IR
Mr. Wang Xiwang Executive Director - - - Member Member
IHRERE WIES - - - % E &
Mr. Yang Xing Executive Director - - - - -
BREEYE WTES - - - - -
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming Lead Independent Non-Executive Director Member Chairlady Member - -
RIS L BRBFRNITES 4= IR %8 - -
Mr. An Hongjun Independent Non-Executive Director Chairman Member Member - -
RHESAE BUERITES B2 R E & - -
Mr. Zhong Ming Independent Non-Executive Director Member Member Chairman - -
ESREE BUFRITES %8 B & B - -

Each of Mr. Zhou Yuding, Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming, Mr. Ji Guanglin and Mr. Wang
Xiwang (i) was appointed as Director during the year; (ii) obtained the legal advice
referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Hong Kong Listing Rules on 21 February 2024, 24 April
2024, 25 July 2024 and 25 July 2024, respectively; and (i) confirmed that he/she
understood his/her obligation as a Director.
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Executive Committee

The EC comprises the following members:
Mr. Zhou Yuding (Chairman of the EC) (appointed on 23 February 2024)

Mr. Ji Guanglin (appointed on 26 July 2024)
Mr. Wang Xiwang (appointed on 26 July 2024)

The EC is primarily responsible for assisting the Board to manage and oversee
the Group’s operational and business expansion matters. To discharge its role and
responsibilities, the EC is supported by the head office, functional departments of the
various business units and Senior Management of the Group.

The EC had adopted a set of delegation of authority (“DOA”) setting forth financial
authorisation and approval limits for investments, acquisitions and disposals.
Transactions falling outside the scope of DOA and where the value of a transaction
exceeds these limits have to be approved by the Board. All material and significant
matters are reported to the Board by the EC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The criteria for independence are determined based on the definitions as provided
in the Code, the SGX-ST Listing Manual, and the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the
independence of each Independent Non-Executive Director is reviewed annually by the
NC.

The NC considers an Independent Non-Executive Director as one who is independent
in conduct, character and judgement, and has no relationship with the Company, its
related corporations, its substantial shareholders or its Officers that could interfere,
or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Directors’ independent
business judgment in the best interests of the Company pursuant to the Provision 2.1
of the Code. The NC also takes into consideration the circumstances provided in Rule
210(5)(d) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
for determining the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors actively participate in Board meetings.
The Company has benefited from Management's access to its Directors for guidance
and exchange of views both within and outside of the meetings of the Board and
Board Committees. The Independent Non-Executive Directors communicate amongst
themselves and with the Company’s auditors and Senior Management. The Chairman
of the Board should and does hold, at least annually, meetings with the Non-Executive
Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the presence of the
Executive Directors pursuant to Code Provision C.2.7 of HK CG Code.
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No service contract or letter of appointment has been entered into by the Non-Executive
Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors with the Company. Although the
Non-Executive Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term, they are subject to the applicable laws and regulations and subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with the Constitution of
the Company.

Presently, the Company has three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors on the
Board, which make up at least one-third of the Board.

Notwithstanding the above and the requirements of Provisions 2.2 and 2.3 of the Code,
the NC has reviewed the size and composition of the Board and after taking into account
the scope and nature of operations of the Group in the year under review including
diversity of background, experience, gender, age and other relevant factors, the NC is
satisfied that the current Board size is appropriate and effective with composition of
four (4) Executive Directors, and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. To
address the issue of independence, the Board has put in place a Lead Independent
Non-Executive Director, who is available to shareholders where they have concerns. The
Board is of the view that the Independent Non-Executive Directors demonstrate a strong
level of independence and judgement in discharging their duties and responsibilities
as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company with the utmost commitment
in upholding the interest of the non-controlling shareholders. They have expressed
individual and independent viewpoints and input, debated issues, and objectively
scrutinised and challenged the Management taking into consideration the long-term
interests of the Group and its shareholders. No individual or small group of individuals
dominates the Board’s decision making. Nonetheless, the Company is constantly on
the lookout for suitable candidates to join the Board as Independent Non-Executive
Directors as part of its review process.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules as well
as the Code and the Board is satisfied that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
have been independent and met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules during FY2024 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The Board comprises Directors who as a whole, have core competencies and diversity of
experience to enable them to lead and control the Group effectively. Such competencies
and experiences include industry knowledge, strategic planning, business and general
management, legal and finance, and at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise pursuant to Rule 3.10(2) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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The Company and the Board recognise and embrace the benefits of diversity on the
Board, and view diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. A diverse
Board will include the differences between the Directors in terms of skills, experience,
background, gender, age, ethnicity and other relevant factors which will be considered
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. In recognition of the importance
of the gender diversity in the composition of the Board, the Board has appointed Dr.
Kimmis Pun Kim Ming as the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director on 29 April
2024. The Board will continue to seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members over time as and when suitable candidates are identified. The NC will continue
to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its relevance and
effectiveness, and will recommend the revisions, if any, to the Board for consideration
and approval.

As at 31 December 2024, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce (including senior
management) was approximately 74.02% male to 25.98% female. The Company
adheres to fair and non-discriminatory employment principles and complies with
Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees and the Law of the PRC
on the Protection of Women's Rights to ensure equal pay for equal work regardless
of gender and secure the legal rights and interests of female employees. Hence, the
Company considers that gender diversity has been achieved.

Independent Non-Executive Directors exercise no management functions in the Group.
Although all the Directors have equal responsibility for the performance of the Group,
the roles of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are particularly important in
ensuring that the strategies proposed by Management are fully discussed and rigorously
examined and take into account the long-term interests of not only the shareholders,
but also of the employees, customers, suppliers and the communities in which the
Group conducts its business. In addition, the roles of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are particularly important in reviewing the performance of Management in
achieving agreed goals and objectives and monitoring the reporting of performance. The
NC considers its Independent Non-Executive Directors to be of sufficient calibre and
size and their views to be of sufficient weight such that no individual or small group of
individuals dominates the Board's decision-making process.

The Company co-ordinates informal meeting sessions, led by the Lead Independent
Non-Executive Director, for the Independent Non-Executive Directors to meet on
a need-basis without the presence of the Management, as appropriate, to discuss
matters such as the Group's financial performance, corporate governance initiatives,
Board processes, succession planning as well as leadership development and the
remuneration of the Executive Directors. The Lead Independent Non-Executive Director
will provide feedback and recommendations to the Chairman of the Board after such
meetings, as appropriate.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle 3: There is a clear division of responsibilities between the
leadership of the Board and Management, and no one individual has
unfettered powers of decision-making.

The Company practices a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the CEQ. This ensures an appropriate balance of power between the Chairman and CEO
and thereby allows for increased accountability and greater capacity of the Board for
independent decision making. Mr. Zhou Yuding is the Chairman of the Board and an
Executive Director of the Company. He leads and ensures effective and comprehensive
Board's communication on matters brought to the Board including strategic issues as
well as business planning.

The Board is responsible for overseeing our overall policies, strategies and objectives,
key operational initiatives, performance and measurement, internal controls and risk
management, major funding and investment proposals, financial performance reviews
and corporate governance practices. Approval of our Board is required for such matters
including but not limited to corporate restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments and divestments, material acquisitions and disposals of assets, major
corporate policies on key areas at operations, share issuance, dividend and other
returns to shareholders, acceptances of bank facilities, annual budget and release of the
Group's financial results.

Mr. Ji Guanglin is the CEO and he oversees the merger and acquisition related matters
of the Group and overall management of the Group's strategy, business, operation,
administration and financial matters. The Chairman of the Board and CEQ are not
related to each other.

The responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board include:

e Scheduling of meetings to enable the Board to perform its duties responsibly
while not interfering with the flow of the Group’s operations;

e  Ensuring that Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information, and
ensuring effective communication with shareholders;

e Ensuring the Group's compliance with the Code and the HK CG Code;

e Acting in the best interest of the Group and of the shareholders;

e Ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings;

e Providing leadership for the Board. The chairman should ensure that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. The chairman should
be primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board
meeting. He should take into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed
by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman may delegate
this responsibility to a designated Director or the Company Secretary;
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e Taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established;

e Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board's
affairs and taking the lead to ensure that it acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman should encourage Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensure that
Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

° Holding meetings annually with the Non-Executive Directors (including
Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the presence of the Executive
Directors;

e Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are communicated to the Board as a whole; and

e Promoting a culture of openness and debating by facilitating the effective
contribution of Non-Executive Directors in particular and ensuring constructive
relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Company Secretaries may be called to assist the Chairman of the Board in any of
the above.

In view of the fact that the Chairman of the Board is not independent, the Board has
appointed Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming as the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director
to co-ordinate and to lead the Independent Non-Executive Directors to provide a
non-executive perspective and contribute to a balance of viewpoints on the Board. She
is the main liaison on Board issues between the Independent Non-Executive Directors
and the Chairman of the Board. She is available to shareholders where they have
concerns and for which contact through the normal channels of the Chairman of the
Board, CEQ, Finance Director, or the Management are inappropriate or inadequate.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors, led by the Lead Independent Non-Executive
Director, meet amongst themselves without the presence of the other Directors, where
necessary, and the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director will provide feedback to
the Chairman of the Board after such meetings, as appropriate. The Chairman of the
Board, the CEO and other Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.
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Board Membership

Principle 4: The Board has a formal and transparent process for the
appointment and re-appointment of directors, taking into account the need

for progressive renewal of the Board.

Nomination Committee

The NC comprises the following members:
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming (Chairlady of the NC) (appointed on 29 April 2024)

Mr. Zhong Ming
Mr. An Hongjun

The Chairlady of the NC and all its members are considered independent pursuant
to the definition of the independent under the Code, Listing Manual of the SGX-ST
and Hong Kong Listing Rules. The Chairlady of the NC, Dr. Pun, is also the Lead

Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.

The NC's role is to establish a formal and transparent process for:

Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on all candidates
nominated for appointment and re-appointment to the Board of the Company and
of its subsidiaries;

Reviewing and recommending to the Board on an annual basis, the Board
structure, size and composition, taking into account, the balance between
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors to ensure that the Board as a whole possesses the right blend of
relevant experiences and core competencies to effectively manage the Company;

Procuring that at least one-third of the Board shall comprise of Independent Non-
Executive Directors;

Identifying and making recommendations to the Board as to which Directors
are to retire by rotation and to be put forward for re-election at each AGM of the
Company, having regard to the Directors’ contribution and performance, including
the Independent Non-Executive Directors;

Reviewing the Board succession plans for Directors, in particular the appointment
and/or replacement of the Chairman, the CEO and key management personnel and
the progressive renewal of the Board;

Assessing the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and
Proposing a set of objective performance criteria to the Board for approval and

implementation, to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution of each Director to the effectiveness of the Board.
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The NC is responsible for identifying and recommending new Directors to the Board,
after considering the necessary and desirable competencies. In selecting potential new
Directors, the NC will seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board
to fulfil its responsibilities and taking into account the nomination policy which sets
out the procedures and criteria for the selection, appointment and re-appointment of
the Directors. In accordance with the nomination policy, in evaluating and selecting
any candidate for directorship, the NC shall consider (i) the candidates’ character
and integrity; (ii) professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience,
independence, (iii) diversity on the Board, (iv) willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a Board member; and (v) such other criteria that are appropriate to
the business of the Group.

Where the NC has identified a potential new Director and considered him/her
appropriate taking into account the criteria above-mentioned, the NC may propose to
the Board or offer for nomination by a Shareholder as a nominee for election to the
Board by submitting the candidate’s personal profile to the Board for consideration. The
Board may appoint the candidate as Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board or recommend such candidate to the Shareholders for election or re-election
(as the case may be) at general meeting.

The NC may engage consultants to undertake research on, or assess, candidates
applying for new positions on the Board, or to engage such other independent experts,
as it considers necessary to carry out its duties and responsibilities including skills,
experience, diversity of background, gender, age, ethnicity and other relevant factors
which will be considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

Recommendations for new Directors are put to the Board for its consideration. New
Directors are appointed by way of a Board resolution following which they are subject
to re-election at the next AGM.

The Company’s Constitution requires one-third of the Board to retire by rotation at every
AGM. Directors who retire are eligible to offer themselves for re-election. Pursuant
to Regulation 97 of the Company's Constitution, Directors of the Company who were
newly appointed by the Board since the last AGM will have to retire at the forthcoming
AGM. Each member of the NC shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in respect to
his re-nomination as a Director.

For the financial year under review, the NC is of the view that the Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company are independent (as defined in the Code and
the Hong Kong Listing Rules) and are able to exercise judgment on the corporate affairs
of the Group independent of the Management. The NC has received annual confirmation
of independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, each
confirming that he does not have any relationship which may affect his independence as
provided under Provision 4.4 of the Code and the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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During the FY2024, the NC held 1 meeting to, among others, (i) review the structure,
size and diversity of the Board; (ii) assess the independence of the INEDs; (iii) review
the policy of the Board on diversity and measurable objectives for implementing such
policy and the progress on achieving the objectives; (iv) make recommendation to the
Board for the appointment of new Directors; and (v) make recommendation to the Board
for the re-election of retiring Directors at the FY2024 AGM.

The NC has recommended to the Board that Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming, Mr. An Hongjun,
Mr. Zhong Ming, Mr. Ji Guanglin and Mr. Wang Xiwang be nominated for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM. The Board has accepted the NC's recommendations.

Please refer to pages 78 to 96 of this report for the detailed information required
pursuant to Rule 720(6) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual.

Despite some of the Directors having other board appointments, the NC is satisfied that
these Directors are able to and have adequately carried out their duties as Directors of
the Company. Currently, the Board has not determined the maximum number of listed
board representations which any Director may hold. The NC and the Board will review
the requirement to determine the maximum number of listed board representations as
and when it deems fit.

There is no alternate director being appointed to the Board during FY2024.

The key information regarding the Directors such as academic and professional
qualifications, Board Committees served, directorships or chairmanships both present
and past held over the preceding three years in other listed companies and other major
appointments, whether the appointment is executive or non-executive are set out on
pages 70 to 77 of this Annual Report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under
the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Board Performance

Principle 5: The Board undertakes a formal annual assessment of its
effectiveness as a whole, and that of each of its hoard committees and
individual directors.

While the Code recommends that the NC be responsible for recommending for the
Board's approval the objective performance criteria and process for assessing the
Board as a whole and each of its Board Committees and also assessing the individual
gvaluation of each Directors’ contribution, the NC is of the view that it is more
appropriate and effective to assess the Board as a whole and its Board Committees,
bearing in mind that each member of the Board and the Board Committees contributes
in different ways to the success of the Company and Board and Board Committees
decisions are made collectively.
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The NC has implemented a process for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a
whole and each Board Committee respectively. Each Director is required to complete
the Board Evaluation Forms adopted by the NC and the Board Committees’ Evaluation
Forms adopted by the AC, NC and RC, which would then be collated by the NC
Chairman for review or discussion. The NC focuses on a set of performance criteria
which includes the evaluation of the size and composition of the Board and its Board
Committees, the access to information, processes and accountability, performance
in relation to discharging its principal responsibilities and the Directors™ standards
of conduct, in assessing the Board's performance as a whole and the performance of
the Board Committees. Following the review, the Board is of the view that the Board
and Board Committees operate effectively and each Director is contributing to the
effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees due to the active participation
of each member during each meeting. No external facilitator was used during the
gvaluation process in FY2024.

The Board and the NC have endeavoured to ensure that the Directors appointed to the
Board possess the relevant experience, knowledge and expertise critical to the Group’s
business. Although the Directors are not evaluated individually, the performance of the
Directors is evaluated using agreed criteria, aligned as far as possible with appropriate
corporate objectives. The criteria include short-term and long-term measures and
cover financial and non-financial performance indicators such as the strength of his
experience and stature, and his contribution to the proper guidance of the Group and its
businesses.

REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 6: The Board has a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on director and executive remuneration, and for fixing
the remuneration packages of individual directors and key management
personnel. No director is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

Remuneration Committee

The RC comprises the following members:

Mr. Zhong Ming (Chairman of the RC)

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming (appointed on 29 April 2024)
Mr. An Hongjun

Mr. Zhou Yuding (appointed on 23 February 2024)

The RC comprises four (4) members, three (3) of whom (including the Chairman of
the RC) are independent. Mr. Zhou Yuding, the Chairman of the Board and Executive
Director of the Company, is a member of the RC. Although the Code provides that the
RC should comprise entirely of non-executive directors, the majority of whom, including
the Chairman of the RC should be independent, the Board is of the view that Mr. Zhou
Yuding should be a member of the RC. Mr. Zhou Yuding has extensive knowledge and
experience in China and he is well-placed to advise on remuneration packages of the
key management personnel who are largely based in China. Hence, the inclusion of Mr.
Zhou Yuding as a member of the RC is considered beneficial to the Group.
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The RC recommends to the Board a framework for the remuneration of the Directors
and key management personnel which is in line with the market in order to attract,
motivate and retain talented individuals. The RC has full authority to engage external
professional advice on matters relating to remuneration as and when the need arises.
The Company did not engage any remuneration consultant during FY2024. The RC has
full responsibility for ensuring the transparency and accountability of remuneration
framework. No Director or any of his associates and key management personnel are
involved in any decision-making relating to his own remuneration or compensation
packages.

The key duties of the RC, inter alia, are:

e To review and submit its recommendations for endorsement by the Board, a
framework of remuneration and the specific remuneration packages and terms
of employment (where applicable) for each Director (including CEO) and key
management personnel in consultation with the Chairman of the Board;

e To review the remuneration packages of Non-Executive Directors which should be
appropriate to the level of contribution, taking into account factors such as effort
and time spent, and responsibilities of the Directors;

e To review the remuneration packages of the Directors and key management
personnel which should be comparable within the industry and in comparable
companies and shall include a performance-related element coupled with
appropriate and meaningful measures of assessing individual Directors’ and key
management personnel’s performance;

e To review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors and Senior
Management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

e To review and approve compensation arrangements (if any) relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate, in the interest of
the Company;

e To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration;

e To review and approve annually the total remuneration of the Directors and
key management personnel with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

e To review and submit its recommendations for endorsement by the Board, any
long-term incentive schemes which may be set up from time to time and to do all

acts necessary in connection therewith; and

e To review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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In reviewing the service agreements of the Executive Directors and key management
personnel of the Company, the RC will review the Company’s obligations arising
in the event of termination of these service agreements, to ensure that such service
agreements contain fair and reasonable termination clauses and which are not overly
generous. The RC aims to be fair and avoids rewarding poor performance.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 7: The level and structure of remuneration of the Board and key
management personnel are appropriate and proportionate to the sustained
performance and value creation of the company, taking into account the
strategic objectives of the company.

The RC will take into account the industry norms, the Group’s performance as well
as the contribution and performance of each Director when determining remuneration
packages.

The remuneration for the Executive Directors and certain key management personnel
comprises fixed and variable components. The variable component (cash-based
bonus) is performance related and is linked to the Group’s performance as well as the
performance of each individual Executive Director and key management personnel.

The Company does not have any share scheme under Chapter 17 of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

During FY2024, 1 RC meeting was held whereat the RC (i) reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration of the remuneration packages of each of the Executive
Directors and the Senior Management with reference to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Executive Directors and the
Senior Management and performance of the Group; and (ii) recommended to the Board
for consideration the remuneration package of each of the new Directors appointed
during FY2024.

Directors’ fees will be paid or payable to the Independent Non-Executive Directors and
certain Executive Directors in accordance with their contributions, taking into account
factors such as effort and time spent, responsibilities of the Directors and the need
to pay competitive fees to attract, retain and motivate the Directors. The Independent
Non-Executive Directors are not over-compensated to the extent that their independence
may be compromised. The Directors’ fees are endorsed by the RC and recommended by
the Board for shareholders” approval at the AGM of the Company.

The Company does not use contractual provisions to allow the Company to reclaim
incentive components of remuneration from Executive Directors and key management
personnel in exceptional circumstances of misstatement of financial results, or of
misconduct resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Executive Directors owe a
fiduciary duty to the Company. The Company should be able to avail itself to remedies
against the Executive Directors in the event of such breach of fiduciary duties.
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Disclosure on Remuneration

Principle 8: The company is transparent on its remuneration policies, level
and mix of remuneration, the procedure for setting remuneration, and the
relationships between remuneration, performance and value creation.

The Company's remuneration policy is to reward the performance of, attract, and retain
and motivate the Directors and key management personnel. The RC will take into
consideration the industry norms, the Group’s performance as well as the performance
of each Director and key management personnel when determining the remuneration
packages. The RC will review the remuneration packages for the Directors and key
management personnel from time to time, where it deems appropriate.

(@) The details of the remuneration of Directors of the Company disclosed in bands
for services rendered during FY2024 are as follows:

MR

FRIS : ZXFEFMBR - FHKFERMEE -
FHREEFLURGH RUARBEELEHR
EREREES -
ARAFMERRE ERE  RBELABDESZR
TEERAR  URARRETER - NHEE
FMEEE  FMRZEERZTRXARE A
SERANZRESRIZEEEABNERR - %
MZEERRERBEINER  THENE
ERTRERABMFTMEE -

(@) M20248F - ARAEZHEAMRERY
KRB FHMA S REREREOFEOT

Remuneration band

Number of Directors of the Company

FMEE FATEEHA
Below $$250,000 11
{E74250,000%7 T 11
Fees Salary Bonus Benefits Total
e e el & &t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Directors BEE PN: IN: N - IN: - IN:
Mr. Zhou Yuding®™ BPREED 456,877 - - - 456,877
Mr. Ji Guanglin® REMEED 116,044 566,667 - 244 202 926,913
Mr. Wang Xiwang® ITHRERED 116,044 283,330 - 134,085 533,459
Mr. Zhu Dazhi® RRAFED 151,806 - - - 151,806
Mr. Xu Xiaobing® fREKELED 151,806 - - - 151,806
Mr. Jiang Kai® BiEk4O 151,806 - - - 151,806
Mr. Yang Xing BE A 267,120 - - - 267,120
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming® S&&IE{E+0 323,171 - - - 323,171
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang® BARK LS 167,096 - - - 167,096
Mr. An Hongjun TAE LA 454,104 - - - 454,104
Mr. Zhong Ming BT 427 392 - - - 427,392
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Mr. Zhou Yuding was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and an Executive
Director on 23 February 2024.
Mr. Ji Guanglin was appointed as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Wang Xiwang was appointed as an Executive Director on 26 July 2024.

Mr. Zhu Dazhi resigned as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 26

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming was appointed as the Lead Independent Non-Executive

@)
on 26 July 2024.
3)
4)
July 2024.
(5)  Mr. Xu Xiaobing resigned as an Executive Director on 26 July 2024.
(6)  Mr. Jiang Kai resigned as an Executive Director on 26 July 2024,
()
Director on 29 April 2024.
(8)

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang retired as the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director on 29
April 2024.

The details of the remuneration of 6 key management personnel (who are not the
Directors or the CEO and substantial shareholders of the Company) identified
by the Company disclosed in bands for services rendered during FY2024 are as

8)

ETRELENR2024F2A23REZER
EZRIRRUTES

REM T ER2024F7 H26 B EZER
RITEEREFERTE °

TARLREN2024ETA26REZER
HITEZE -

RRIRFEER2024F7 A 26 HEHERTT
EZRAFERTE -

HRERIKEAER 202457 426 B BHEHT
Ex-

BIERER2024F7 A26 HEBHEWMITE
£

ERIEHLN2024F4A29BEZER
BERBUFHNITES -

BARKEER2024F4A29RBEER
BUFHITES -

R20248 F - ARASNATBEREME
(YHEFRERFRTERARATIER
R) LA PRRR A RIS MR KO BT ML 2 B

follows: ERBENFEAT
Fees Salary Bonus Benefits Total
e e E(318 E# et
Relevant Key Management
Personnel of the Company SO EREIEEEBRA % % % % %
$$250,000 to S$500,0000 250,000%7 7 E500,000%7 7T
Xu Xiaoging RE - 40% 40% 20% 100%
Below $$250,000 {E1#250,000% T
Yang Anyuan B&R 66% 0% 34% 100%
Li Kaibing® FHE 66% 0% 34% 100%
Qin Feng Rl 72% 0% 28% 100%
Qiu Yihua ez 68% 0% 32% 100%
Tang Congliang®@ Efz@ 92% 0% 8% 100%

(1) Mr. Li Kaibing was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of the Group on 6

November 2024.

(2)  Mr. Tang Congliang resigned as the Chief Financial Controller of the Group on 15

February 2024.
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For FY2024 the aggregate total remuneration paid/payable to the relevant key
management personnel (who are not Directors or the CEQ and substantial
shareholders of the Company) amounted to RMB3,367,557, equivalent to
SGD630,345.

In view of confidentiality of remuneration matters, the Board is of the opinion that
it is in the best interests of the Group not to disclose the exact remuneration of
the key management personnel in the Annual Report and that the disclosure based
on the above remuneration bands is appropriate.

For FY2024, there were no terminations, retirement or post-employment benefits
granted to Directors and relevant key management personnel other than the
standard contractual notice period and termination payment in lieu of service.

There were no employees who were substantial shareholders (hereinunder has
the meaning ascribed to it under the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong
Listing Rules) of the Company, immediate family members of a Director, CEQ or
substantial shareholders of the Company, in the Group’s employment during the
financial year under review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Controls

Principle 9: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and
ensures that Management maintains a sound system of risk management
and internal controls, to safeguard the interests of the company and its
shareholders.

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and the overall internal control
framework, but acknowledges that no cost-effective internal control system will preclude
all errors and irregularities. The system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The internal controls in place
will address the financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks
and the objectives of these controls are to provide reasonable assurance that there are
no material financial misstatements or material loss, there are maintenance of proper
accounting records, financial information are reliable, and assets are safeguarded.

The Company has established a RIMC to oversee the Group's overall risk management
framework and ESG matters, and to advise the Board on the Group’s risk related
matters, investment management and ESG's performance and reporting. The RIMC
reports directly to the Board.
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Risk and Investment Management Committee

The RIMC comprises the following members:
Mr. Ji Guanglin (Chairman of the RIMC) (appointed on 26 July 2024)

Mr. Zhou Yuding (appointed on 23 February 2024)
Mr. Wang Xiwang (appointed on 26 July 2024)
Mr. Yang Anyuan

Ms. Xu Xiaoging

The RIMC and Management are responsible for designing, implementing and
monitoring the risk management and internal control systems within the Group on an
ongoing basis ensuing that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems has been conducted at least annually. Management
regularly reviews the Group’s business and operational activities to identify areas at
significant risks as well as appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
Any significant matters are highlighted to the Board and the AC for their deliberation.

During FY2024, in addition to the work carried out by external auditors and internal
auditors, the Group had processes in place supporting the framework that enables
Management to address the financial, operational, compliance and information
technology controls of the key business units. The processes involve the identification
of major risks through risk discussion sessions and control self-assessments by the
Group's major business units, where the business units' key financial, operational,
compliance and information technology control risks, as well as mitigation measures,
were summarised for review by the Management, the internal auditors and the Board.
The conduct of risk discussion sessions also serves to heighten the risk awareness
for staff at the middle management level. The documentation provided also gives
an overview of the Group’s key risks, how they are managed, and the key personnel
responsible for each identified risk type and the various assurance mechanisms in
place. In relation to the key risks being identified, the Company has taken steps to
address and implement the relevant controls and mitigating measures where applicable
and necessary to ensure that the Group’s key risks are being managed adequately and
effectively.

Key initiatives will be progressively implemented.

To ensure that internal controls are adequate and effective, the AC is assisted by various
independent professional service providers. The assistance of the internal auditors
enabled the AC to carry out assessments of the effectiveness of key internal controls
during the year. Any material non-compliance or weaknesses in internal controls or
recommendations from the internal auditors and external auditors to further improve
the internal controls were reported to the AC. The AC will also follow up on the actions
taken by the Management on the recommendations made by the internal auditors and
external auditors. Based on the reports submitted by the internal and external auditors
received by the AC and the Board, nothing material has come to the attention of the AC
and the Board to cause the AC and the Board to believe that the internal controls are
not satisfactory for the type and size of business conducted.
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The Directors have received the representation letters from the EC, CEO, Finance
Director and Management of the key business units in relation to the financial
information for FY2024. Associates and joint ventures which the Company does not
control are not dealt with for the purposes of this statement. The EC, CEO, and Finance
Director have assured the Board that:

(a)  The financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements
for FY2024 give a true and fair view of the Company’s operations and finances;
and

(b) The Group’s internal control and risk management systems are adequate
and operating effectively in all material respects given its current business
environment.

Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Group, work
performed by the internal auditors and external auditors, reviews performed and
representations made by Management, and the documentation on the Group’s key risks
referred to above, the Board with the concurrence of the AC, is of the opinion that the
Group’s internal controls and risk and investment management systems are adequate
and effective in addressing the financial, operational, compliance and information
technology control risks of the Group as at 31 December 2024.

With the assessment of the Company and the Management, the Board and the AC
confirmed that there has been no exposure to sanctions-related risks through various
means. If there is any exposure to sanctions-related risks, the Company would
announce with appropriate details pursuant to the SGX-ST Listing Manual.

The Directors are aware of the requirements under the applicable regulations,
including Part 12 of the Singapore Securities and Futures Act 2001 of Singapore, the
SGX-ST Listing Rules, Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Hong Kong Listing Rules for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. All the inside information identified by the
Directors shall be published and disclosed to the public in a timely manner through the
Company’s publications and communications, unless the information falls within safe
harbours as prescribed in the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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The RIMC is also delegated by the Board and responsible for ESG matters. Comment,
with the necessary support from the RIMC, on the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal controls including financial, operational, compliance and information
technology controls and risk management systems in the Company’s annual report,
including the Board's opinion on the internal controls pursuant to Rule 1207(10) of the
SGX-ST Listing Rules. In addition, the RIMC is also responsible for supervising the
implementation of the Group’s ESG management policies, strategies and objectives and
reviewing their achievement, reviewing and confirming important ESG issues (including
relevant risks), and reporting to the Board.

The key duties of the RIMC in relation to the ESG, inter alia, are:

To set out and review the management approaches, targets and strategies of ESG
of the Company;

e To review and confirm the priority of ESG matters, and report to the Board for
approval;

e To identify risks and opportunities of the Company in the ESG matters, review the
performance of the Company against the relevant risks, and report to the Board
for review;

e To monitor and comment the ESG works, examine and monitor the performance
and progress of ESG related targets, and report to the Board for review; and

e Review the Company's compliance of ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix
C2 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules, review the Company’s annual ESG report, and
report to the Board for review and approval.

Audit Committee

Principle 10: The Board has an Audit Commitiee which discharges its
duties objectively.

Audit Committee

The AC comprises the following members:

Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman of the AC)

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming (appointed on 29 April 2024)
Mr. Zhong Ming

All the members of the AC, including the Chairman of the AC are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Company has adopted and has complied with the
principles of corporate governance under the Code and the HK CG Code in relation to
the roles and responsibilities of the AC.
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In line with the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the Board
provides a negative assurance statement to the shareholders in respect of the interim
financial statements. For the financial year under review, the EC and the Finance
Director have provided assurance to the Board on the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements.

The Management provides the Board with a continual flow of relevant information on
a timely basis in order that it may effectively discharge its duties. The Management
understands its role to provide all members of the Board with a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects.

The Board is of the view that the members of the AC are appropriately qualified, having
the necessary accounting or related financial management expertise to discharge their
responsibilities.

The AC, which has written terms of reference, performs the following delegated
functions:

(1) To review with the external auditors:

e the audit plan, including the nature and scope of the audit before the audit
commences;

e their audit report; and

e their management letters and the Management's response.

(2)  To discuss with the external auditors any problems or concerns arising from their
agreed-upon procedures, interim and final audits, and any other matters which
the external auditors may wish to discuss;

(3)  To ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

(4) To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control (including
financial, operational, compliance, information technology controls and risk
management) systems established by Management to identify, assess, manage,
and disclose financial and non-financial risks;

(5) To monitor the scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually and give
recommendations to the Board and the Company in a general meeting regarding
the appointment, re-appointment or removal of the external auditors;

(6) To review and ensure that the assurance has been received from the EC (or
equivalent) and the CFO (or equivalent) in relation to the interim/full year
unaudited financial statement;

(7)  To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the
internal auditors and external auditors and the Management;
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(8) To review the quarterly, half-yearly and full year financial statements of the (8) HEHALNARAEEBRE IR RHE
Company and of the Group, including announcements relating thereto, to BOMUNEE - FEREFUBRE
shareholders, the SGX-ST and HKEXnews, and thereafter to submit them to the (BEHEBAS)  HEBZRXEZ2M
Board for approval; B

(9) To review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the SGX- 9) EBHENZEEALRZ (EEAFXA
ST Listing Manual) and the connected transactions/continuing connected (ETFM)EIE) RBER S /HER
transactions (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules) and BRS (EEABB(LEMRY)E+TA
report its findings to the Board; ) URRNESCERSE

(10) To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board (10) AEEZQAEERIZECNHERAE
or as the Committees may consider appropriate; ENEMEMEEAERIER

(11) To develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply non- (11) #IE RITREEINERZ SRR AU SR - PRt
audit services: JEEET IR

(12) To consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal control (12) TEHEEECHNZR  EHRKERE
matters as delegated by the Board or on the committee's own initiative, as well as RAHEREEMNEEAEHERERE
management’s response to these findings; HAEERNEIEETHR

(13) To ensure internal audit function is adequately resourced, independent of the (13) BRAFEABAEEERDNER - Faf
activities it audits and has appropriate standing within the Company; B MR RARMMEE

(14) To review the external auditor's management letter in order to assess whether it (14) BEIMNEZERMOEEEEHNRT @ WUiT
is based on a good understanding of the Company's business, and monitor the HREERHN AN ERNRITER 2
responsiveness of Management to the recommendations made (or the reasons LEH®  VAEEEREHRNAEER
why they have not been acted upon):; HEE (REEEEBITAREENRA)

(15) To report to the Board on the matters in the HK CG Code; (15) B(BEACEELRTIANEEMNESEE

1R

(16) To review arrangements which employees of the Group can use, in confidence, to (16) BAAKERENUTZH - XEEEE
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control AR BER ALy EaAm
or other matters; to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and AEEMNTEETRAREAL - Z82
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up actions; BEREEERH BAEEHKEER

EHAFBIMAE RFIEETE

(17) To oversee the Company's relations with the external auditors; (17) EEBARABEINEZEE 2 MRBE

(18) To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law or by (18) AEEE  HIRACETFM B B(L
the SGX-ST Listing Manual or by the Hong Kong Listing Rules, as amended from MRADRTE (AITEEL) B BE MR
time to time; and B

(19) To evaluate the external auditor's independence. (19) FHEINEZBERRBILIE -

Apart from the duties listed above, the AC is given the task of commissioning B EXFIBEN  BAZESNEENEL

investigations into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of AR H AN AL EEE R BERREREKR

FENRRNFRERAAMEERRABERL
EER - RAKRPINEERABE - L
AHER -

internal controls or infringement of any law, rule or regulation which has or is likely to
have a material impact on the Company’s operating results or financial position, and to
review its findings.
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In October 2015, the ACRA introduced the Audit Quality Indicators (“AQls”) Disclosure
Framework (“Framewaork”), which aims, to equip the AC with information that allows
the AC to exercise their professional judgements on elements that contribute to or are
indicative of audit quality. The AQIs were further enhanced in August 2016 which ACRA
introduced six targets on selected AQIs to provide the AC with a common yardstick for
comparison and to facilitate meaningful audit quality conversations with the auditors.
As part of ongoing efforts to raise audit quality, ACRA has on 7 February 2020
introduced the AQIs Disclosure Framework that revised in January 2020 (“Revised
AQls Framework”). The Revised AQls Framework comprises audit quality indicators
to provide relevant and useful information to help the AC in their evaluation of statutory
auditors. Accordingly, the AC had evaluated the performance of the external auditors as
well as the resolution for reappointment of the external auditors based on the AQls set
out in the Revised AQls Framework.

The AC has full access to and has the co-operation of the Management, and has
been given the resources required for it to discharge its function properly. It has full
discretion to invite any Director or Executive Officer to attend its meetings. The AC
recommends to the Board on the proposals to the shareholders on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors and approves the remuneration of
the external auditors. The AC has recommended to the Board that Deloitte & Touche
LLP be nominated for the re-appointment as external auditors of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM.

The AC will meet with the external auditors and internal auditors without the presence
of the Management to discuss audit fees, review the adequacy of audit arrangement,
with emphasis on the scope and quality of their audit, the independence, objectivity and
observations of the external auditors and internal auditors, and any other matters the
auditors may wish to raise.

In the review of the financial statements for FY2024, the AC had discussed with
the Management and the external auditors on changes to accounting standards and
significant issues and assumptions that impact the financial statements. The most
significant matters had also been included in the Independent Auditor's Report to the
members of the Company under “Key Audit Matters”. Following the review, the AC is
satisfied that those matters, including service concession arrangements and revenue
recognition, had been properly dealt with. The Board had approved the financial
statements.

The AC meets with the external auditors without the presence of the Management
and conducts a review of all non-audit services provided by the auditors on annual
basis and is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice
the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. Fees paid or payable by
the Group to the external auditors (and member firms) of the Company for non-audit
services and audit services for FY2024 amounted to RMB1,260,000 and RMB8,196,000
respectively. For details on the non-audit services, please refer to the section headed
“Directors” Statement — 12 Auditors” in this annual report. The Company has complied
with Rules 712 and 715 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and Rule 13.88 of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules in relation to the engagement of its auditors.
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The Group has implemented a fraud and whistle blowing policy which sets out the
procedures for a whistleblower to make a report to the Company on misconduct or
wrongdoing relating to the Company and its officers. Accessible channels are provided
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting or other matters which they become aware of and to ensure that:

(i) independent investigations are carried out in an appropriate and timely manner;

(ii) appropriate action is taken to correct the weakness in internal controls and
policies which allowed the perpetration of fraud and/or misconduct and to prevent
a recurrence;

(iii) all reports/concerns raised including the identity of the complainant will be
treated with private and confidential; and

(iv) administrative, disciplinary, civil and/or criminal actions that are initiated
following the completion of investigations are appropriate, balanced and fair,
while providing reassurance that employees will be protected from reprisals or
victimisation for whistle blowing in good faith and without malice.

The AC is responsible for oversight and monitoring of whistleblowing.

As at the date of this Annual Report, there were no reports received through the whistle
blowing mechanism.

The AC is kept updated annually or from time to time on any changes to the accounting
and financial reporting standards by the external auditors.

The AC does not comprise former partners or directors of the Company's existing
auditing firm or auditing corporation: (a) within a period of two years commencing on
the date of their ceasing to be a partner of the auditing firm or director of the auditing
corporation; and in any case, (b) for as long as they have any financial interest in the
auditing firm or auditing corporation.

Internal Audit Function

The Group outsources its internal audit functions to Messrs PwC Risk Services Pte Ltd
(“Internal Auditor”), who has the primary reporting line to the AC. In accordance with
the annual internal audit plan approved by the AC, the Internal Auditor conducts internal
audit reviews of the Group to assist the Board and the AC to assess the effectiveness
of key internal controls, covering financial, operational and compliance risks on an
ongoing basis. Procedures are in place for the Internal Auditor to report independently
their findings and recommendations to the AC for review. The Management will update
the AC on the implementation status of the remedial action plans.

The Board recognises that it is responsible for maintaining a system of internal control
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s businesses and assets, while
the Management is responsible for establishing and implementing the internal controls
procedures in a timely and appropriate manner.
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The role of the Internal Auditor is to assist the AC in assessing if the internal controls
of the Group are adequate, effective and functioning as intended, to undertake
investigations as directed by the AC and to conduct regular risk-based audits covering
higher risk areas. The AC approves the appointment, removal, termination, evaluation
and compensation of the internal audit function. The Internal Auditor has unfettered
access to all the Company’s documents, records, properties and personnel, including
access to the AC and has appropriate standing within the Company.

The AC is satisfied that the internal audit function (i) is independent, (ii) effective,
(i) is adequately resourced, and (iv) is staffed by suitably qualified and experienced
professionals with the relevant experience.

The Internal Auditor is a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Singapore
(“lIA™), an internal professional association for internal auditors which has its
headquarters in the United States. The internal audit work carried out is guided by the
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing laid down in
the International Professional Practices Framework issued by the IIA. The AC would
annually review the independence, adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit
function of the Group.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND ENGAGEMENT
Shareholder Rights and Conduct of General Meeting

Principle 11: The company treats all shareholders fairly and equitably
in order to enable them to exercise shareholders’ rights and have
the opportunity to communicate their views on matters affecting the
company. The company gives shareholders a balanced an understandable
assessment of its performance, position and prospects.

The shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’'s general meetings to ensure
a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategies and
growth plans. Notice of the general meeting is dispatched to shareholders, together
with explanatory notes or a circular on items of special business (if necessary), at
least 21 clear days prior to any AGM or any extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
at which it is proposed to pass a special resolution or a resolution of which special
notice has been given to the Company; and 14 clear days' notice for all other EGMs
before the meeting. The Board welcomes questions from shareholders who wish to
raise issues, either informally or formally before or during the general meetings. The
Company will make available minutes of general meetings to shareholders upon their
request. Each item of special business included in the notice of the general meetings
will be accompanied by an explanation of the effects of a proposed resolution. Separate
resolutions are proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings.
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All Directors including the chairman of the AC, NC, RC, EC and RIMC are normally
present and available to address questions relating to the work of their respective
Board Committees at general meetings of the Company. In the absence of the chairman
of the AC, NC, RC, EC and RIMC, the Chairman of the Board would usually invite
another member of the committees or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to
attend. Furthermore, the external auditors are present to assist the Board in addressing
any relevant queries raised by the shareholders about the conduct of audit and the
preparation and content of the auditors™ report. The attendance of the Directors at
general meetings of the Company held during FY2024 is disclosed on page 34 of this
Annual Report.

Shareholders are informed of general meetings of the Company through the
announcement to be released to the SGX-ST via SGXNet, and HKEXnews and notices
to be contained in the Annual Report or circulars to be sent to all shareholders. These
notices are also advertised in a national newspaper in Singapore. All shareholders of
the Company are entitled to attend and are provided the opportunity to participate in the
general meetings of Company. The shareholders of the Company are also informed on
the poll voting procedures at the general meetings of the Company. If any shareholder
of the Company is unable to attend, he/she/it is allowed to appoint up to two proxies to
vote on his/her/its behalf at the general meeting of the Company through proxy forms
sent in advance. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. The instrument
appointing a proxy must be deposited at the place specified in the notice of the general
meetings not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for holding the
general meetings of the Company.

The Company's Constitution does not permit a shareholder of the Company who is not
a relevant intermediary or a clearing house (or its nominee(s)) to appoint more than two
proxies to attend, speak and vote at the same general meeting of the Company.

On 3 January 2016, the Singapore Companies Act was amended, among other things
to allow certain members, defined as a ‘relevant intermediary” to attend and participate
in general meetings without being constrained by the two-proxy requirement. Relevant
intermediary includes, amongst others, certain corporations holding licenses in
providing nominee and custodial services and the CPF Board which purchases shares
on behalf of CPF investors.

Provision 11.4 of the Code requires an issuer's Constitution to allow for absentia
voting at general meetings of shareholders. Voting by absentia by mail, facsimile or
email is currently not provided in the Company's Constitution as such voting methods
would need to be cautiously studied for its feasibility to ensure that the integrity of
the information and the authenticity of the shareholder's identity is not compromised.
The Company is of the view that despite Provision 11.4 of the Code, shareholders
nevertheless have opportunities to communicate their views on matters affecting the
Company even when they are not in attendance at general meetings. For example,
shareholders may appoint proxies to attend, speak and vote, on their behalf, at the
respective general meetings.
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The Company acknowledges that voting by poll in all its general meetings is integral in
the enhancement of corporate governance. The Company adheres to the requirements
of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Code and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, such that all
resolutions at the Company's general meetings held on or after 1 August 2015 are put
to vote by poll. The detailed results of each resolution are announced via SGXNet and
the HKEXnews after the general meetings. The Company had adopted electronic poll for
all the resolutions voted at the AGM held in FY2024.

The Constitution of the Company adopted by special resolution passed at the general
meeting of the Company on 28 April 2023 is available on the websites of the Company
at www.siicenv.com, the SGX-ST and the SEHK.

The Company will publish the minutes of general meetings of shareholders on the
websites of the SGX, the SEHK and the Company as soon as practicable but not later
than one month after the general meeting. In FY2024, the minutes of the AGM held on
29 April 2024 was published on the websites of the SGX, the SEHK and the Company
within one month thereafter.

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an EGM and EGMs shall also
be convened on such requisition deposited at the Company’s registered office (being
One Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower, Singapore 039192 as at the date of
this Annual Report) and addressed to the Company Secretaries or, in default, may
be convened by such requisitionists, including two or more shareholders holding a
minority stake in the Company which have shareholdings not less than 10.0% of the
total number of issued and paid-up shares (excluding treasury shares) as at the date
of the requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings. Such shareholders,
holding a minority stake in the Company not higher than 10.0% of the total number
of paid-up shares as at the date of the requisition carries the right of voting at general
meeting of the Company, may also add resolutions to the meeting agenda of a general
meeting. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a
quorum at a meeting of Directors, any Director may convene an EGM in the same
manner as nearly as possible as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Directors.

The form, frequency and amount of dividends declared each year will take into
consideration the Group's profit growth, cash position, positive cash flow generated
from operations, projected capital requirements for business growth and other factors
as the Board may deem appropriate.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of S$0.011 per ordinary share for FY2024
which is subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.
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2025 AGM Arrangement

Both Singapore and Hong Kong Shareholders are invited to attend and vote at the 2025
AGM in person.

For more information, please see the circular and notice of the 2025 AGM, as well as
the proxy form to be used for the 2025 AGM.

Engagement with Shareholders

Principle 12: The company communicates regularly with its shareholders
and facilitates the participation of shareholders during general meetings
and other dialogues to allow shareholders to communicate their views on
various matters affecting the company.

Accountability to our shareholders is demonstrated through the presentation of our
annual financial statements, quarterly results announcements and all announcements on
the Group’s business and operations.

The Company believes in high standards of transparent corporate disclosure and is
committed to make disclosures to its shareholders, the information in a timely and fair
manner via SGXNet and the HKEXnews. Communication is mainly made through: —

e Annual Reports that are prepared and available to all shareholders via the
Company's website, HKEXnews and SGXNet under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and the SGX-ST Listing Manual. The hardcopy of Annual Reports and/or Circular
(if applicable) would be (upon request) sent to the Hong Kong shareholders and
the Singapore shareholders. The Board ensures that the Annual Report includes
all relevant material information about the Company and the Group, including
future developments and other disclosures required by the Singapore Companies
Act, Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, Companies Ordinance of the Laws
of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Listing Rules; and

e Quarterly announcements containing a summary of the financial information and
affairs of the Group for that period.

The Company's website at www.siicenv.com is where our shareholders can access
financial information, corporate announcements, press releases, annual reports and
profile of the Group.

Other than the communication provided above, when necessary and appropriate, the
Company would arrange for the Management to meet with analysts and investors who
wish to seek a better understanding on the Group’s business operations. Through the
engagement in the meeting with analysts and investors, the Management is able to
solicit and understand the views and feedback from the investment community which
should provide valuable information to the Board on investors' views.
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By supplying shareholders with reliable and timely information, the Company is able to
strengthen the relationship with its shareholders based on trust and accessibility. The
Company has a team of investor relations (“IR”) personnel who focus on facilitating
the communications with all stakeholders — shareholders, analysts and media — on a
regular basis, to attend to their queries or concerns as well as to keep the investors
public apprised of the Group’s corporate developments and financial performance. The
Company does not practice selective disclosure. In line with the continuous obligations
of the Company under the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
the Board's policy is that all shareholders should equally and on a timely basis be
informed of all major developments that impact the Group. Price sensitive information
is first publicly released through SGXNet and the HKEXnews, before the Company
meets with any investors or analysts. All shareholders of the Company will receive the
notice of AGM by post and the hardcopy of the Annual Report and/or Circular (if any)
will be sent to the Hong Kong shareholders according to the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and to the Singapore shareholders upon request. The notice of AGM is also published
in the newspaper in Singapore within the mandatory period (i.e. save where a waiver is

obtained, the AGM is to be held within four months after the close of the financial year).

For enquiries about the Company’'s information, the shareholders may contact the
Company Secretaries, whose contacts are as follows:

Mr. Lee Wei Hsiung
Email address: leeweihsiung@incorp.asia

Mr. Man Yun Wah
Email address: guy.man@incorp.asia

or send enquiries in writing to the Company's registered office in Singapore at One
Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower, Singapore 039192 or the principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 1307A, 13/F., Two Harbourfront, 22 Tak Fung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Through the implementation of the policies abovementioned, the Company is of the
opinion that it has established appropriate and effective communication with the
Shareholders during FY2024 by, including but not limited to, holding annual general
meeting, establishing an email for the Shareholders submitting questions in relation
to resolutions to be tabled for approval at annual general meeting or the Company's
businesses and operations and establishing an email for investor inquiries.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

BRABRREHEAZLENER - KDA5
REEREB NG EABROBEE - ARRR
BREERA ([RREME ) EH - BHET
EINREEHERR - AR RERENRE
MaEfEENER RERSNRAIED
NERBRRARREENTARENORAERER
MBERR - ARATEETEEURE - AF
ABARBERHZACLT FM) REE(LTR
ANETzHESRY EFQURNEBRRT
FUVLRKESHYEAGBEIMBEARR -
ERGBRENGRALTEEFNREEXNIT
M ETHE 2 Al B LB BSGXNet R IR E 5B N 5
% - AR A2 EBRRIE AHES A WK
RBFRGRE  MERK,/ RBR(WF)H
HRASREEE(LTRADTETFEBRR
WRH IR R BRE T H TR IRBR « K
RBFERGBETREH SR (IR EE
Be) NIRRT B8 MRREFAER
RIABEFERERENEARNAR -

BREALDAEHNEN  RRAUBEQRW
£ HBEIAMT

TEERE
TEHAE ¢ leeweihsiung@incorp.asia

XEELE
ZE A guy.man@incorp.asia

FABE A E MR D B IR A
MM ER I REFRE - #37-02K5 85
B15R  AMINK039192 - AEB LT ELKME
Wi AEENEAHEEE22REERS B
131B1307A% o

BRBRLAIR - ARERA - ER20245
FREERREVEERARNER  BHEET
RREBFTERBAFAE RUETHAEBE
RXARAERRBEFAS LREFHEORE
RAARAXBRELNEE - TRIEKRE
ELANEFHMN -



MANAGING STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIPS
Engagement with Stakeholders

Principle 13: The Board adopts an inclusive approach by considering and
balancing the needs and interests of material stakeholders, as part of its
overall responsibility to ensure that the best interests of the company are
served.

The Company acknowledges the importance of establishing effective communication
among its stakeholders through regular engagement and various communication
platforms to achieve mutually beneficial goals. Ongoing communication with
stakeholders is an integral part of the Company’s day-to-day operations.
Communication channels such as meetings, interviews and surveys allow stakeholders
to express their ideas, opinions and suggestions to the Company.

The Company has identified six stakeholders' groups, namely, shareholders and
investors, government and regulators, business partners and suppliers, media,
customers and employees, who are able to impact the Group’s business and operations.
The Company had also undertaken a process to review its material ESG issues in line
with a review of the Group’s business strategy, regulatory changes and industry trends.
These ESG issues would form part of the consideration, which the targets, performance
and progress are reviewed and endorsed by the Board. More details of the ESG issues
would be disclosed in the Company's Sustainability Report, which would be released
via SGXNet and HKEXnews at the same time as the publication of this Annual Report.
The Company does not practice selective disclosure. Price sensitive information is
first publicly released through SGXNet and the HKEXnews. The Company’s financial
information, corporate announcements, press releases, Annual Reports and profile of
the Group can be accessed through the Company’s website at www.siicenv.com.
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DEALINGS IN COMPANY’S SECURITIES

In compliance with Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the Company had adopted a Code
of Best Practices on terms no less exacting than the SGX-ST Listing Manual and
the Model Code to provide guidance to its officers on securities transactions by the
Company and its officers.

The Company and its Officers are not allowed to deal in the Company’s securities (i)
during the period commencing two weeks before the announcement of the Company’s
financial statements for each of the first three quarters of its financial year and one
month before the announcement of the Company's full year financial statements (if
the Company announces its quarterly financial statements), or one month before
the announcement of the Company's half year and full year financial statements (if
the Company does not announce its quarterly financial statements) pursuant to Rule
1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual; and (ii) during the period commencing 30
days immediately before the announcement of the Company's quarterly results (if any)
and interim results and 60 days immediately before the announcement of the Company’s
full year results, and ending on the date of the announcement of the relevant results
pursuant to the Model Code.

The Directors, Management and executives of the Group are also expected to observe
relevant insider trading laws at all times, even when dealing in securities within
permitted trading periods, especially if they are in possession of material unpublished
price sensitive information of the Company. They are not allowed to deal in the
Company’s securities on short-term considerations.

Specific enquiry was made of all the Directors and the Directors confirmed that they had

complied with the SGX-ST Listing Manual and Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2024.
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F.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established a procedure for recording and reporting interested person
transactions (‘IPTs"). All IPTs are subject to review by the AC to ensure that they were
conducted on normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to the interests of the
Company and its minority shareholders. There were no IPTs between the Group and any
of its interested persons (namely, Directors, the CEO or controlling shareholders (as
defined in the SGX-ST Listing Manual) of the Group or the associates of such Directors,
CEQ or controlling shareholders) or any other connected person(s) of the Company
as defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules subsisting for FY2024, save for the

following:
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FCEMFM)) ZIZAFES - ERITE XIZR
BRROBEA) AERERE(LTRADARE
AR TEﬂﬁﬂﬂfﬁ‘@}\izFaﬂﬂ%#ﬁi&ﬁfﬂﬂ
BRGERALRS  ETIALRIN

Aggregate value of all
IPTs during the financial
year under review
(excluding transactions
less than $$100,000 and
transactions conducted
under shareholders’
mandate pursuant to
Rule 920 of the SGX-ST
Listing Manual)

Aggregate value of all
IPTs conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920
of the SGX-ST

Listing Manual
(excluding transactions
less than $$100,000)

Name of interested person Name of entity at risk Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REERBEENZBAE BREREATRERZH
MEALRS (FEEXARE (LHFM)FE2015ETH
{E74100,0005 THX AR ERFHNRREALES
BRERETREHTMR (FEEXAHEE
(LHFM) E205ETH {E74100,000%7 kY
X5 HRRE X5 MRRE
FHEREALRE ERERER RHLE AERTR AE®TR
Shanghai Canvest Environmental Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Provision of production service 39,5901 -0
Company Limited (“Canvest’) Environmental Resources to Baojingang
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Baoiingang")
PRESRZERAA ((HE])  ELEERARBERMEER MERRMEERS
R (fiﬁ!ﬂj)
Shanghai SIIC Property Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Provision of property 12,1680 -
Management Co., Ltd. Environmental Resources management service to
(“SIIC Property Management’)  Technology Co., Ltd. Baojingang
(“Baoiingang")
PREENEEEERAR DEIEERNRRERMAER MESMREDEERERERS
([LEMREE]) AR (fiﬁHlH)
Shanghai Cyber Galaxy Investment  Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Provision of management 5730 -0

Co., Ltd. ("Cyber Galaxy") Environmental Resources
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Baoiingang")
LERNEEREERAT LBLEENREEARMEAR

([EM®E]) T(fiﬁﬂﬂj)

service to Baojingang

MERBIREE

%
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Aggregate value of all

IPTs during the financial

year under review Aggregate value of all

(excluding transactions IPTs conducted under
less than $$100,000 and shareholders’ mandate
transactions conducted pursuant to Rule 920
under shareholders’ of the SGX-ST
mandate pursuant to Listing Manual

Rule 920 of the SGX-ST  (excluding transactions
Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)

Name of interested person Name of entity at risk Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REOBMBEENZBETE BRBEETREHTR
REALZR (FEEXHEE (EHFM)BE20/FETH
{E7100,000% THRX AR EPHNRREALES
BRERETRERTR (FEEXHEE
(EHFM)E201F:ETTH {E74100,000% TH
XH HRRE XH HRRE
FHEMEALER ERERER XRtR ARRFR ARRFR
SIIC Management (Shanghai) Limited  Fudan Water Engineering and Provision of consultation service 2,466 -0
Technology Co., Ltd.
EER (L8 BRA TEBEBKBIREMERAT  REZARE
Shangha| SIIC Property Shanghai Fengxian West Provision of security and 654 () -
Management Co., Ltd. Wastewater Treatment cleaning services
("SIIC Property Management’)  Co., Ltd.
e rENEERERAA TEEBRMTKERAERAR  REZRNMERRS
([LEmEEE))
Shanghai Guojin Financial Leasing  Ranhill (Nanchang) Sewage Provision of sale and lease 22,269 -
Co., Ltd. Treatment Co., Ltd back services
LB SREAREERAT BE(EmE) kERERRT R ERAE RS
Notes: Fisx

(1) The entities listed are subsidiaries of the Group.

(2)  There is no IPT mandate obtained from shareholders.

During FY2024, the Group had not conducted any connected transactions nor
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
which need to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. None of the related party transactions disclosed in this annual report fell
under the definition of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction in
Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no controlling shareholder had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for the
provision of services to the Company or not) to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during FY2024.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors or senior management
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during FY2024.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors or their connected entities
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisting during or at the end of FY2024.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company regularly reviews and improves its business and operational activities
to identify areas at significant business risks as well as to take appropriate measures
to control and mitigate these risks, with the support of AC and RIMC. The Company
reviews all significant control policies and procedures and highlights significant matters
to the AC and the Board. The significant risk management policies are disclosed in the
audited financial statements of this Annual Report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 40 to the accompanying financial statements and Section
(F) above, there were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its
subsidiaries during FY2024, or still subsisting as at 31 December 2024, which involved
the interests of the Chief Executive Officer, any Director or controlling shareholders (as
defined in the SGX-ST Listing Manual) of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Each of Mr. Lee Wei Hsiung and Mr. Man Yun Wah have been nominated by In.Corp
Corporate Services Pte. Ltd. and In.Corp Corporate Services (HK) Limited, respectively,
to each act as Company Secretary of the Company, and they have complied with the
requirements of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules by
receiving no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively. They
have been in contact with the Board and Mr. Zhu Yeliang, the Finance Director of the
Company directly in respect of company secretarial matters.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report, there had
not been any change in the Constitution of the Company. The Constitution of the
Company is available on the websites of the Company, the SGX-ST and the SEHK.

BRAFHRAREESN  R20248F - HRES
EEREEBRARA - HERAF -~ HE[
HWB AR XA AMB LR/ EHASE
BxBEm=BEANEINANTERIBER
BEA#E -

BRAFHAREESN  HEEFTAHHEE
20248 FRFRNEROEMEARS
FRANTERIEREFTEARES -

(i}
®
.
z

RpEEE
EEGZEEREARRREERZBEXR
T ARAIEH RS RREEEBREER
g UBRHEAXBRREELRIEZF
P RREZFRR - ARARAAEAE
HEEERRFEAEFZEEREFTERAE
AZH - BEARREEBRERAFHNEEYL
MBEHRRARE -

EXEW

FRBERS 2 AR5 R M L 40 ] B3 (F) BRI IR R
b RRBIEME AR ER 10202451 4
FR2024F 12 A1 BNABRE B RARFE
FHTE ENEERERRR (EERHXHM
(EmFM)) HEXRGH -

LERE
FRERXBERLECHHNAEREERBA
ROBREREERE (FR) BRARIREAE
ERARBENDENE  RESDRETHRA
(EMFM) REB(LTRADORELZ D
RIS R EREY - ®RE-ARAA
WEEKEREANAEZGRMBRERE
RAEEHE -

HMERXH

HE2024F12A3B LS ERBEARER
H ANFHBERYEENEY - ANFA
BERANRARF - HIRARE LR AAL
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Particulars of Directors Pursuant to the Code of Corporate Governance

RE(EREATABMBENEFER

Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment ~ Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBFIFEERM
REMEHARRE IHARREES
ERRREHT/ EEESZAGIRY EREEEEE L-X EERBRAMEE BEREMEERE
£33 BE/SEEE FUTER BR BEZAH EEEZAN BEER &R
Mr. Zhou Yuding Master's degree in Chairman of the Board ~ Chairman of the 23 February 29 April 2024 Shanghai Industrial Nil
(appointed on Management Information and Executive Executive Committes, 2024 Investment (Holdings)
23 February Systems from Fudan Director a member of Risk Co., Ltd.
2024) University and Investment
Management
Committee and
amember of
Remuneration
Committee
APREE(R2024 EEASERESZAETE EZETERUNEF HNZE8RFE BB AMUE2ABH  0UE4AVA LEEX(RH)ERL &
F2A23HEE fiz REEERZELH G
) SREMZEEMNE
Mr. Ji Guanglin o Master's degree in Law, Executive Directorand ~ Chairman of the Risk 26 July 2024 (To be re- Nil o Tianjin Capital
(appointed on Tsinghua University Chief Executive and Investment elected at the Environmental
26 July 2024) o Doctorate in Philosophy, Officer Management forthcoming Protection Group
Fudan University Committee and a 2025 AGM) Company Limited
e (hinese Lawyer member of Executive
Professional Qualification Committee
Certificate
BEHEE(R2024 o EERZZBBTEN  WOEERERYNE  ERLRAEEZEE  AMUETANE  (BRNDEEE & o REEXRREE
FTR6REE o EERZEERET IR HOEBEN REEFAE RAERAT
) o MEBMEZAREE g BEEf)

m 0
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment  Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEERM
REMEHLRRE IHARREES
EZRREUT/ HRERZRAGIRY EREZREF -2 ESMERAMTE REREMTERE
3.3 BE/BEEH FUITER BR REZEY BERZEN SRR iR
Mr. Wang Xiwang  Bachelor's degree in Law, Executive Director A member of the Risk 26 July 2024 (To be re- Nil Nil
(appointed on Nanjing Army Command and Investment elected at the
26 July 2024) Academy Management forthcoming
Committee and 2025 AGM)
Executive Committee
IRDEE(W2024 BRESEEFRZZEZE H1EF ERREEERZEEE  UETANE  (BRAXEERE & i
FT1R260 %S T2 NRTEEENE hREEAE
ff) ERET)
Mr. Yang Xing o Bachelor's degree in Executive Director - 20 October 29 April 2024 e (ECEP (Hong Kong)  Nil
Economics, Beihang 2023 Treasury Management
University Company Limited
o Master's degree in e CGarbon Reserve
Financial Management, Investments Limited
Beihang University e (ECEP Environmental
o Intermediate Economist Consulting Group Ltd
and the qualification of
Senior Information System
Project Manager
BR%E o IRMERAARLEE  H7ES - ABEF NUELANE o PEGEBER(EE) B
2180 107208 FEERERAR
o IRMEMANZSBE o FRREERAT
BEETE o EIEEAIERRR
o MRGEORENSAE AEEERAT

ERHERMER
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment ~ Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBFIFEERM
REMEGARGE  LWORREEE
EZREREHT/ ERESZROIRE EREREEE L-X EZRBRRMEE  RERRBIERE
3.3 9/ BREH FUITER BR REZEH BERZEN SRR iR
Dr. Kimmis Pun o Singapore Institute of Lead Independent Non-  Chairlady of NC,anda 29 April 2024 (To be re- e Fiduciary Asia Family e Shenning Family
Kim Ming Directors (Singapore) - Executive Director member of AC and elected at the Office Office-
(appointed on Accredited Senior RC forthcoming
29 April 2024) Director - Listed 2025 AGM)
Companies

o nstitute of Banking &
Finance (Singapore) — IBF
Fellow

o Swiss Association for
Quality (Switzerland)

— Certified Wealth
Management Adviser —
CWNA

o Financial Planners
Association of Singapore
(Singapore) - Certified
Financial Planner — CFP

o Singapore College of
Insurance (Singapore) -
Life Insurance - CLI,
Chartered Financial
Consultant - ChFC

o Estate Planning
Practitioners Limited
(Singapore) - Associate
Estate Planning
Practitioner — AEPP

o University of Pittsburgh,
Center For Fiduciary
Studies, Center For
Executive Education (USA)
— Accredited Investment
Fiduciary - AIF

o Institute of Financial
Services (United Kingdom)

o Chartered Institute of
Bankers (United Kindgom)

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH



Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment  Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBFIFEERM
REMEITARGE  IHARREEE
EZRREUT/ ERESZROIRE EREREEE L-X EZRBRRMEE  RERRBIERE
3.3 BE/BEEH FUITER BR REZEY BERZEN SRR iR
BABEL (02024 o MELTAFNESFE  AREHAEE REZSCIR B AMUFIANE  (ARABEEE o BEEERRRKEH CEEREESLAR
FAR2AES =Y A VNG ZEEMEREME REBERE MEBH FERAZE
f£) % BENE EEEfF)
o FIRORERERS
A
o RTRERBHEHEMN
EEREM
o HMREBRETGER
RHBRED
o HMRRBRERASRR
RAFEHER
o MINREAEEARNE
NEHEEARED
o XECBEREHKESR
AEBRERER

o eREHGHE (%8)
o HiROZEE (£E)
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment ~ Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEERM
REMEFARIRE ITARREES
EZREREHT/ HRERZAGIRY EREZREF -2 ESMERAMTE REREMEERE
3.3 2B/ gREH FUITER BR REZEH BERZEN SRR iR
Dr. Kimmis Pun o (ambridge University
Kim Ming (United Kingdom) -
(appointed on Visting Scholar
29 April 2024) o University of Saint Antonio
(cont'd) de Murcia (Spain) -
Doctorate of Business
Administration
o University of Manchester
(United Kingdom) — Master
of Business Administration
o[BS Business University
(Singapore) - Diploma in
Wealth Management
o Tsing Hua University
(China) - China Economic
and Political Studies
BAIGEL (02024 o EENBAZFHEE
FAR29BEE o CARDERGFREAZ
) (&) (BT)- IEERET

| 4

SHAHAR(RE)-T
HEREL

T UBSEHEAE (1
R)-BEEELE
FERE (PE)- PEEL
HERATE
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment  Board Committees Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEERM
REMEHLRRE IHARREES
HRERZRAGIRY EREZREF -2 ESMERAMTE REREMTERE
3.3 BE/SXER SRR iR
Dr. Kimmis Pun e University of Manchester/
Kim Ming IFS (United Kingdom)
(appointed on — Attended Bachelor of
29 April 2024) Science
(cont'd) o HKP University (previously
HK Polytechnic) (Hong
Kong) - Business Studies
o Singapore Chinese
Chamber Institute of
Business (Singapore)
— Diploma of Business
Chinese
o University of London
(United Kingdom) — GCE A
Level
BAIBEL (R2024 o SHEHAZ/IFS(H
FAR2AEE Bl)- BEREETEN
i) (#) o FERIAE(MHAE
BEIZER)(BR)-&
%

st EeneERs
B (i) - A
il

B (KB)- ABGCE
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment ~ Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEERM
REMEHARRE ITARREES
EZREREHT/ HRERZAGIRY EREZREF -2 ESMERAMTE REREMEERE
3.3 2B/ gREH FUITER BR REZEH BERZEN SRR iR
Mr. An Hongjun o Bachelor's Degree in Independent Non- Chairman of the AC 1 March 2018 28 April 2023 - Shanghai Genharmony  Nil
finance from Nankai Executive Director and a member of the (To be re- Tongxin Equity
University NC and RC elected at the Investment
o Master's degree and forthcoming Management Co., Lid.
Doctorate in World 2025 AGM) - Ningbo Meishan
Economics from Fudan Free Trade Port
University Zone Genharmony
o Doctor's Degree in Licheng Investment
Global Finance Business Management Co., Ltd.
Administration from — Shanghai Lingang
Shanghai Advanced Dongfang
[nstitute of Finance of Genharmony
Shanghai Jiao Tong Equity Investment
University Management Co., Ltd.
o Member of the Private — Shanghai Commercial
Equity Professional Investment (Group)
Committee of the Asset Co., Ltd.
Management Association
of China
RERE o HRAZERESLIEN BUHNNEF EiZEeXR RE  0BEIAIA ANBFLENA - LEENRERER &
o FEREHRCESEL ZEEREREHZ (F2025% EERERAT
RETE SEME EERRAE - BRALRREEE
o LERBAELERRS AeEEER) AuKEEERER
BERAMERIAER 2]
B2 - HEERRAEAR
o PEESRAERERE BREEERRAR
ERESSXZEEHE - LETEERE(R
B) BRAR

m 6
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Name of
Director

Exng

Academic/Professional
Qualifications

BE/BRRAR

Board Appointment
Executive/
Non-Executive

EFORfMT/
FHTES

Board Committees
as Chairman or
Member

FEEERREIRE
BR

Directorship
Date First
Appointed

BRAREES
LA

Date of Last
Re-election

Directorships in
Other Listed
Companies and
Other Major
Appointments

R ERAFRE

Past Directorships
in Other Listed
Companies and
Other Major
Appointments
Over the
Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEERM
IHAFREES

=%
RERZEM

ETRBRAMEE
BEHR iR

RERRMERRE

Mr. Zhong Ming

s

Bachelor's Degree in
Commerce from The
University of Melbourne

ERAASEES LAY

Independent Non-
Executive Director

BUTES

Chairman of the RC
and a member of the
AC and NC

FMZEELR  Fit
REENRAZES
i8

1 March 2018

183718

28 April 2023
(To be re-
elected at the
forthcoming
2025 AGM)

0234 R28H
(fFp2025%

EERRESF
ReEEEt)

Shanghai Renan Nil
Property Development
Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Yanlord
Beiyang Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Yanlord Hehai
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Shenglin
Property Development
Co., Ltd.

Pretty Honour
Investment Limited
Yanlord (Holdings)
Industrial Ltd.
Yanlord Land Group
Limited
TECRREMERE &
BRAE
RECENFEER
Rz
RELCBHNEEER
NS
RERMEHERY
BRAE

Pretty Honour
Investment Limited
Yanlord (Holdings)
Industrial Ltd
CEENERBRA
al
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TEERRE

Information for the Directors who are retiring and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM pursuant to Rule 720(6)

RBHXFA (LT FM)E720(6) 61 EERE
AFXELEE EFCRREIEENEES

of the SGX-ST Listing Manual: B
Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
B EihsE EDE L LR BR#%EE E2 o
Date of Appointment 1 March 2018 1 March 2018 29 April 2024 26 July 2024 26 July 2024
ZIAH 018F3A1A 018F3A18 202454 R29A 2024F7R26H 2024F7R268
Date of last re-appointment 28 April 2023 28 April 2023 - - -
(if applicable)
TREFZARE(MER)  2023F4A28H 2023547288 - - -
Age 38 56 64 51 57
R 385 567% 6457 515 573
Country of principal residence  Singapore China Singapore China China
TEREER s e I i e
The Board's comments on The re-glection of Mr. Zhong The re-election of Mr. An The re-election of Dr. Kimmis  The re-election of Mr. Ji The re-election of Mr. Wang
this appointment (including ~ Ming as an Independent Non-  Hongjun as an Independent ~ Pun Kim Ming as the Lead Guanglin as an Executive Xiwang as an Executive

rationale, selection criteria,
and the search and
nomination process)

EZQUUZENER (BR

B BERE - HRBEE
REER)

Executive Director of the
Company was recommended
by the NC to the Board for
review and consideration, and
accepted by the Board.

REZEENESEHERR
BARERARA BT
ES NHEZERARER
AR -

Non-Executive Director of the
Company was recommended
by the NC to the Board for
review and consideration,
and accepted by the Board.

RAZEGAEZGHEE
RRAERERANAEYL
FNMES NHEFEE
BRE RO R -

Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company was
recommended by the NC

to the Board for review and
consideration, and accepted
by the Board.
REZEEMEFEREE
BERRELIARARER
BUNTES  HES
SEAREEURER «

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company was
recommended by the NC

to the Board for review and
consideration, and accepted
by the Board.
REZESMEFERESR
BRERLERRR TN
EERERUTE  IHE
SeRHRZENRER -

Director of the Company was
recommended by the NC

to the Board for review and
consideration, and accepted
by the Board.



Details
B

Mr. Zhong Ming
it

Mr. An Hongjun
RiIERE

Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Kim Ming
ERREL

Mr. Ji Guanglin
REHEE

Mr. Wang Xiwang
IRE%EE

Whether appointment is
executive, and if so,
the area of responsibility

AEARGEHT
It BESE

R 8l

Job Title (.q. Lead ID, AC
Chairman,
AC Member etc.)

B (NERBLES Fit
ZE8LE FifZEEHKE

g

%)

Non-Executive

FHNITES

Independent Non-Executive
Director, Chairman of the
Remuneration

Committee and a member of
Audit

Committee and Nomination
Committee
BUEHES  HMES
IR BHEEERRES

i

@
|
=
g

3

Non-Executive

FHITES

Independent Non-Executive
Director, Chairman of
Audit
Committee and a member of
Nomination
Committee and Remuneration
Comminee

BUNNTES  BiHEE
gfﬁ REZEE RFH
ZEeNE

Non-Executive

Lead Independent Non-
Executive Director,
Chairlady of the Nomination
Committee, a member

of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

UHHITES R4

ﬁ EifRBe
@Ry
g

Executive. Overall

management of the strategic,

business, operational,
administrative, financial and
financing-related matters of
the Group.

BWIES  2RERAEE
M %% 28 17
0 BBRRERREE
Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer, Chairman
of the Risk and Investment
Management Committee and
a member of

Executive

Committee
BITEZRERHTE A
BEREERZEEIRR
BAIZEENE

Annual Report 2024 F £ 5§

Executive. Responsible
for overseeing the risk
management of the Group.

YEZ - REEEALEN
BREE -

Executive Director and

a member of Executive
Committee and Risk and
Investment Management
Committee

HiTEE HOZ8
REBERZEEMS

79 B
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BRWmE
Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
1 EHEE RiIERE ERIREL REREE IRL%E

Professional qualifications
from The University of
Melbourne

Bachelor's Degree in Commerce

o Bachelor's Degree in
finance from Nankai
University

e Master's degree and
Doctorate in World
Economics from Fudan
University

e Doctor's Degree in
Global Finance Business
Administration from
Shanghai Advanced
Institute of Finance of
Shanghai Jiao Tong
University

o Member of the Private
Equity Professional
Committee of the Asset
Management Association
of China

¢ BRABLREELEN

o BAABUREESET
RELEL

o LERRAELERARS
BEREHERIAER
BB

o THEFREASENHE
LERESEZRENE

o Singapore Institute of
Directors (Singapore) -
Accredited Senior Director
— Listed Companies

o Institute of Banking &
Finance (Singapore) — IBF
Fellow

o Swiss Association for
Quality (Switzerland)

— Certified Wealth
Management Adviser -
CWNA

e Financial Planners
Association of Singapore
(Singapore) - Certified
Financial Planner - CFP

e Singapore College of
Insurance (Singapore) -
Life Insurance — CLI,
Chartered Financial
Consultant — ChFC

o HIELEAARESE
-2 EREMARR
BEZ

o HMRHRTRERERS
BH%EE

o HTRERBHENEN
EEEEM

o MMEEBREMGEH
EUEREM

o FMBRRERASRE
RBEHBER

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

o Master's degree in Law,
Tsinghua University

e Doctorate in Philosophy,
Fudan University

e Chinese Lawyer
Professional Qualification
Certificate

=

o EEABLEBELEN
o FEABLEREL
o TEEMBELAREE

Bachelor's degree in Law,
Nanjing Army Command
Academy

HREEEES

fir

[t et



Details
B

Mr. Zhong Ming
it

Mr. An Hongjun
RiIERE

Name of Retiring Director

BEESHE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
ERRlEL REHEE IRL%E

Professional qualifications
(cont'd)

EZAR(B)

e Estate Planning
Practitioners Limited
(Singapore) — Associate
Estate Planning
Practitioner — AEPP

e University of Pittsburgh,
Center For Fiduciary
Studies, Center For
Executive Education
(USA) — Accredited
Investment Fiduciary -
AIF

e Institute of Financial
Services (United
Kingdom)

e Chartered Institute of
Bankers (United Kindgom)

o Cambridge University
(United Kingdom) —
Visting Scholar

e University of Saint
Antonio de Murcia (Spain)
— Doctorate of Business
Administration

o HMIIFEAZEAEHE
HEHEEERED

o TECZRAEMBER
AERRERR

o SRRHBHe (RE)

o BirRTZEe (£H)

o REFIBAZHHEE

o EREDERRREAZ
(FIEF)- THEREL
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SEERRE

Name of Retiring Director

BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin
ERIREL REREE

Mr. Wang Xiwang
IRE%EE

Details Mr. Zhong Ming
i EHEE
Professional qualifications

(cont'd)

ERXER(B)

e University of Manchester
(United Kingdom) -
Master of Business
Administration

o UBS Business University
(Singapore) — Diploma in
Wealth Management

e Tsing Hua University
(China) — China Economic
and Political Studies

o University of Manchester/
IFS (United Kingdom)

— Attended Bachelor of
Science

o HKP University
(previously HK
Polytechnic) (Hong Kong)
— Business Studies

o Singapore Chinese
Chamber Institute of
Business (Singapore)

— Diploma of Business
Chinese

o University of London
(United Kingdom) — GCE
A Level

o SHERAS(KE)-
IHEEET

o I TUBSEEAE (31N
R)-BEEER

o FEAZ(TE)-TE
SRR

o SHERAZ/IFS(H
B)-EEE22T2

o FERIRZ(RIZAE
BRIZR) (BE)-
%

o MMM ELHEERS
B (Rrns) — AisEsE
&

o RIKE(HE)- AR
GCE
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Name of Retiring Director

BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun

Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
1 EHEL REEE ERREL REHEE IRE%EE
Working experience and 2014 to 2016: Assistant to June 2014 to September Fiduciary Asia Family Mr. Ji worked in the Property ~ Mr. Wang has successively
occupation(s) General Manager of Shanghai 2016 — Chairman and Office (May 2023 —now) - Rights Management Office held several important
during the past 10 years Renpin Property Development  Director of Shanghai Managing Director of Shanghai State-owned positions in Shanghai

Co., Ltd. Chengtou Holdings Co., Ltd. ~ Shenning Family Office (April ~ Assets Supervision and International Group Investment

2016 to current: Executive October 2016 to current 2023 - now) — Adviser Administration Commission  and Development Co., Ltd.,

Director of Yanlord Land Group
Limited

- Founding Partner and
Chairman of Genharmony
Capital Group

Shenning Family Office
(December 2020 — April
2023) — Managing Director
EFG Bank (April 2019 -
December 2020) - Senior
Managing Director & Head of
Greater China

VP Bank (March 2018 — April
2019) - Senior Managing
Director, Head of Private
Banking & Market Head,
Greater China Region &
Member of Management
Committee

Standard Chartered Bank
(December 2015 — March
2018) — Managing Director &
Market Head of Greater China
BNP Paribas, Singapore
(August 2014 — December
2015) — Managing Director &
Head of China Market

from July 2005 to June 2011
and served as the general
manager of the marketing
department and trading
department of Shanghai
United Equity Exchange
from June 2011 to October
2014, the general manager
of the asset management
department and strategic
planning department

of Shanghai Chengtou
Group from October 2015
to September 2016, the
chairman of the board

and president of Shanghai
Chengtou Holding Co.,

Ltd. (Stock code: 600649.
SH) from September 2016
to July 2018, the deputy
chief economist of Shanghai
Chengtou Group from July
2018 to February 2021, the
temporary deputy mayor

of Qionghai City, Hainan
Province from January 2019
to March 2020, the deputy
general manager and general
counsel (chief compliance
officer) of Tianjin Chengtou
Group and the chairman of
the board of Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection
Group Company Limited
(Stock codes: 600649.SH
and 1065.HK) from February
2021 and March 2024,

Annual Report 2024 F £ 5§

Shanghai Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd., Shanghai Investment
Asset Management Co., Ltd.
and Shanghai Industrial
Development Co., Ltd.

83



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

LEERRE
Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
1 EHEE RiEEE ERIREL REHEE IRE%EE
BEI0FNIHECREEE  2014-20165 : DECRER  2014F6AZ201659R : AWBFSAZES : BEEE  2000F7AZ01E6R: £RALEERSEREER
EREARAREERENE  DEIRERRONERAR SRBSHBNESHMESE LEMEAZARERAR BRLF DELRERER
N165F5 : CEEHEEE ESREES- S B AR DELREEGEAR
RARHTES M6F10AZES  BMER  ARF4AZS - BERE  ANF6AZNMFI0A:  RARLEEZERRNER
SEEGRABAKEER HSDARFHBLEEN LEWSGERISMMEE ARECETEERL
WNFRAZANNEFAR:  RRFHPBER
PEREESRARFHERE 2015510 AE201659A ¢
DEEFHEE TENREREEERER
N19F4RZ0205128 1 HELEDEBEE
HIREZRIRRESRL 2016592218574
BRAPERSE EERRERERA (R
1853 AE201954A : H15% 1 600649.5H) EE K

M 84

RIVPRITRAESEE
B AABTARFAPE
BTSRERRITEREK

8
1551222018434 -
BIRTEZBEERATF
ERMSEE

014E8 AZ015512A -
HMRERERBTESRE
GERPEREE

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

Rz
N1BETAZA1%2A -
FEER S BRI ED
01951 AZ2020637
L VTR BREES
NNEF2RZ4534 -
RERREEREEERE
ERER (ERARE) RX
REZRREERNERL
& (RHHEE - 600649.SHR
1065.HK) EE %



Name of Retiring Director
BEESHE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
1 s RiIERE ERRlEL REHEE IRL%E

Shareholding interest in the 1,000,000 ordinary shares Ni
listed issuer (direct interest)

and its subsidiaries

BELTEIARERBAR 10000008 5@k (E#ER)
RE

Any relationship (including ~ Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
immediate family relationships)

with any existing director,

existing executive officer,

the issuer and/or substantial

shareholder of the listed

issuer or of any of its principal

subsidiaries

BEMBITARHAMEENR & i & E E

BLENEMRAES  BE

BRIBAE  BTAR/ %

TERR EHAAEER (R

BEZREER)

Conflict of interest (including  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
any competing business)

NMaER (DEENREFER) & & & i &

Undertaking (in the format set ~ Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
out in Appendix 7.7) under Rule

720(1) has been submitted to

the listed issuer

BERATN(NETHEE & ) B B B

(W87 TrEBs) B

EWETA

| Nil Nil Nil

#
e
=
=
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/\\ 2 :
ERERRE

Name of Retiring Director

BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
3] EHElE RiEEE EMGEL REHEE IRE%EE
Other Principal Commitments ~ Past (for the last 5 years)  Past (for the last 5 years) Past (for the last 5 years) Past (for the last 5 years) Past (for the last 5 years)
Including Directorships Nil Nil e Board of Directors & Director of: il
Chair of Audit Committee e Tianjin Capital
Present Present of Financial Planning Environmental Protection  Present
Director of; Director of: Standard Board USA Group Company Limited ~ Nil
e Shanghai Renan Property e Shanghai Genharmony (2017 - 2022)
Development Co., Ltd. Tongxin Equity Investment e Advisory Board Member ~ Present
e Tianjin Yanlord Beiyang Management Co., Ltd. of Crescent Girls School  Director of:
Real Estate Co., Ltd. e Ningbo Meishan (2007 - 2021) e Asia Water Investments
e Tianjin Yanlord Hehai Real Free Trade Port Zone e EXCO Member of Kowloon Pte Ltd
Estate Co., Lid. Genharmony Licheng Club (2015 - 2020) e Golden Bell Development
e Tianjin Shenglin Property Investment Management e EFG Bank (April 2019 - Limited
Development Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. December 2020) - Senior  © Lap Yin International
e Pretty Honour Investment e Shanghai Lingang Managing Director & Limited
Limited Dongfang Genharmony Head of Greater China e Rise Thrive Limited
e Yanlord (Holdings) Equity Investment e Shenning Family Office e Rise Wealth Investments
Industrial Ltd. Management Co., Ltd. (December 2020 - Ltd.
e Yanlord Land Group Limited e Shanghai Commercial April 2023) - Managing e S.I. United Water
e Shanghai Yanlord Property Investment (Group) Co., Director Holdings (BVI) Limited
Co., Ltd. Ltd. e Thrive Bloom Limited
e Shanghai Yanlord Real e Thrive Far Limited
Estate Co., Ltd. e Thrive Key Limited
o Shanghai Renjie Hebin e Asia Wisdom Investments
Garden Property Co., Ltd. Limited

e (lobal Environment
Investment (HK) Limited
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Name of Retiring Director

BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
1 EHEL REEE ERREL REHEE IRE%EE
EfTEAE AREESEE B (RESE) @ (RESE) @ (RESE) @ (RE5E) B (RESE)
& E o XEIBREREZRE NTRAANEES: E
EXQREHREEIR o REAERREEERD
i B (2017 - 2022F) a L3
THARMES THARMES o MARTEREMNZES &
o PECZEHERRERDE o DSENAGREREE  KEQ7-2021%)  BE
] BERRT o NESHNZEENE  UTATNES
o RECELXFERERLA o ERBILRTEEENT (2015 - 2020%) o THKBRELABRR
o RECENEEXERAA KEEERBRAT o HTRERTERES al
o RERMEHERBERL o LERERAEMRER BCERAPERBE o Golden Bell Development
al EEBERRA (201954 AZ2020512 Limited
o Pretty Honour Investment o HAMEERE (£E) A) o VERARBRAR

e Yanlord (Holdings)
Industrial Ltd.

o CEENEEERATF

o HECERMEARAA

o LBCEEXREARAA

o DERCHETERERHERR
AR

ARAF

o BEREELNART
BRAFEEHLIE (2020
E12A52023%47)

o REARAT

e Rise Wealth Investments

Ltd.

e S| United Water
Holdings (BVI) Limited

o RKEARAF

o ERARAT

o HEARAT

o REREBRAT

o R (BH)ERAT
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BREE
Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
3] EHElE RiEEE EMGEL REHEE IRE%EE
Other Principal Commitments ~ Present (cont'd) Present Present (cont'd)
Including Directorships e Shanghai Yanlord e Managing Director of * Global Envirotech
(contd) Investment Management Fiduciary Asia Family Investment Ltd.
Co., Ltd. Office e Gold Orient Investments
e Shanghai Yanlord Senlan o (hairman of Wealth Limited
Real Estate Co., Ltd. Planning Standard Board e Gold Wisdom Holdings
e Shanghai Yanlord Yangpu Limited
Property Co., Ltd. e Grand Sinochn
e Shanghai Yanlord Honggiao International Limited
Property Co., Ltd. * Hanyang Investment
e Shanghai Zhongting Holding Company Limited
Property Development Co., ¢ Hongkong Jinhaide
Ltd. Holdings Limited
e Shanghai Yanlord Xing Tang * Hongkong Nany New
Real Estate Co., Ltd. Energy (Dazhou) Limited
e Suzhou Renan Real Estate e KC & Johnson
Co., Ltd. International Limited
e Suzhou Peninsula Yanlord e Sl United Water
Real Estate Co., Ltd. Holdings Limited
e Suzhou Renyuan Real Estate e SIIC Environment Tech
Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong) Limited
e Singapore Intelligent Eco e SIIC Yangtze Delta
Island Development Pte Environmental Resources
Ltd. (Hong Kong) Limited
EfEEaE aRE2EE RER) i B ()
(&) o PECEREERERLA o ZEBEEHBEHAE o Global Envirotech
o LBCERBEEARAR BRESLEE Investment Ltd.
o PBCERERMEARA o MERBTEZECER o 2REREARAA
ET e Gold Wisdom Holdings
o LBCEIREHEARD o REEBBRAT
] o BEREARARAT
o HETERHEREERA o BATERERERLT
a o BBEGITER (EM)

o HBCEEEEEARAA

o BINCREZERAT

e Suzhou Peninsula Yanlord
Real Estate Co., Ltd.

o BMNCEEXBERAF

e Singapore Intelligent Eco
Island Development Pte
Ltd.

3 88 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

BRARE

o EEARERARA

e S.I. United Water
Holdings Limited

o PEEXBENMA(R
B)ERAA

o PAEEBRBR-ARR
&R (B#)BRAA



Details
B

Mr. Zhong Ming
it

Mr. An Hongjun
RiIERE

Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Kim Ming
ERREL

Mr. Ji Guanglin
REHEE

Mr. Wang Xiwang
IRE%EE

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships
(cont'd)

AT AR BRESRH
(#8)

Present (cont’d)

e Yanlord Eco Island
Investments Pte. Ltd.

e Jinan Yanlord Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Yanlord Industrial
Development Co., Ltd.

o Yanlord Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

e Shanghai Renrui Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Renhang Real
Estate Co., Ltd.

¢ Hangzhou Renyuan Property
Development Co., Ltd.

¢ Hangzhou Renan Property
Co., Ltd.

¢ Hangzhou Renxiang
Property Development Co.,
Ltd.

B (#)

o CBERSREERAT

o ERCEEEERAT

o DBRCEEZRRARAA

o Yanlord Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

o DBLCEEXERDA

o DBCMEXBRAF

o MMCERHEREERA
a

o MMCZEHERRAT
o MMNCHBHEREERD

k=1l

Present (cont'd)

e Yun Shui Technology Co.,

Ltd.

e SIIC Environment
Holdings (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.

e SIIC Environment
Holdings (Weifang) Co.,
Ltd.

e |ongjiang Environmental

Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Rt ()

o BRHMRERAT

o FERR(LE)ERA
A

o FERRKBEROERA
G

o ETRREERN
BRAT
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BRWmE
Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
1 EHEE RiIERE ERIREL REREE IRL%E

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships
(cont'd)

EfIBAE BRESRE
(&)

m

Present (cont’d)

Hangzhou Binbai Investment
Management Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Binheng Property
Development Co., Ltd.

Asia Radiant Pte. Ltd.
Universal Estate Pte. Ltd.
Ren Ci Hospital

Shanghai Renpu Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Renlan Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Renzui Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

United Engineers Limited
WBL Corporation Limited
Rainbow Promise
Development Limited
Yanlord Isetan Commercial
Co., Ltd.

UE (Shanghai) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

Rt ()

MMEEREERARAT
MMEEEHEREERA
7l
Asia Radiant Pte. Ltd.
Universal Estate Pte. Ltd.
CEER
TECREXERAA
TECEEXERAA
Shanghai Renzui Real Estate
Co., Ltd.
BATREAERARF
BEBRAT
MHERERAA
CEREAEEERAR
UE (Shanghai) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.
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Details
B

Mr. Zhong Ming
it

Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Kim Ming
ERREL

Mr. Ji Guanglin

REHEE

Mr. Wang Xiwang
IRE%EE

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships
(cont'd)

Bt TBAE  BREZRG
(8)

Present (cont’d)

e Pacific Silica Pty Ltd

e (lobal Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd.

e Chrontel, Inc.

o UE Park Avenue (Shanghai)
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Youyou Dongdao
Real Estate Co., Ltd.

¢ Heng Qing Pte. Ltd.

e Cultural Moutai (Singapore)
Limited

e Yanlord Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.

e Tianjin Renmei Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

e Tianjin Yanlord Ho Bee
Property Development Co.,
Ltd.

e Yanlord Industrial Limited

e Palovale Pte Ltd

e Yanlord Ho Bee Investments
Pte. Ltd.

o Yanlord Land Pte. Ltd.

o Yanlord Real Estate Pte. Ltd.

R ()

e Pacific Silica Pty Ltd

e (lobal Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd.

e Chrontel, Inc.

o CERZ(LE)EEER
BRAT

o FEMARBEXERAA

e Heng Qing Pte. Ltd.

o Cultural Moutai (Singapore)
Limited

o CEEXERBRAA

o RECEZEXERAA

o RECENFEHEREE
NS

o CEEEXARAH

¢ Palovale Pte Ltd

e Yanlord Ho Beg Investments
Pte. Ltd.

o CEENLABRAR

o CEEXLABRAT
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SEERRE

Details
B

Mr. Zhong Ming
EHEE

Mr. An Hongjun
RiIERE

Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis Pun
Kim Ming
EMGEL

Mr. Ji Guanglin
REREE

Mr. Wang Xiwang
IRE%EE

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships
(cont'd)

BT RAE  BREZRH
(&)

Present (cont’d)

Hangzhou Kesheng Property
Development Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Keyi Property
Development Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Renrui Property
Development Co., Ltd.
Yanlord Land (Chengdu)
Co., Ltd.

Yanlord Hotel Management
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd.
Shenyang Summer Palace
Property Development Co.,
Ltd.

Shenyang Huaxin
International Realty Co., Ltd.
Lian Pu Pte. Limited

Rt ()

MMNARHEREERA
7l
MMRERHEREERA
3
MMCERHEREERD
7l

CEEM (KH)ERAT
CEREREE (K#) 8RB
N
EREEEHEREERL
G
REENEREEERAR
Lian Pu Pte. Limited

m
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Details
B

Mr. Zhong Ming
EHEE

Name of Retiring Director
BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis
Pun Kim Ming
ERREL

Mr. An Hongjun
RIEEE

Mr. Ji Guanglin
REHEE

Mr. Wang Xiwang
IREEE

The general statutory disclosures of the Directors are as follows:
EEN-REERENT

a.

d

Whether at any time during the last 10 years, an
application or a petition under any bankruptcy law

of any jurisdiction was filed against him or against a
partnership of which he was a partner at the time when
he was a partner or at any time within 2 years from the
date he ceased to be a partner?

. REEBFNFNEAEH  REEFAAEERNE

REEMARLRERER  AENAREARL
ENABAEE ABETBEEABAZREZER
HEAER  ILAPLEREPERER"

. Whether at any time during the last 10 years, an

application or a petition under any law of any
jurisdiction was filed against an entity (not being a
partnership) of which he was a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive, at the time when he was a
director or an equivalent person or a key executive of
that entity or at any time within 2 years from the date
he ceased to be a director or an equivalent person or
a key executive of that entity, for the winding up or
dissolution of that entity or, where that entity is the
trustee of a business trust, that business trust, on the
ground of insolvency?

. REEBANVENHEFNEE - REEMRLERNE

flzk - UWENEERS NERE-FHEE (AR
CRINEZFRERIALHIETHASER - o
BEFBRERERNESARSMIALRIES
BARZ BE2ENMEARR  SREBNFELE
HUZERRLDHERER  AENAEEA-BH
FEROREA  ARARERRLFRAZR?

. Whether there is any unsatisfied judgment against him?
. REHEBEMTRTERIIR?
. Whether he has ever been convicted of any offence, in

Singapore or elsewhere, involving fraud or dishonesty
which is punishable with imprisonment, or has been
the subject of any criminal proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings of which he is aware) for
such purpose?

HRBEERMRIEME I BHRLESRAHRE

BRI AT A RLC R ARARSRR (R
BEMMOERARNERD) HIR?

No

]

No

g}

No

]

No

]

No No No

e
A
]

No No No

A
oA
g}

No No No

e
A
]

No No No

o
e
|

No

]

No

g}

No

g

No

]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

Name of Retiring Director
EHEERA
Dr. Kimmis
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Pun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
1 EHEE RIEEE ERREL REHEE IRL%E

e. Whether he has ever been convicted of any offence, in ~ No No No No No
Singapore or elsewhere, involving a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement that relates to the securities
or futures industry in Singapore or elsewhere, or has
been the subject of any criminal proceedings (including
any pending criminal proceedings of which he is aware)
for such breach?

e. ERTBEMRS At RERER MRS ELM
WHEESARETEEENTMEEREEREM
REF  FRAGEAREANERDOEE (REEMH
AN EMRARERD) 2

f. Whether at any time during the last 10 years, judgment ~ No No No No No
has been entered against him in any civil proceedings
in Singapore or elsewhere involving a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement that relates to the securities
or futures industry in Singapore or elsewhere, or a

finding of fraud, misrepresentation or dishonesty

on his part, or he has been the subject of any civil
proceedings (including any pending civil proceedings
of which he is aware) involving an allegation of fraud,
misrepresentation or dishonesty on his part?

f. EBEENTARRE - ERESEMMELE
AHNEEFDD - AR RE R A

HOESIAGTRERNEMEEREERTE &
EERREHE  ERRAIAUETR AEEARE
RARAYHRRE  ERRAXTHETARERA
(DEERANANAARSZSRD) HEE?

g. Whether he has ever been convicted in Singapore No No No No No
or elsewhere of any offence in connection with the
formation or management of any entity or business
trust?

%EEE%M&&HWWHIﬁffﬁgtﬁiﬁu
mﬁﬁia@ﬁﬁmfﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ

h. Whether he has ever been disqualified from actingasa ~ No No No No No
director or an equivalent person of any entity (including
the trustee of a business trust), or from taking part
directly or indirectly in the management of any entity or
business trust?

h AR ERIVEEAEAER (REEEERHTTA)
WESIASRAALNER - ABBEEEAEE
SRAMERSHERTERNER?

o
o
3
3
o

o
o
o
o
o

o
o
3
o
o

o
o3
D
o
13
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Details
B

Mr. Zhong Ming
EHEE

Mr. An Hongjun
RIEEE

Name of Retiring Director

BEEERE
Dr. Kimmis
Pun Kim Ming
BRREL

Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
REHEE IREEE

i. Whether he has ever been the subject of any
order, judgment or ruling of any court, tribunal or
governmental body, permanently or temporarily
enjoining him from engaging in any type of business
practice or activity?
i. ERBEBAEMER  AEIHFREN TS
2 HRASHANTE  BAASER RS
BENEXEERES?
J. Whether he has ever, to his knowledge, been concerned
with the management or conduct, in Singapore or
elsewhere, of the affairs of--
. BEMA ARG BEMIRR AL S RERS
EITATER
i any corporation which has been investigated for
a breach of any law or regulatory requirement
governing corporations in Singapore or elsewhere;
or

I REREEFMESAM A AANEMERAE

EREMEREHENRA - F

. any entity (not being a corporation) which has been
investigated for a breach of any law or regulatory
requirement governing such entities in Singapore or
elsewhere; or

FRREEREMRBENENER I

- any business trust which has been investigated

for a breach of any law or regulatory requirement

governing business trusts in Singapore or

elsewhere; or

i REREEMISE R H S BEETNAMER
REEREMRATHEMBRET L

. any entity or business trust which has been
investigated for a breach of any law or regulatory
requirement that relates to the securities or futures
industry in Singapore or elsewhere, in connection

with any matter occurring or arising during that
period when he was so concerned with the entity or
business trust?

v, BEREF MR E M OEFXBETEEH
WEMEEREERTMRAENINELAEE
Gt REBHSRERAREERNARAEE
REEDNAMEE?

=

=

i, HEREEMMEIEMLTER (FR7) NEF

No

]

No

g

No

g

No

g

No

g

No

]

No

A

No

e}

No

e}

No

e}

No

e}

No

el

No

|

No

e}

No

e}

No

e}

No

e}

No

g}

No

g

No

g

No

o]

No

o]

No

o]

No

]

No

]

No

jag]

No

]

No

]

No

]

No

]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERRE
Name of Retiring Director
BEESEHS
Dr. Kimmis
Details Mr. Zhong Ming Mr. An Hongjun Pun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin Mr. Wang Xiwang
3] EEl RELE EMREL BREHEE IHEEYE
k. Whether he has been the subject of any current or past ~ No No No No No
investigation or disciplinary proceedings, or has been
reprimanded or issued any warning, by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore or any other regulatory authority,
exchange, professional body or government agency,
whether in Singapore or elsewhere?
k.ﬂﬁ&%%ﬁﬁﬁmmﬁ'ﬁaéﬁﬁm&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ & 4 & & &

BREFELEEHE 50 SXERABITE
BEFEFAAAEEILARIEFNIR FE
HERABLEFAES?

Name of Retiring Director

BEEERS
Dr. Kimmis
Details Mr. Zhong Ming  Mr. An Hongjun  Pun Kim Ming Mr. Ji Guanglin ~ Mr. Wang Xiwang
HiE Eit RHIERE ERIREL REHEE IRExE

Information required

FRReEH

Disclosure applicable to the appointment of Director only.
EFRAREFERNHBE -

Any prior experience as a director of an issuer
listed on the Exchange?
BERR S EMETAESNEMBELR ?

If yes, please provide details of prior experience.

B wiRBEERFS - . . . .
. Not applicable. This is for re-election of Directors.

NER c EAEEBICEE -
If no, please state if the director has attended TR RERRI,ES

or will be attending training on the roles and
responsibilities of a director of a listed issuer as
prescribed by the Exchange

EL FAHESRACASMIBELNRS
AEREE EMEITAEZACRBENE
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The Directors present their statement together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

In the opinion of the Directors, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company as set out
on pages 114 to 221 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and the financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the
financial year then ended and at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to
believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Group's fair business review and an analysis on the performance using financial
indicators are set out in the Chairman Statement on pages 20 to 22 and Financial Review on
pages 23 to 25 of this Report, respectively.

1  Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 181 to 183
of this Report. There were no significant changes in the Group’s principal activities for
the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

2 Environment, Social and Governance
The Environment, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) will be available
on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK"), Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (‘SGX-ST") and the Company at the same time as
the publication of this annual report.

3 Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during FY2024 amounted to RMB530,000
(2023: RMB402,000).

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
ESWE

EB2FIRE4F12 931 B LS HEEHEERE
B R ERERRARLT ((F48)) RENE
27 ([ HRW ) @B A BRE AR T B
RERBEEDE -

EERR BEENE4Z21 EMASBEAHTE
BE - ARBPBARAERESEHRIREERD
It RRAEE R AR FIR2024F12 A 31 B #9815k
R ARBEZE LHRFERNARSE B HNAE
B BRR  EaZ2PHLRSREBNLARFMNE
Hm2BEN  BAEEMBERLARARNERES
BB R ER

ARENAYEBOBEREBYBESETHNRRED
MARERAREE0E2ENERFRERF23E
25 BB SRR o

1 EEERH
ARANTIBEBRREER - HWB R AN
£BHENAREL181 2183 ENERHTREK
Ao BZE2024512 A31 B IEH BF B AR S B
ITRXBHEEAEY -

2 BE -HERER
BE oMehkERns (B HeERER
HBRNELERA-BRBEREEHA
RHRBRAE ([HRBMRM]) - HI5ES
RHABERRA ([ ]) RAD R

3 HERw
ARER 20245 F 0% E BB ARED30,000
70 (20235 © ARH402,0007T) °
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
ESHE

m %

Directors 4 E=E
The Directors of the Company in office during FY2024 and as at the date of this R4 ERARERS  ARAERESD
statement are: DK
Mr. Zhou Yuding —  Chairman of the Board and Executive Director BF&%E - EFEIRFGNEE(RAUF2A23
(Appointed on 23 February 2024) REZF)
Mr. Ji Guanglin - Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer REMEE - HOEFREFRTE (R024F7H26
(Appointed on 26 July 2024) REZT)
Mr. Zhu Dazhi - Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer ANREE - BOTESRERNTE (R024F7H2
(Resigned on 26 July 2024) AEHE)
Mr. Wang Xiwang —  Executive Director (Appointed on 26 July 2024) ITARERE - BAOEE(R0UETABREZRE)
Mr. Xu Xiaobing - Executive Director (Resigned on 26 July 2024) BEARE - BOES(RAAFTRHAET)
Mr. Jiang Kai - Executive Director (Resigned on 26 July 2024) BlEXE - STEZ(R0UETABAFE)
Mr. Yang Xing - Executive Director BRERE - 90EF
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming - Independent Non-Executive Director (Appointed on BEBELT - BUFROEE(RAUFIAVBEZ
29 April 2024) )
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang - Independent Non-Executive Director (Resigned on BAXEE - BUFANES(RAA4F4R29RE
29 April 2024) 1)
Mr. An Hongjun - Independent Non-Executive Director ROEEE - BUFNIES
Mr. Zhong Ming - Independent Non-Executive Director EHiE - BUFNGES
Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Benefits by Means of 5 EETZABMARGCRAEEMESNHR
the Acquisition of Shares and Debentures H
Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did REBFERRMBEEFAREEEFER
there subsist any arrangement to which the Company is a party, whose object is or NABNANEAZE  BEARBEERT
one of whose objects is, to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by il YNNG AR CIEN b YN L0l 47k
means of the acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body BREMELR  REEREEOEMINERE
corporate, except as mentioned in Section 6 of the Directors’ Statement. G o
Directors’ Interests in Ordinary Shares, Share Options and 6 EEREER BRERGESPHES
Debentures
The Directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no RUBRFEREBNARAEZTNARA LA
interests in the share capital and debentures of the Company and related corporations BOAERNBRAREEERITEREEARARE
as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under 1967 F MM R BNE) BI04 HFEME S
Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act 1967 except as follows: s AT aCsR R - R T SCATILE D ¢
Direct interest
HEER
At beginning At end 21 January
Name of Director and company EEHEREEFES of year of year 2025
in which interests are held HATFEE RER MWEXR  2025%F1821H
Company kN
Ordinary Shares LiEk
Zhong Ming B8 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Save as disclosed above, there were no changes in any of the above-mentioned
interests between the end of the financial year and 21 January 2025.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

BRERAREES  LAREEVREERE
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
Any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2024, the interests of the Directors and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (‘SF0"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

EERBATRARR S A FSEAHEE
EEMER AREAREANENES
R/ S#ke
H2024F12A318 - EEREBEANEAT
R E BB AR RIABR G D RER
AR TRES R 0 (RS RARER )
2352 E R ENEMANES  SEREL
TETAREETEER HOEET (W
PR ) MR EATRE SRR OERNT

Approximate

percentage

Capacity/ Number of of interest

Nature of interest shares (L) in the Company

HELFER

Name of Director EENA B EaNE BRPEE (L) #Hhastt
Company YN
Ordinary Shares LAk

Zhong Ming FERT Beneficial interest 1,000,000 0.04%

EntEn
Note: BT

(L)  denotes long position

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code, as at
31 December 2024.

L RrEe

PR EXCRTREE S - 12024F12 4318 - #ifE

EZNABEARARRZEEMERER (E

ZRBFRAEHROIZEXVE) SERY - A5

Bk BEREETERCCHERADTRES K

HERPIEINEREFENEMAXDRER

ETRAHGRRRANBERIMOEAEER
B

%

o

=
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Substantial Shareholders 8 IEEX
As at 31 December 2024, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the 202412 A31 8 » ARAIRE 1967 F G
Company pursuant to Section 88 of the Singapore Companies Act 1967 and Section WREE) B8BIEA R ER KB KA E336 15
336 of the SFO shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of FENTIZRFEMBET BEXEREEAR
certain Directors and chief executive of the Company, the interests of shareholders NABETEERRBITBAENERIN - T5
below are extracted from the latest disclosure of interests forms filed by the respective REERHEESRREINENRERERE o
shareholders
Approximately
percentage of
Capacity/ Number of interest in
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares  the Company
HENRER
BRER 5/ #anyg B8 E #@thEst
S.I. Triumph Power Limited (“Triumph”)® Beneficial interest 986,929,551 38.32%
FENBARAR ([HE)O ExfEn
S.1. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII")" Beneficial interest/Interests in 1,152,348,026 44.74%
controlled corporation
TEEERRERAR ((LEER))O Enikn / TREEER
SIHL Treasury Limited™ Beneficial interest 116,137,900 4.51%
LBEENBEEARARD ExfEn
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL")® Interest in controlled corporation 1,268,485,926 49.25%
LEEEERERAT ([ LREER)O XEEEER
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited™ Interest in controlled corporation 1,268,485,926 49.25%
FRRARKRERARD ZEEE R
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited™ Interest in controlled corporation 1,268,485,926 49.25%
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited® REEEER
SIIC Trading Company Limited Beneficial interest 22,358,000 0.87%
LEEXZESERARD EnlEn
Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited (“SIIC")® Interest in controlled corporation 1,290,843,926 50.12%
LBEE (KE)AERAR ([LEDO ZEEE R
China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Beneficial interest 223,712,917 8.69%
Investment Co., Limited (“CECEPHK")®
FEIERBEIRIR (B8 ) REAR DA ([hEgE (Fid) )@ ExfEn
China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group Interest in controlled corporation 223,712,917 8.69%
(“CECEP")®
REIFAERIREEAR AT ([HPEgg]) @ ZEEE R
Value Partners Limited (“VPL")® Interest in controlled corporation 7,524,940 0.29%
HEESEEAR([ER]O XEEE S
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited (“VPLHK")® Beneficial interest/Interest in 231,600,920 8.99%

ERAGEREEARAR ((EREE])V
Value Partners Group Limited (‘VPGL")®
EEEEARAR ((EEEE))©

controlled corporation

Bakn / REEEER

Interest in controlled corporation 231,600,920 8.99%
R EE R
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Notes:

(1) Each of SIIC, which is controlled by the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government (through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIIC Capital
(B.V.I.) Limited, SIIC Trading Company Limited, Shanghai Industrial Financial Holdings
(Hong Kong) Company Limited and SIIC CM Development Limited, holds more than 20%
of the issued and paid-up share capital of SIHL, which owns all the issued and paid-up
share capital of SII, which in turn owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of Triumph.
In addition, SIHL owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of SIHL Treasury Limited.
As such, SIIC, Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIHL and Sl are deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Triumph and SIHL Treasury Limited (excluding SlI).

Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is directly interested in approximately 47.77% of the
total issued share capital of SIHL and is indirectly interested in approximately 7.36% of the
total issued share capital of SIHL through its wholly-owned subsidiary SIIC Capital (B.V.1.)
Limited. Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited is directly interested in
100% of the total issued share capital of Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited. In addition,
SIIC is interested in approximately 63% of the total issued share capital of SIHL through
its directly and indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries. Therefore, each of SIIC, Shanghai
Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited
is deemed to be interested in a total of 1,290,843,926 Shares by virtue of their interests in
SIHL.

(2)  CECEPHK is deemed interested in the shares held through account of BOCI Securities
Limited in CCASS Depository. BOCI Securities Limited is the agency of CECEPHK. CECEP
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by CECEPHK as CECEP owns the entire
issued share capital of CECEPHK.

(3)  VPGL is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in VPLHK, which in
turn 100% owns VPL. VPLHK is directly interested in 224,075,980 Shares and is deemed
interested in 7,524,940 Shares via its 100% ownership in VPL.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which would be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2024.

b -

) LtE(BLETARBRFEBE2EMBA
B(BLEGREZERERATF - SIC Capital
(B.V.L) Limited * EEEXEBSHBRAA - L§
BEXSRIR(BE)BRARRLEEESRH
HERSERAR) EH) SERELERERY
0% FEBITRBREA - FEERES L
EHEVR2HERTRARKA  mLEEE
BENBZ2BERTRAREA - #i - £
ERRES LSEEMBEERBRARAZEMH
BETRBRRA - FHit - +E - EBRER
BREBRE - LEERREEEBWRERD
BRESEEVBEEEERAR (MRELEER
B) BB zROREGER -

LEREZREBRAFERES LEERE
BATRABELLT TT%MER  TRBES
EIBRASIIC Capital (B.V.l.) LimitedfE#
BELERRCETRABENT.I0%MHE
z ° Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury
Company Limited %5 LEREERER R
RIEBITRABEI00%MWER - 1o LB
BBEERLBERARENNBELARES L
EEREBTRABEL63%MNER - Bt
& -~ Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury
Company Limited X HB&KREZEKRERA
HRBEERLEEROER ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁmu,\
1,290,843,926 B AR 17 7 e A # 2k o

®) EPﬁﬁﬁE( B REANERTRERESER
ARRPRIRGEZGESFFERF BB
ﬁﬂlﬂ%ﬁ*féﬁvﬁﬂlﬁ%m%ﬁﬁﬁ AAHEH
(BB RER - AP EHERRERT
ﬁﬁﬁ‘é(%%)ﬂ’@ HEBTRA > HPBEHER
RERERD S (FR) BENRNTEERE
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Equity Compensation Plans of the Company

As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this statement, the Company did not have any
share scheme under Chapter 17 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman), Mr. Zhong Ming and
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming. The Audit Committee has held four meetings during the
financial year ended 31 December 2024 and has performed the following delegated
functions:

(1)

To review with the external auditors:

(a) the audit plan, including the nature and scope of the audit before the audit
COmmMences;

(b)  their audit report; and
(c)  their management letters and Management's response;

To discuss with the external auditors any issues or concerns arising from their
agreed-upon procedures, interim and final audits, and any other matters which
the external auditors may wish to discuss;

To ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved:;

To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control (including
financial, operational, compliance, information technology controls and risk
management) systems established by Management to identify, assess, manage,
and disclose financial and non-financial risks;

To monitor the scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually and give
recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment, re-appointment or
removal of the external auditors;

To review and ensure that the assurance has been received from the Executive
Committee (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) in
relation to the interim/full year unaudited financial statements;

To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the
internal auditors, external auditors and Management;
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(8) To review the quarterly, half-yearly and full year financial statements of the
Company and of the Group, including announcements relating thereto, to
shareholders, the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (‘SGX-ST")
and SEHK, and thereafter to submit them to the Board for approval;

(9) To review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing
Manual of the SGX-ST) and report its findings to the Board;

To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board
or as the Committees may consider appropriate; and

To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law or by the
Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and SEHK, as amended from time to time.

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of Management, and
has been given the resources required for it to discharge its function properly. It also
has full discretion to invite any Director and executive officer to attend its meetings.
The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Directors the nomination of Deloitte &
Touche LLP for re-appointment as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (‘AGM") of the Company.

Auditors

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept
re-appointment and a resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

For FY2024, the fees paid or payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP for the audit of the
annual financial statements of the Group were approximately RMB8,196,000 (excluding
the expenses on the non-audit service provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP).

The non-auditing services fees charged by Deloitte & Touche LLP in relation to
agreed-upon services, tax compliance services and review of selected financial
information for FY2024 were approximately RMB1,260,000. The Audit Committee has
undertaken a review of all non-auditing services provided by the auditors and confirms
that they would not, in the Audit Committee’s opinion, affect the independence of the
auditors.

The Company complies with Rules 712 and 715 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual in
relation to the audit of the Group.
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Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

SIIC (for and on behalf of SIIC Capital (B.V.I.) Limited, Shanghai Investment Holdings
Limited, Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited, Shanghai Industrial
Financial (Holdings) Company Limited, Shanghai Industrial Financial Holdings Limited,
SIIC Treasury (B.V.l.) Limited, SIIC CM Development Funds Limited and SIIC CM
Development Limited) and SIHL, S.I. Triumph Power, SII and SIHL Treasury (together
with SIIC, the “Covenantors”) entered into the deeds of non-competition undertakings
(the “Deeds of Non-Competition”) in favor of the Company on 8 March 2018,
pursuant to which, the Covenantors provided certain non-competition undertakings to
the Company. During FY2024, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed
the implementation of the Deeds of Non-Competition and have confirmed that the
Covenantors have been in full compliance with the Deeds of Non-Competition and there
was no breach by the Covenantors.

Employees and Remuneration

As at 31 December 2024, there were 6,252 (2023: 6,372) employees in the Group. Total
employee benefits expenses of the Group (including Directors’ fee) for the year ended
31 December 2024 were approximately RMB858 million (2023: RMB804 million).
Staff remuneration packages are determined based on each employee’s qualifications,
experience, position and seniority. The Group also provides other staff benefits
including medical and life insurance, training programmes, and grants discretionary
incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance and Group’s results of
operations.

The contributions payable to defined pension schemes were made by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2024, there were no forfeited contributions
used by the Group to reduce existing level of contributions for each of the years.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities

Save as disclosed in the section headed “24 Corporate Bond Issuance” below in this
Directors’ Statement, during the financial year ended 31 December 2024, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio equals net debt as a percentage of total equity as of the end of the year.
Net debt includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents. As at 31 December 2024, our Group has gearing ratio of 1.21 (2023: 1.14).
Details of the gearing ratio are set out in Note 42 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ interest in competing business

During the financial year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report,
none of the Directors was considered to have direct or indirect interest in businesses
which compete or were likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to
the Hong Kong Listing Rules and Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

Directors’ Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting have a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation, if applicable.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
financial year ended 31 December 2024.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
Company had in force permitted indemnity provisions for the benefit of the Directors of
the Company (including former Directors).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, both the aggregate revenue from sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales and purchases respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Constitution or the laws of Hong
Kong which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to our
existing Shareholders.

Distributable Reserves
As at 31 December 2024, the Company had no distributable reserves.

Tax Reliefs and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.
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Corporate Bond Issuance

For the purposes of financial structure and financing costs optimisation, the Group
has completed the issuance of two tranches of corporate bonds (the “Corporate
Bonds”) in March and November 2021 with the aggregate size of RMB3,000,000,000
and interest rates of 3.89% and 3.40% for the first and second tranches respectively.
The total consideration received by the Group was RMB2,994,450,000. Such Corporate
Bonds were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the relevant terms of the issuance of the first tranche Corporate Bonds,
holders shall have an option to partially or fully sell back the Corporate Bonds to the
Company at the end of the third year from the issue date of 12 March 2021. During
the period of registration for sell-back (i.e. from 8 February 2024 to 22 February 2024,
trading days only), the holders of the first tranche Corporate Bonds have registered
for the sell-back of a total number of 1,415,000 Corporate Bonds. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Company completed the sell-back of the first tranche
Corporate Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of RMB141,500,000 pursuant
to the relevant terms of the issuance of the first tranche Corporate Bonds. After the
cancellation, the outstanding principal amount of the first tranche Corporate Bonds is
RMB1,358,500,000, representing approximately 90.6% of the initial principal amount
of the first tranche Corporate Bonds. For further details on the sell-back of the first
tranche Corporate Bonds, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8
March 2024.

Pursuant to the relevant terms of the issuance of the second tranche Corporate Bonds,
holders shall have an option to partially or fully sell back the second tranche Corporate
Bonds to the Company at the end of the third year from the issue date of 12 November
2021. During the period of registration for sell-back (i.e. from 24 October 2024 to 28
October 2024, trading days only), the holders of the second tranche Corporate Bonds
have registered for the sell-back of a total number of 15,000,000 second tranche
Corporate Bonds. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company completed
the sell-back of the second tranche Corporate Bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of RMB1,500,000,000 pursuant to the relevant terms of the issuance of the second
tranche Corporate Bonds. After the cancellation, there are no outstanding second
tranche Corporate Bonds. For further details on the sell-back of the second tranche
Corporate Bonds, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8 November
2024.

Annual General Meeting and Final Dividend
The AGM of the Company will be held on or before 29 April 2025.

The expected payment date of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024
is on or about 30 May 2025, subject to the poll voting results of the AGM. The final
dividend would be paid to the Shareholders registered in the Share Transfer Books and
Register of Member of the Company as at 5:00 p.m. on 9 May 2025.

Duly completed registrable transfers of Shares received by the Company's share registar
in Singapore, In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd., 36 Robinson Road, #20-01 City
House, Singapore 068877, no later than 5:00 p.m on 9 May 2025 will be registered
before entitlements to the final dividend are determined.
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Duly completed registrable transfers of Shares received by the Company’s share registar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shop 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later
than 4:30 p.m on 9 May 2025 will be registered before entitlements to the final dividend
are determined.

The Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company would not be
closed for the purpose of determining the entitlements of the Shareholders to the final
dividend.

The exchange rate for converting Singapore dollars into Hong Kong dollars for the
purpose of the final dividend payment in Hong Kong dollars will be made by the
Company in due course.

Every Director shall retire from office once every three (3) years and for this purpose,
at each annual general meeting, at least one-third of our Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Zhou Yuding
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director

Ji Guanglin
CEO and Executive Director

Singapore and Hong Kong
26 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.

R TR

HEBEFREERERARERR

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group and the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
of the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information, as set
out on pages 114 to 221.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are
properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act
1967 (the “Act”), Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s") and
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board so
as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and of
the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*ACRA
Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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Key Audit Matters
FEERER

Our Audit Procedures Performed and Responses Thereon
HMETHEZER R ERDE

Service concession arrangements and revenue recognition

FRFH5 AT AR R R R U A B BR

The Group’s core business of water and waste water treatment and waste
incineration are dependent on the service concession arrangements entered
into with the local government authorities in the People’s Republic of China.
The Group applies SFRS(l) INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements
(“SFRS(I) INT 12") in its recognition of revenue from water treatment service,
construction and waste incineration power generation from service concession
arrangements.

ERENROEBKRTKEEN REYREXEREREARRNEE
BB VA RBSFEE R - ERERBRARE RBFITEERH
RSKEIERY - BRRENEE SN ARER (g BB %ReE
RRDBRBV2REHIFFALLH ([GIINKBERMBREER)BEE12
1)

We have identified the determination of whether the service concessions
arrangements fall under the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 for new service
concession contracts as a significant risk. This could mean that the Group
may inappropriately recognise the consideration received from the local
government authorities in exchange for the construction services as financial
asset and/or intangible asset for service concession arrangements within
the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 or vice versa. The amounts are material and
significant judgements are required, particularly in relation to the identification
and application of the appropriate accounting treatment for the recording of
revenue and associated assets under SFRS(I) INT 12.
BMESEEREF SRR D ENRBE LS Gk R K
FBREEN)RBENFEENBEEAR R - EARERE SEEAE
DEE e R IR E 3R A4 A 60 S B DA SR R SR AR A 1 R (R ISR B B Bt
BREEABBENLFHEENRBETLETHNSREER XEVE
B RZITA o SERE GBI B B RS £ 8 BEE 125 kb &
MEEE FHeBEXTAELERAE  LEREEFFIREREES
&t e

Our audit approach included evaluating the design and implementation and
test of operating effectiveness of the relevant internal controls and performing
substantive procedures as follows:

BB RT RS - AR R Rt KBRS EETHER
o ARBITATEE R

° We evaluated the Group’s controls in assessing the applicability of
SFRS(I) INT 12 and reviewed the associated agreements to assess
whether these agreements are properly identified to be service
concession arrangement within the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12.

o BMEE SREFMECGTNKEREBIREER)BRE125NER
RERZGERT BN AEGEATEZERATEERERA G
KRR BRERA)RBE12RBENRB SRR -

o We verified the key terms of the significant agreements related to service
concession arrangement, by sending confirmations to the grantor.
o HMBEBRETATERRIAGKERERESILERHEERRR

EBHHK

e We evaluated the design and implementation and tested the operating
effectiveness of the relevant internal controls over the capture and
recording of these revenue transactions.

o HMTEHERREHEZZRARS A BADERMN RS RE L
RIS EETHR -

o We reviewed the nature of costs of constructions and inspected the
underlying documentation including estimated total contract costs
approved by management in support of the cost incurred.

o HMRFIBRANMELRECEERERIEEEERARMmILAE
B4R S DM ARERR BRI -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.

R TR

HEBEFREERERARERR

Key Audit Matters
FEERER

Our Audit Procedures Performed and Responses Thereon
HMETEOEIZEF RS e D 8

Service concession arrangements and revenue recognition (continued)

PRI AFEE R R A B (1)

In addition, the Group allocates the consideration for the services provided
under all the concession arrangements by reference to their relative fair values.
The determination of the fair values of the receivables under these agreements
includes complex calculations and significant estimations required such as
discounts rates, future cash flows and other factors used in the determination
of the amortised cost of financial asset and corresponding financial income.
Boh - ERESEMERTCERETHRERBOLE  DEL2REE
HANBE EEZRSTHETERTIEN A BEEERAEREZRA
fEHER LG - MAREEEBEENEHK AR RAAEMBRABHIER
X RKRHEREREMEE -

The accounting policies for revenue recognition are set out in Note 4 to the
financial statements and the disclosure in relation to service concession
arrangements for the Group have been disclosed in Note 17 to the financial
statements.
WARRNEHBREANMBREMT4IREH
H R B M R R MIEET

EE U SHE

o We reviewed (a) management’s computation of amortised cost
of financial receivables and intangible assets; (b) allocation of
consideration between financial receivables and intangible assets
and the related revenue recognition; and (c) tested key management
estimates including discount rates used by comparing to the relevant
market interest rates to identify any inappropriate estimates.

o FfBI(EREFENSRERTIERELEERHENAE (D)
SRENGIELREVEERGAKARREE  RCOAATEERE
st - BRLEE TS EARMNEM T EE At RN RE o

° We have also assessed and validated the appropriateness of the related
accounting entries by management and the related disclosures made in
the financial statements.

e EMMENEREREEEMAEBLIKE EE M R BEREN
{ER BRI -

We have validated and are satisfied with the computations and key management
judgements and estimates adopted for the service concession arrangements
which are reasonably determined to be within the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 and
are properly accounted for in accordance with SFRS(1) INT 12.

MR REMRRE T EELHEMEMOFEREEERE HE R
i BEREERECGTIEEBRMBREEN)REE12FEENTRIE
GInEBEREBREEIDBEF12RZAAE -
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, including the Directors’ Statement set out on pages
97 to 107, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SFRS(I)s and IFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for devising and maintaining
a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that
assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of
true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

BRHEBRRHELRHOBRBAREUIHRH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.

R TR

HEBEFREERERARERR

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the Group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the Group financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

- 12
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From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the
Company and by the subsidiary corporation incorporated in Singapore of which we are the
auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Seah
Gek Choo.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore

26 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= =32
mEBRE
Year ended 31 December 2024
HZ2024F12A31BILFE

Group
50
2024 2023
20244 2023
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bk AR®TT AREFT
Revenue A 4 7,595,654 7,572,892
Cost of sales SHEMR AR (4,977,831) (4,868,530)
Gross profit EH 2,617,823 2,704,362
Other income Heple A 5 102,425 181,303
Other gains and losses Hib s R EE 6 (1,336) (16,402)
Selling and distribution costs SHERDHER (80,830) (79,628)
Administrative expenses THAY (657,008) (576,539)
Finance expenses BBER 8 (779,461) (834,254)
Share of results of joint ventures BIEAEL¥%XE 28 2,487 10,762
Share of results of associates N S 29 9,443 3,916
Profit before tax ReiFlE 1,213,543 1,393,520
Income tax expense P 9 (261,901) (373,864)
Profit for the year FERFE 10 951,642 1,019,656
Profit for the year, attributable to: THEEBEEAFE -
Owners of the Company ARREEA 605,140 604,018
Non-controlling interests R 27 346,502 415,638
Profit for the year FERFE 951,642 1,019,656
Earnings per share: BRET :
Basic (RMB cents per share) EX(BRARED) 11 23.49 23.45
Diluted (RMB cents per share) B (BRARES) 1 23.49 23.45
See accompanying notes to financial statements. R BERZLENHA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEBERRHEMEZERER

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31BILEE
Group
F5%E
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Profit for the year FERFE 951,642 1,019,656
Other comprehensive income: Htt2EKE :
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss RETCEN HEZ BB
Exchange difference arising from translation BEEENERZSE (79,278) (76,493)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss RENEGHEZ B EE
Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign
operations BEBIEBEENELZH 61,494 (90,020)
Total other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax FREMZEKGHE  ENRRAE (17,784) (166,513)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZELEMSH 933,858 853,143
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTERRE2ERSEEH -
Owners of the Company VN/NGIEZZ=DN 587,356 437 505
Non-controlling interests (Note 27) JEE RS (M FE27) 346,502 415,638
Total comprehensive income for the year FERZEKEEHE 933,858 853,143

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

R BHKBEN 2 -
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BBRRE

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

Group Company
x50 e NG|
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 2024% 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BsE AR®TR ARETTT AR®TT AREFT
Current assets mEEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 12 2,918,241 2,885,781 145,909 103,228
Pledged bank deposits BEFRTER 12 67,567 63,010 - -
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H R IE 13 6,394,057 4,990,374 792 1,173
Bills receivables W EE 14 109 1,724 - -
Prepayments B 5E 15 62,122 68,959 3,536 3,660
Inventories FE 16 245,199 250,123 - =
Receivables under service concession RBETEELHET
arrangements — current portion FENTRIE — R E S 17 900,577 887,152 - -
Amounts due from customers for contract work EhREPEHNTIER 18 53,591 75,889 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries PRI A RIIE 19 - - 6,430,861 4,180,243
Amounts due from joint venture EUAEDERE 19 11,000 30,500 - 22,439
Amounts due from associates G AN E ] 19 7,895 7,895 - =
Financial assets at fair value through BAREER ABZRA
profit or loss TREE 20 10,061 9,579 - =
Assets classified as held for sale NEABEHENEE 21 107,741 - - -
Total current assets MEBERRE 10,778,160 9,270,986 6,581,098 4,310,743
Non-current assets FREEE
Financial assets at fair value through other BAABEMAEMEZA
comprehensive income WEMEeREE 22 13,400 13,400 - =
Prepayments R FIE 15 41,262 394,660 - =
Receivables under service concession R E R HIETIE
arrangements — non-current portion WEHIE - EREH D 17 21,041,568 22,374,059 - -
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE K& 23 465,857 477,195 - 44
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 24 60,306 43,963 8,562 8,357
Intangible assets BV EE 25 11,334,107 8,667,682 4,856 5,553
Long term receivables R HIEUBR R 26 81,775 84,395 - =
Deferred tax assets BERERIBEE 9 53,899 51,301 - =
Investment in subsidiaries RETB AR AIRE 27 - - 5,739,858 5,786,607
Interest in joint ventures BEMERER 28 480,444 524,225 354,141 355,474
Interest in associates AN 29 115,724 233,409 - -
Goodwill on consolidation ApEE 30 457,241 457 241 - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEMR B B 2 B RIR 19 - - - 2,997,534
Amounts due from associates JE Ui Bs A B FRIE 19 32,755 15,424 - =
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 34,178,338 33,336,954 6,107,417 9,153,569
Total assets EERE 44,956,498 42,607,940 12,688,515 13,464,312
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Group Company
.30 ] 47
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 2024% 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
B sE AR®TR AREFT AR®TR ARET T
Current liabilities mE AR
Trade and other payables 5 NEMENTE 31 3,782,599 4,306,433 102,776 163,773
Income tax payable FERFTETIR 137,515 150,132 - -
Amounts due to customers for contract work EEEFAENIRER 18 20,037 24,278 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries eI B AR FUE 19 - - 81,248 254,399
Bank and other borrowings RITREAER 32 5,315,861 5,767,008 2,650,500 3,547,536
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 8,191 10,494 2,813 6,783
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 9,264,203 10,258,345 2,837,337 3,972,491
Non-current liabilities EREAR
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMER 32 17,023,019 14,491,791 3,305,470 2,993,898
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 9 2,428,769 2,420,065 - -
Other non-current liabilities HibEREBE 33 114,187 115,163 - =
Lease liabilities HEa’ 24 43,810 32,120 5,749 1,889
Total non-current liabilities ErnBEERE 19,609,785 17,059,139 3,311,219 2,995,787
Capital, reserves and non-controlling BE - iR
interests FRRER
Share capital RN 34 6,604,723 5,920,175 6,604,723 5,920,175
Retained earnings (Accumulated losses) REBBHM (RETER) 4,388,207 3,955,497 (64,764) (163,761)
Other reserves Hib 35 (357,861) 255,835 - 739,620
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARAEE AEER 10,635,069 10,131,507 6,539,959 6,496,034
Non-controlling interests RS 27 5,447,441 5,158,949 - =
Total equity B 16,082,510 15,290,456 6,539,959 6,496,034
Total liabilities and equity BRNESEE 44,956,498 42,607,940 12,688,515 13,464,312
See accompanying notes to financial statements. R BRZ BN
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ERf2E®

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BILEE

Retained
earnings
Share  (Accumulated Other Total
capital losses) reserves equity
REEH
2.3 (REHER) H At HER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR®TR
Company 547
2024 20244
Balance at 1 January 2024 #2024 181 A& 5,920,175 (163,761) 739,620 6,496,034
Profit for the year FRFE - 150,805 - 150,805
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 mEU
Exchange differences arising from translation A% 4 K& X = A X
representing other comprehensive income Hip2HE M
for the year - - (24,449) (24,449)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKEBE - 150,805 (24,449) 126,356

Transactions with owners recognised directly REFPEERINEEALS

in equity
Dividend declared to equity shareholders SR TREERENRE

(Note 36) (P47E36) = (82,431) - (82,431)
Others Hit
Effect of changes in functional currency MEERETNTE

(Note 34 and 35) (Bi7E34 %35) 684,548 30,623 (715,171) -
Balance at 31 December 2024 #2024F12A31 A& 6,604,723 (64,764) - 6,539,959
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Retained

garnings
Share (Accumulated Other Total
capital losses) reserves equity
REEF
A (R&EE) HitfHE R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Company 547
2023 2023
Balance at 1 January 2023 #2023F181 A& 5,920,175 253,832 460,077 6,634,084
Loss for the year FREE - (214,890) - (214,890)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 HE M
Exchange differences arising from translation ~#EEAMNE N ZEAFER
representing other comprehensive income Hip2E M
for the year - - 279,543 279,543
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEREBE - (214,890) 279,543 64,653
Transactions with owners recognised directly REZFTEEERNEE AR S
in equity
Dividend declared to equity shareholders SR TREERENRE
(Note 36) (P97E36) - (202,703) - (202,703)
Balance at 31 December 2023 #2023F12A31 A& 5,920,175 (163,761) 739,620 6,496,034
See accompanying notes to financial statements. R BRZ BN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= ho~i—1
w, \éiﬁ§ﬁiﬂs—%
Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BILEE

Group
50
2024 2023
20244 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BizE AR®TT AREFT
Operating activities: REEH:
Profit before tax ARl bEd 1,213,543 1,393,520
Adjustments: SETFIE B R
Loss allowance for trade receivables, net B S5 RNGIBREBEEE  F8 13 62,134 10,875
Loss allowance for non-trade receivables, net FEDENGIERNBEERE - F8 13 42,471 16,502
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERSERE 23 61,991 38,142
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHHE 25 531,697 399,846
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 24 15,957 11,392
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BERZEER 10 259 21
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEEVEERR 10 90 -
Finance income BB 5 (25,965) (28,805)
Finance expenses BHER 8 779,461 834,254
Share of results of associates i NG ES (9,443) (3,916)
Share of results of joint ventures EILEBEL¥EE (2,487) (10,762)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BAABEAAEENEREE
through profit or loss D EERE 6 (482) (164)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes ESZELEHMHESETHRELR 2,669,232 2,660,905
(Increase) Decrease in: (Em) s
Inventories FE 4,924 (16,640)
Amounts due from customers for contract work, net BNEFANIRT 38 18,057 (2,897)
Trade receivables, other receivables and B SMENGRIE - H At EYGRIE R
prepayments BN (1,412,080) (258,462)
Bills receivables Bk ZE 1,615 (540)
Amounts due from joint venture B A BEBERIE (35,047) (7.472)
Amounts due from associate JE MBS A R FRIE (17,331) 39,614
(Decrease) Increase in: (RA) &
Trade and other payables B 5 KEMENFE
(inclusive of non-current liabilities) (BEFRBAE) (192,127) (226,944)
Bills payable RES - (24,994)
Cash from operating activities before service REBBFEERISRABETD
concession arrangement projects EENRE 1,037,243 2,162,570
Change in receivables under service concession arrangements  ARTE 45 #7484 Ze HE I8 T JE U B
(Note A) (HIEEA) (243,760) (76,024)

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH



Group

50
2024 2023
20244 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(k=3 AR®TT AREFT
Cash from operating activities after service concession REHBIFEERISREESEH
arrangement projects EEMAE 793,483 2,086,546
Interest received B F A 20,886 22,074
Income tax refund FTSRRE 1,549 -
Income tax paid EHREH (250,829) (207,423)
Net cash from operating activities BEIHEENTRPHE 565,089 1,901,197
Investing activities: REED:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERSKE (80,106) (75,659)
Purchase of intangible assets EEEVEE (1,621,560) (1,018,555)
Increase in prepayment for property, plant and equipmentand ~ #1% - BE MR BENEFEE
intangible assets FERERIEM (61,224) (34,663)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment Mm% BEREEREMSHE 1,107 163
Dividend received from joint ventures BWAELERE 54,547 33,579
Prepayment for service concession arrangement PR A8 o B TR BR X - (338,860)
Net cash used in investing activities REZDMARETE (1,707,236) (1,433,995)
Financing activities: BMERE
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMEREAEHE 13,405,883 4,723,748
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERITREMAER (11,211,342) (3,794,034)
Interest paid BEARFIE (837,384) (769,761)
Principal and interest elements of lease payments HERRHNAE RFEHS (11,304) (11,124)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders I TERRREORE (82,431) (202,703)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests in subsidiaries I THRBARIFERERNORE (62,639) (55,092)
Contribution from non-controlling interests upon additional B R RDEABEINE S
capital injection in subsidiaries FERER L E 1,000 23,238
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi FE R R e (22,750) (34,600)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEARTERRLD (4,557) 30,870
Net cash from (used in) financing activities MEEHEE (A NALSE 1,174,476 (89,458)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents FeRBEEEMEAMSE 32,329 377,744
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FOReRACEED 2,885,781 2,512,625
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents [EXZEHIR L LB LSBT E 131 (4,588)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FEXRERALEED 2,918,241 2,885,781
Note A: BITEA -

In accordance with the application of SFRS(I) INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements and SFRS(I) 1-7
Statement of Cash Flows, the movement in the receivables under service concession arrangements has
been classified under operating activities. The movement in the receivables under service concession
arrangements was mainly arising from the construction and/or purchase of new or existing water
treatment and waste incineration facilities for the financial years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

BOMIRBERS SRS ER) BEE12RREHFFLLLH R
ChMEERTBRELR) F-TREDAER - REFFLEE
ZHATRKFAREE HBELEEYET - REFFELR
HETRKHRIEZEEERENBE20245 % 20235124315
IHBEERRR,/ ZBEROIRAKEE R EELEERE -

R BHXBEN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS AR

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

1.

1.1

1.2
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GENERAL

SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company’) is a public limited company,
incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of Singapore and is dual listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST") and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK"). The Group’s immediate and ultimate holding
companies are S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII") incorporated in British
Virgin Islands (‘BVI") and Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“SIIC")
incorporated in Hong Kong respectively. The registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is located at One Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower,
Singapore 039192. Related companies in these financial statements refer to members of
the ultimate holding company’s group of companies.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are set out in Notes
27, 28 and 29 to the financial statements respectively.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is Renminbi (‘RMB’) as the
Group's operations are substantially based in the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and statement of financial position
and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2024 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2025.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except as
disclosed in the material accounting policy information, and are drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act 1967, Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (‘SFRS(I)s’) and IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The financial statements are
expressed in RMB.

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the Group and Company have applied all the new and revised
SFRS(I)s that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after
1 January 2024. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or
on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

1.1

1.2

—RER
FPEEERERRBBAR ([RARF]) BRARE
PRANE] » DA AN A R M A SZ 30 SO AN 8 o5
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RO (B EELT - AREERRER
ERAEDRAREBABAREE ([RBERR
HEDEMRIN L EEZERERAR(LE
EE)EREAREMAIMN LEER (RE) AR
RA([LE]) - RRRMEMHERREES!
WA NEFERE » #37-02XFHE15% - 310K
039192 - ZEMBRROBMA RERKERDF
SEREMHKEAT

ARAMIEEBRARERR  ATE2WEBRA
RELERBERRANEEXB D HERMBRE
fiiE27 - 28 %29
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GENERAL (continued)
Standards issued but not effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group and Company have
not applied the following SFRS(I) pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

e Amendments to SFRS(I) 9 and SFRS(I) 7: Amendments fo the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments

e Annual improvements to SFRS(I)s — Volume 11

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

e SFRS(I) 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

Management anticipates that the adoption of the above SFRS(I)s, SFRS(I) INTs and
amendments to SFRS(I) in future periods will not have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Group and Company in the period of their initial adoption
except for the following:

SFRS(1) 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

SFRS(1) 18 replaces SFRS(I) 1-1 Presentation of Financial Statements, carrying forward
many of the requirements in SFRS(I) 1-1 unchanged and complementing them with new
requirements. In addition, some SFRS(I) 1-1 paragraphs have been moved to SFRS(I)
1-8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and SFRS(I) 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Furthermore, minor amendments to SFRS(I) 1-7
Statement of Cash Flows and SFRS(1) 1-33 £arnings per Share have been made.

—HER (1))

BB K £ R 2R
REEMBREERETE RS ARERAAF
1Rl A P DA T B AR 1EL e R A 2000 € gk B e
BREREA) D -

7202651 A1 B sz 2 FRIREVFE B AR

o GRMRERHBES LA EIRR MK
BRAHRE LA ETR2 BT  2HTA
PERAH B2 54T

o (GIIMRERMEHRS
EEg::

) — BENBZF

1202751 A1 B 3 RFABNFE RN

o (HMRKBRMBREER) F18RIFHX
ZEJRBE

ERERMNARBMRN DL MR AR
HEEA)  GIMABRIGRE L) RRR
GRMSERESES LA 2T T H A %S
AR AR R IO B RREREAY
2 BATHERR

GhnsBRM B REER) F18RGFHA L2
FIRRKE

CHT 3R B R A T 3 2 A1) S5 18 S R AK (A ISt R
BMBREEN)EV1RGFHXZES  n
G ERMBREENDE11RPOZERTE
A& WEARTARE T AR o sboh - G EIRR
MBHREER) F1-1ROBLBRECBEGIIIR
BB RS EA) F1-8REBFHE - Bt hitE
EREHNRCGHNEBRABREER) FETHL
BITE : KF - o BHGTIRER R RS
BN E-TREDRER LA MR ER M B3RS
ERI) E1-33 KRBT ELEMIERT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS AR

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

1.
1.3

2.1
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GENERAL (continued)
Standards issued but not effective (continued)
SFRS(I) 18 introduces new requirements to:

e present specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or
loss;

e provide disclosures on management-defined performance measures (MPMs) in
the notes to the financial statements; and

° improve aggregation and disaggregation.

An entity is required to apply SFRS(I) 18 for annual reporting periods beginning or
on or after 1 January 2027, with earlier application permitted. The amendments to
SFRS(I) 1-7 and SFRS(I) 1-33, as well as the revised SFRS(I) 1-8 and SFRS(I) 7,
become effective when an entity applies SFRS(I) 18. SFRS(I) 18 requires retrospective
application with specific transition provisions.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

This section sets out the (1) material accounting policy information upon which the
Group’s financial statements are prepared as a whole and (2) other material accounting
policy information not otherwise described in the notes to the financial statements.
Where material accounting policy information is specific to a line item in the financial
statements, the policy is described within the note for that line item.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group
has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
Details of the Group’s significant subsidiaries and composition of the group are
disclosed in Note 27.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to align their accounting policies with the those of the Group.
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

2.1
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s
equity and are initially measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to the
acquisition date, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests are adjusted for the
non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity. Losses are attributed to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised
in profit or loss is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as required/
permitted by applicable SFRS(I) Standards). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under SFRS(I) 9 Financial Instruments
when applicable, or the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are carried at cost less any impairment in net recoverable value that
has been recognised in profit or loss.

Company’s separate financial statements

Investment in subsidiaries in the Company's separate financial statements are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is
neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies. Details of the Group’s material associates
are disclosed in Note 29.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. Details of the Group’s material joint venture are disclosed in Note 28.

Equity method of accounting

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Investment in each associate or joint venture is initially recognised at cost, and are
subsequently accounted for by including the Group’s share of its profit or loss and other
comprehensive income or loss in the carrying amount of the investment until the date
on which significant influence or joint control ceases. Dividends received reduce the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses.

When a Group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to align the associate’s or joint venture’s accounting policies with
the those of the Group.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are measured and presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(its functional currency). The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are
presented in RMB as the Group’s operations are substantially based in the PRC. The
Company had reassessed and changed its functional currency from Singapore Dollars
(“S$") to RMB with effect from 1 July. The changes in the functional currency was
applied prospectively from the date of change (1 July 2024). On the date of change in
functional currency, all items of the Company's statement of financial position were
translated into RMB at the exchange rate on that date. As a result, the cumulative
currency translation differences which arose up to the date of the change of functional
currency were reallocated to share capital and accumulated losses.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Foreign currency transactions and translation (continued)

In preparing the financial statements of the respective Group entities, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing
on the reporting date. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a
foreign exchange translation reserve.

Upon the disposal of the entire interest in a foreign operation during the year, all of the
exchange differences accumulated in the foreign exchange translation reserve in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities (including monetary items that, in substance, form
part of the net investment in foreign entities), and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the
header of “translation reserve’.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of SFRS(I) 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of SFRS(I) 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in SFRS(I)
1-2 Inventories or value in use in SFRS(I) 1-36 /mpairment of Assels.

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to

which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of

the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Refer to Note 43 for details of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on
basis described above or where such fair values are disclosed.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value (except for trade receivables that do
not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction price),
net of transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets (other than those at fair value through profit or loss). Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Classification of financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") based on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTQOCI):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification of financial assets (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/
designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

e the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and

e the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised
cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTQCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-
by-instrument basis) to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument that is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which SFRS(I) 3 applies.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or loss is
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead, it is
transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss

in accordance with SFRS(I) 9, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part

of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in

profit or loss.

The Group designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading

as at FVTOCI on initial recognition (Note 22).

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e it isa derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

e Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group
designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI on initial
recognition.

° Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI
criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Group has not designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item (Note 6). Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 43.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") on trade
and other receivables, contract assets and other debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial asset.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and amounts due
from customers for contract work. The expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information
that relate to the Group’s core operations, namely the environmental industry.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 90 days past due for corporate/individual debtors
and more than 3 years for government debtors, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset is determined to have low credit risk
if i) the financial asset has a low risk of default, ii) the debtor has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong financial position
and there are no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

e When there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

e information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 1 year past due for corporate/individual debtors and more
than 5 years for government debtors unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

Qo

) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that

the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

g)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss. None of the trade
receivables that have been written off is subject to enforcement activities.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific
future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence

of significant increases in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be

available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and other receivables and
amounts due from customers are each assessed as a separate group. Loans to
related parties are assessed for expected credit losses on an individual basis);

e  Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

FREHBREH ()

&R IA (#)

SRR E (W)

SREERE(8)

MHBF

ERENBRZZHTRABREM RS BV E

BRI EE AT aE 2B (PIINEB A EIEAR

ERF) AEEMEEREE AEEERNTHE

ERAEBAR ENMENEREENAIRELSE

IMW@&ﬁ L HESR BT - EARE AN ES
- BAHEMIENE 5B RFRRIE BT

ﬁ@°

BHEEEBZHERER
BHEEBE A EEHENRER BHEX

E(AMENRZBEBA/N) RENRERHO < L
BERENBARZTEDER ERCATEEER
AR ALEE - ERENERKD  HeREE
s  AREERRE S RERETRE 5
EFRERVBERAOME - RBRHROEERR
SAMERRCSE  EREMETERRTELD
AE (REESLBE  AEEHEBKAZERIRK
BMETKZER  UREMBBAEEERNET)
BRI 2 BN RE o

EREECRBEERRERBANENARE L

AERHNREREAARERATUE AR E
nE (RREERMEIER) AOERME -

f

B

REREEGNECENRNEERRE - UEER
EINTAERHREERRBE LA ZERRNAE
BZBER  eMIATRUTEESE

o SHMIAZHE(NALEZESREME
WHEREREFFIBEAEREBARF
fl - BEAMH B FIREREETEESE
EER)

o MEAER

o BEHRAZME RERNETE R

A 2N E ERTAR -

EEEERRA AL IRREEBEN A
KRB BEABHEUZ EERBRES -



MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses (continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which the simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying
amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast,
on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected
on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,
but is transferred to retained earnings.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include trade and other payables and bank and
other borrowings. These are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liabilities, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Service concession arrangements
Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised to
the extent that the Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial
asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services rendered
and/or the consideration paid and payable by the Group for the right to manage and
operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a) specified
or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of the public service and specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment
is contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified quality
of efficiency requirements. The financial asset (receivable under service concession
arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for “Financial
instruments” below.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Service concession arrangements (continued)
Consideration given by the grantor (continued)

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the extent that the Group
receives a right to charge users of the public service. The intangible assets (operating
concession) are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the operation phase of
the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly
by an intangible asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of the consideration.

Changes in the contractual terms for the service concession arrangements are accounted
for prospectively based on the fair value of the financial asset and/or intangible asset at
the date of change.

Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue and costs relating to construction phase of a concession arrangement is
accounted for in accordance to SFRS(I) 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
The Group recognises the construction revenue with reference to the fair value of the
construction service delivered in the construction phase. The fair value of such service
is estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference to the prevailing market rate of gross
margin and borrowing rates. Consequently, the Group recognised a profit margin on the
construction work by reference to the stage of completion and in accordance with the
policy for “Construction contracts” below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the policy
for “Revenue recognition (operating and maintenance income)” in Note 4.

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to a specified level of
serviceability

When the Group has contractual obligations that it must fulfil as a condition of its
licence for operating concessions, that is (a) to maintain the infrastructure to a specified
level of serviceability and/or (b) to restore the infrastructure to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of the service concession
arrangement, these contractual obligations to maintain or restore the infrastructure
are recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions for
major overhauls” in Note 33.

Repair and maintenance and other expenses that are routine in nature are expensed and
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s material accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which
are presented separately below), that management has made in the process of applying
the Group's material accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts reported in the financial statements.

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with certain
governmental authorities or their agencies (‘grantor”) in the PRC on a Build-Operate-
Transfer (“BOT"), Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT"), Build-Operate-Own (“BOQ") or
Transfer-Operate-Own (“TO0") basis in respect of its businesses. The Group concluded
that these BOT, TOT, BOO and TOO arrangements are service concession arrangements
under SFRS(I) INT 12, because (i) the grantors control and regulate the services that
the Group must provide with the infrastructure, to whom the Group must provide the
services and at a pre-determined service charge; and (ii) the grantor controls significant
residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangements.
Generally, in respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry of service concession
arrangements, the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government
authorities or their agencies at no or minimal consideration. Infrastructure in respect of
BOO and TOO arrangements is expected to be used for its entire or substantially entire
useful life.

As explained in Note 2.6 to the financial statements, the Group recognises the
consideration received or receivable in exchange for the construction services as
a financial asset and/or an intangible asset under public-to-private concession
arrangement. However, if the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a
financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, it is necessary to account separately
for each component of the operator's consideration. The consideration received or
receivable for both components shall be recognised initially at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable (see below).

Determination of functional currency of the entities in the Group

SFRS(1) 1-21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates requires the Company
and the entities in the Group to determine its functional currency to prepare the financial
statements. When determining its functional currency, the Company and the entities in
the Group consider the primary economic environment in which it operates, i.e. the one
in which it primarily generates and expends cash. The Company and the entities in the
Group may also consider the funding sources.

Upon the completion of the loan restructuring exercise for the Company with the
conversion of all non-RMB denominated loans and loan receivables to RMB in June
2024, the Company has reviewed and assessed that its business and operating
environment will primarily be in RMB. As a result of this change, the Company changed
its functional currency from Singapore dollar to RMB with effect from 1 July 2024. The
changes in the functional currency was applied prospectively from the date of change
(1 July 2024). No retrospective adjustments had been made as there is no change in
presentation currency for the Company.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s material accounting policies
(continued)

Determination of material entities (subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates) and non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interest

For purposes of meeting the requirements under SFRS(I) 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, the Group has assessed all subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
which the Group has an interest based on (i) quantitative factors (i.e. their individual
contribution to the Group’s net profit and/or statement of financial position); and (ii)
qualitative factors. Management applied its judgement in determining the material
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates; and non-wholly owned subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interest. Management had assessed the disclosure
requirements of non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest
and determined such disclosure to be made at a sub-group level. Information as
required under SFRS(I) 12 are disclosed under Notes 27, 28 and 29.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of each reporting period, when the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference
to the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date to the estimated
total contract costs.

Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion, the extent
of the contract costs incurred, the estimated total revenue and estimated total contract
cost, as well as the recoverability of the contract costs incurred. Total contract revenue
may include an estimation of the variation works recoverable from the customers. In
making these estimates, management has relied on past experience and knowledge of
project engineers.

The stage of completion of each construction contract is assessed on a cumulative
basis in each accounting year. Changes in estimate of contract revenue or contract
costs, or the effect of a change in the estimate of the outcome of a contract could
impact the amount of revenue and expense recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the change is made and in subsequent years. Such impact could potentially be
significant.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising from construction contracts at the
end of each reporting period are disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements.

The Group has recognised revenue amounting to RMB1,795,861,000 (2023:
RMB1,868,213,000) from construction contracts which relates to revenue recognised for
the third party constructed infrastructure in relation to service concession arrangements.
The overall gross profit margin for construction contracts is at 12% (2023: 12%), of
which the gross profit margin recognised for third party constructed infrastructure in
relation to service concession arrangements is 12% (2023: 12%).
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LY

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Service concession arrangements

Where the Group performs more than one service under the concession arrangements,
the consideration for the services provided under the concession arrangements is
allocated to the components by reference to their relative fair values.

Estimation is exercised in determining the fair values of the receivables under service
concession arrangements as well as impairment of the receivables under service
concession arrangements and intangible assets subsequent to initial recognition.
Discount rates (reflecting the grantor's incremental borrowing rates), estimates of
future cash flows and other factors are used in the determination of the amortised cost
of financial asset and corresponding finance income. The Group has considered the
relevant sources of the discount rate and due to limited publicly available information
on the borrowing rates across the various municipalities and cities in PRC, the Group
assessed that the use of the People’s Bank of China Loan Prime Rate for loans greater
than five years as the discount rate reflects the long-term borrowing cost in PRC which
is a reasonable proxy of the grantor's incremental borrowing rate for the Group as a
whole.

The assumptions used and estimates made can materially affect the fair value estimates.
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial receivables and intangible assets arising
from service concession arrangements at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
Notes 17 and 25 to the financial statements respectively.

During the financial year, the Group has also recognised operating and maintenance
revenue from service concession arrangements amounting to RMB3,938,089,000 (2023:
RMB3,949,889,000).

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual obligations
to maintain the waste water and water treatment plants to a specified level of
serviceability and/or to restore the plants to a specified condition before they are
handed over to the grantors at the end of the service concession periods. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the waste water and water treatment
plants, except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured in accordance
with SFRS(1) 1-37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at the
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The future expenditure on these maintenance and
restoration costs is collectively referred to as ‘major overhauls”. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

As at 31 December 2024, the provision for major overhauls amounted to
RMB44,748,000 (2023: RMB42,890,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

During the financial year, the Group recognised loss allowance for trade and other
receivables (net of written-back during the year) amounting to RMB104,611,000 (2023:
RMB27,377,000).

When measuring ECL, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different
economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default
is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets at the end of each reporting period
is disclosed in Notes 12, 13, 14, 17, 18, 19, 20, 22 and 26 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there is any indicator of impairment for non-financial
assets including investment in subsidiaries, interest in joint ventures and associates,
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets and goodwill, at
each reporting date. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and at other
times when such indicators exist. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing the asset. The value in
use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the asset or cash generating unit for 5 years or for the remaining
concession period, whichever applicable, and do not include restructuring activities
that the Group has yet to commit or significant future investments that will enhance the
asset's performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating costs. The recoverable amount is most
sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model, the expected
future cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Further details
of the key assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill, are given in
Note 30 to the financial statements. The carrying amounts of the non-financial assets
are disclosed in Notes 23, 24, 25, 28, 29 and 30 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax

The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax at the end of each reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences can be utilised, including taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or there
is future taxable profit available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
This involves judgement regarding the future performance and tax laws. The carrying
amounts of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 9 to the financial
statements.

Income tax

The Group is subjected to income taxes in Singapore and PRC. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will
impact the income tax provision in the period in which such determination is made.
The carrying amount of the Group's income tax payable at 31 December 2024 is
RMB137,515,000 (2023: RMB150,132,000).
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4,

REVENUE 4. WA
Group
.31
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Segment revenue (Note 41) SEHBA (HEE4)
Construction revenue: BHRA
— water and sludge treatment — K& REIE 1,275,528 960,722
— water supply — itk 282,423 403,534
— waste incineration - EBEEE 237,910 503,957
1,795,861 1,868,213
Operating and maintenance income from RS E T B R
Service concession arrangements:
— water and sludge treatment —KEEREE 2,934,219 2,860,256
— water supply — itk 763,707 742,860
— waste incineration - EERE 240,163 346,773
3,938,089 3,949,889
Financial income from service concession arrangements: BT EE TR B -
— water and sludge treatment — KR5S REE 1,062,229 1,106,208
— waste incineration - EEEE 173,128 125,450
1,235,357 1,231,658
Service income: RSN -
— water and sludge treatment — KR5S REE 136,071 102,875
— water supply — itk 77,665 75,584
213,736 178,459
Others Hit
— water and sludge treatment — k&5 R 243,547 190,650
— water supply — itk 148,443 154,023
— waste incineration - EEEE 20,621 =
412,611 344,673
7,595,654 7,572,892
Timing of revenue recognition W A RER2RFRY
At a point in time: RE(ER R
— Operating and maintenance income from — R E S E T B LRI
service concession arrangements 3,938,089 3,949,889
QOver time: —BRRE
— Construction revenue — EERMA 1,795,861 1,868,213
— Financial income from Service concession arrangements — RIS RS A R HE I U 1,235,357 1,231,658
— Service income — RIS WA 213,736 178,459
— Others —Hfth 412,611 344 673
3,657,565 3,623,003
7,595,654 7,572,892
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REVENUE (continued)

Management expects that 100% (2023: 100%) of the transaction price allocated to
the unsatisfied construction contracts as of 31 December 2024 will be recognised as
construction revenue during the next reporting period amounting to RMB1,540,000,000
(2023: RMB1,896,210,000).

Material accounting policy information
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service
to a customer.

Construction revenue

Where the outcome of a construction contract including construction or upgrading
services of the infrastructure under a service concession arrangement, can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as measured by the proportion
that contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total
contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion.
Construction revenue is therefore recognised over time on a cost-to-cost method, i.e.
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to
the estimated total contract costs.

Management considers that this input method is an appropriate measure of the progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under SFRS(I) 15.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Operating and maintenance income/Service income

Operating and maintenance income relates to the income derived from managing
and operating of infrastructure under service concession arrangements. All other
income derived from the managing and operating of infrastructure under non-service
concession arrangements is classified as service income.

Operating and maintenance income are recognised at a point in time and service income
are recognised over time.
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REVENUE (continued) 4. WA ()

Financial income SRBA
Financial income from service concession arrangement is recognised when it is RERBFHTEE RN BBAREEN R
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income BRAREEBWASBEASTENER - 2/
can be measured reliably. Financial income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to WAT2BAEEASERERERFIRIZEHEE
the principal outstanding and at the applicable effective interest rate, which is the rate B2 BEFXABREBEENTESRTRFH
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the N EE R R e BRI REN S RRZEE
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. R BREFEML X o
Other revenue Hitir A
Other revenue is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the service period as HAn U A Th 3 4R AR 7% B0 AR 75 BRI R B B 4R 0E 5
services are rendered. Bk e
OTHER INCOME 5. HftilkA
Group
*5H
2024 2023
2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
N & ARBFT
Interest income on bank balances PITHATIEMA 23,765 24,888
Other interest income EnF S HA 2,200 3,917
Government subsidies BT 5 8h 62,463 67,607
Installation and production works REREETR 8,486 77,999
Others Hith 5,511 6,892
102,425 181,303
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. Htuh@RER
Group
50
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AERTT AREFT
Fair value gain on financial assets held at FVTPL BAREEIIAERRENEREER
AR EERE 482 164
Others Hot (1,818) (16,566)
(1,336) (16,402)
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7. PERSONNEL EXPENSES AERX

Group

550
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Wages, salaries and bonuses I& Hekita 594,310 568,544
Defined contribution plans ERMNEE 185,549 163,556
Others Hitp 77,976 71,931
857,835 804,031

This includes amounts shown as compensation of Directors and key management
personnel in Note 40.

L BEMFAMBESRIREEEABTME
e

8. FINANCE EXPENSES MBAEA

Group

x50
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREBTTT
Interest expense on interest-bearing loans and borrowings TERERRETMFIEFRST 773,887 830,576
Financial expense on amortisation of benefits to ex-employees AIEERMEHNMEER 982 1,099
Interest expense on lease liabilities HERBFNERE 4,592 2,579
779,461 834,254

Material accounting policy information FESHBFEEH

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. Borrowing costs also include interest expense arising from lease
liabilities.
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FINANCE EXPENSES (continued)
Material accounting policy information (continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for
their intended use or sale are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

INCOME TAX
Income tax expense

8. MERA(ME)
EERABRAH (W)
EERBRABREE (RRELBRERKHEST
REIREREAAIHERENEE) BE - 2
EREENESRNAS  BEEEELRAEREER
HREREIAHERERT—ITB 2B TAKA
Bt NG FEERBA °
BHEEHRANAEREENF XA RELRERE
FIRSHERBRA - B AEREMCMERAA
PHIRR -
FAEMEFRAEREELBENBEHR -

9. F#RR

9.1 F#RAX

Group
F%E
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFT
Current tax: REIRIE
— Current year - AFE 269,902 298,237
— Overprovision in respect of prior years - BAFEREEE (15,346) (23,143)
Deferred tax: BRI
— Current year —KEE 7,323 94,997
— Underprovision in respect of prior years - BEFERETR 22 3,773
261,901 373,864

The corporate income tax applicable to the Singapore companies of the Group is 17%
(2023: 17%).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") on Enterprise Income
Tax (‘EIT") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. In accordance with the “Income
Tax Law of the PRC for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises”,
certain subsidiaries, engaging in public infrastructure projects, are entitled to full
exemption from EIT for the first three years and a 50% reduction in EIT for the next
three years from the first year of generating operating income.

ERRAEBHINE A A EARO L EREHBR
B17% (20234 : 17%) °

RECPEARAME ([HE]) REMRERE)
(KEERBRE)]) RAEEMEREEEE
By REKBLRANTEE2008F1 A1HEAR
25% ° RSP BN RELEMINB L EFER
E) BETHELAAERRMEBENOMBLAREE
EELRENANEFES  TRE-FZ2H2
BREEAER - LNBER=FERE50% XM
B/ -
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9.
9.1

- 152

INCOME TAX (continued)
Income tax expense (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the

consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

9. FiRR ()
9.1 FRFIRMAX ()

RERENMERAX T RS BERMEHAMNE
HERIE

Group
3|
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
Profit before tax BiRIF)E 1,213,543 1,393,520
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to in the countries BRERRAEREEERRY
where the Group operates @ BB X E MR 460,126 458,159
Adjustments: e
Non-deductible expenses OEEN:1T 12,203 6,007
Income not subject to tax BEERBIA (187,086) (119,304)
Qverprovision in respect of prior years BEFERERE (15,324) (19,370)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures BEBEARREELEEE (1,909) (509)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AEREERBEE 22,038 30,092
Utilisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets BRI RERELEHIBEE (55,660) (37,986)
Withholding tax IR 37,104 56,740
Others Hith (9,591) 35
261,901 373,864

@ The reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national

jurisdiction.
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INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FifRiR (&)
Deferred tax 9.2 BERHE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the Group and NTAARERAEE BT FERRANEZRT
movement thereon during the current and prior years: MEEE (BE) AREEE)
Arising from Fair value

service  Undistributed  adjustments
concession earnings of  on business

arrangements  PRC entities  combinations Tax losses QOthers Total
RERBET  FEEBES  EBAHN
e KPRBF AREERE WIBER Hit CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2023 R2023%1R18 1,267,535 16,795 988,156 (62,446) 18,775 2,228,815
Charged (Credited) to profit or loss  7E &35 (HABH) 91,961 - (8,370) 15,179 - 98,770
Exchange differences EHESE - - 41179 - - 41179
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12831H 1,359,496 16,795 1,020,965 (47,267) 18,775 2,368,764
Charged (Credited) to profit or loss ~ 7EiB& Bk (T AEZ) 85,716 - (85,548) 16,034 (8,857) 7345
Exchange differences EHESE = = - - (1,239) (1,239)
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12R31H 1,445,212 16,795 935,417 (31,233) 8,679 2,374,870
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of financial position, certain deferred RHBRAEXNZINENME - ETEEHIEEE
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred RABCDESE - AT RHEBERE B NH = MET
tax balances for financial reporting purposes: MBI
Group
x50

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREBTT
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 2,428,769 2,420,065
Deferred tax assets BREREAE (53,899) (51,301)
2,374,870 2,368,764
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately RE|EBRR - AREA AT HHE 8RR B A
RMB980,939,000 (2023: RMB1,061,622,000) available for offset against future MREATIEBEL AR 980,939,000t (2023

assessable profits. F: AR%1,061,622,0007T) °
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9.
9.2
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INCOME TAX (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, certain subsidiaries have unused tax losses of approximately
RMB131,468,000, RMB151,084,000, RMB248,610,000, RMB244,467,000 and
RMB205,310,000 (2023: RMB98,606,000, RMB160,592,000, RMB274,904,000,
RMB288,225,000 and RMB239,295,000) expiring in 2025, 2026, 2027, 2028 and 2029
(2023:in 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028) respectively.

A deferred tax asset amounting to approximately RMB31,233,000 (2023:
RMB47,267,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately RMB124,932,000
(2023: RMB189,068,000) has been recognised for the Group. No deferred tax asset
was recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of the Group of RMB856,007,000
(2023: RMB872,554,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The use of these tax losses is subjected to the agreement of the tax authorities and
compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation of the respective countries in
which the companies operate. The use of PRC tax losses will expire within the next five
years.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by PRC entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at end of
the reporting period, the Group has recognised deferred tax liability of RMB16,795,000
(2023: RMB16,795,000) in respect of undistributed profits retained by PRC entities in
the consolidated financial statements.

Material accounting policy information

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax. It is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Current tax

Current tax payable represents the amount expected to be paid to taxation authorities
on taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods. The
amount of current tax payable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
that reflects the uncertainty related to income taxes.
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INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from (i)
initial recognition of goodwill; or (ii) initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled, or the asset is realised based on the tax laws and rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Offsetting

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and the group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FAFHE

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

FRFBEMRR GEA) TFIBE

Group
x50
2024 2023
20244 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 AR%TR AREFT
Loss allowance for trade receivables, net BIRMGUBNEEES 38 13 62,134 10,875
Loss allowance for non-trade receivables, net FEHRUMABENEEERE  F8 13 42,477 16,502
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - BELZBITE 23 61,991 38,142
Amortisation of intangible assets BREAESHE 25 531,697 399,846
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRERENE 24 15,957 11,392
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERREER 259 21
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEEVEERR 90 =
Fair value gain on financial assets held at FVTPL BAABEMAAEEZREN
PREENAABERE 6 (482) (164)
Foreign exchange difference, net SN Z R 324 5,329
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets EBRHERBEAENRSE 10,145 5,675
Research costs TN 20,611 22,144
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ERBRINFEKAR 572,296 593,943
Audit fees: =G
— paid to auditors of the Company — B ALD B EAD 2,170 2,082
— paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company ~ — BN AR BZEEIKE A A 6,026 5,546
— paid to other auditors (inclusive of internal audit fee) - BNEMZEM (BERNETER) 7,405 6,070
Total audit fees B ERET 15,601 13,698
Non-audit fees: FEHER
— paid to auditors of the Company — BERARREZEED 447 348
— paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company ~ — BENARRIZEAMKE A A 813 1,070
— paid to other auditors — BT E &R 75 271
Total non-audit fees O FEFERBED 1,335 1,689

0 Total non-audit fees include agreed-upon services, tax compliance services and review of
selected financial information.

The non-audit fees paid to the auditors of the Company and member firms of the

auditors of the Company include fees for audit-related services of RMB1,115,000 (2023:
RMB712,000).
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 11. SEERF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share (‘EPS") attributable to ARAEEANEEERERAREERA ([BRE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: R THIRBE TS E -
Group
x50
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
IN: S AREBTT
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted EPS FEEAREEGRENNFE
(profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company) (RAREE AEEFARE) 605,140 604,018
2024 2023
20245 20234
No. of shares No. of shares
Kip& A R EE
’000 ‘000
T Fhx
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the FEERRBETREFMN
purpose of basic and diluted EPS LRI 2,575,666 2,575,666

Material accounting policy information

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

FEEHBRAH
BRERBMTRA D RIEAR AR FAFIERIA
FRETENEBRIMETIHGE -

SREERNDRARAARER ARIEFANE
RERNBTENEBBIEFOREE - ERE
BEERTAREN -

Annual Report 20245 5% 157 |l
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B R R M
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202412 A31H

12.

- 158

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

12. ReRBELERY CEABRTER

Group Company
x50 e NG|

2023 2024 2023
20234 20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT AR®TT AREFT
Cash and bank balances Re RiRITEH 2,985,808 2,948,791 145,909 103,228
Pledged bank deposits (Note 39) BRI (HEE39) (63,010) - -
Cash and cash equivalents Be KR EEY 2,918,241 2,885,781 145,909 103,228

Cash and cash equivalents have maturity period of less than three months and carry
interest at market rate, ranging from 0.01% to 1.80% (2023: 0.01% to 2.10%) per
annum.

The pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted by
these banks and use of certain operating concessions. The pledged bank deposits have
maturity period of less than one year (2023: less than one year) and carry interest at
fixed interest rates ranging from 0.10% to 2.75% (2023: 0.30% to 2.60%) per annum
and floating interest rates of 0.35% (2023: 0.35%) per annum.

RMB2,778 million (2023: RMB2,756 million) of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are held with PRC banks and are subject to certain restrictions based on rules and
regulations issued by State Administration of Foreign Exchange in PRC.

Material accounting policy information

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, demand deposits, bank
overdrafts, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13. HAREMBKRER

Group Company
*5H o5

2024 2023 2024 2023

2024F 20234 2024 20235

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETT

Trade receivables (inclusive of retention monies) ZHENFE (REREBE) 5,652,354 4,090,321 - =

Less: Loss allowance o BRERE (133,286) (71,152) - -

5,519,068 4,019,169 = =

Other receivables H At fE W TR IE 946,224 999,963 792 1,173

Less: Loss allowance o BRERE (71,235) (28,758) - -

874,989 971,205 792 1,173

Total trade and other receivables BB S REMERIE 6,394,057 4,990,374 792 1,173

(i) Asat 1 January 2023, trade receivables from contracts with customers amounted (i) M2023F1B18 » BERAHNEFENRZIES

to RMB3,437,943,000 (net of loss allowances of RMB60,277,000). ARM3,437,943,0007C IR BEEEAR

#60,277,0007T) °

(i) Trade receivables exclusive of retention monies are non-interest bearing with (i) BIEUZE(FTEERBL)ARE  EE

credit periods generally ranging from 0 to 180 (2023: 0 to 180) days. H—NTF0Z 180K (20234F : 02180K) °

(iii) Trade receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 39 to the financial (i) AEFEROEFREUTERTBRRENE
statements. R

(iv) Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured at an amount equal (iv) BZE2024F R%2023F12 A31 H LB R F

to lifetime ECL in accordance with SFRS(I) 9 for the financial year ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The ECL on trade receivables are estimated by reference to past default experience
of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(iv) (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of loss allowance,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

13. HHAREMEBYKRE ()

(iv) (&)

ATRARBEBREZEZAH2IINEHE
WEIE (R EREE) REDT

Group

*5E
2024 2023
20245 20235
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AER®ETF T
Within 30 days 308 A 865,481 1,133,684
Within 31 to 60 days 31ZE60HA 403,165 382,217
Within 61 to 90 days 61290HA 382,549 348,617
Within 91 to 180 days 91Z180HR 1,022,262 684,525
Within 181 to 365 days 1813650 1,224,869 554,497
QOver 365 days 818365 H 1,620,742 915,629
5,519,068 4,019,169

(v)  Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RMB2,841,357,000 (2023:
RMB1,717,240,000) that are past due at the end of the reporting period but not
impaired. The Group has not recognised loss allowance for trade receivables
because management is of the opinion that the amounts will be fully recoverable
as management has assessed that there will not be a significant change in credit
quality of the debtors taking into account the historical experience and general
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these receivables and the analysis of their aging
(based on invoice date) at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

EAHELERENE SR

AEEFAENRERROBETEREN
Z 5 e FE AR 2,841,357,0007T (2023
£ AR®1,717,240,0007T) - REE LK
BRESEIFENESEREE FATERE
REERNERBAEBRESABEMEN
ENERLERRE DAGEBANEE
EXBTQREEREY NEBELETR
P - AEBTERZERKFERZET
AEER  RBREHARREZAHEINE
SREMFBROREITNT

Group

F%E
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Within 30 days 308 A 266,937 83,273
Within 31 to 60 days 31Z60HA 290,388 239,050
Within 61 to 90 days 61ZE90HA 414,658 186,966
Within 91 to 180 days 91E180HR 340,880 188,238
Within 181 to 365 days 1812365 HA 644,922 280,319
Over 365 days #8i@365H 883,572 739,394
2,841,357 1,717,240
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(vi) Trade receivables past due and impaired

The Group's trade receivables that are past due and impaired at the end of the
reporting period and the movement of the allowance accounts used to record the

impairment are as follows:

13. RHRAMBBRKST (&)
(vi) 2@ ERENSESERTE

AEERBEHERDRHAHNENE HEK
FREREERENERRENEBNT

Group
350
2024 2023
2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Trade receivables B S RWGE 1,005,565 90,402
Less: Loss allowance B BEERE (133,286) (71,152)
872,279 19,250
Movements in the loss allowance of trade receivables S BMRRRREED
Group
%0
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREBTT
At beginning of the year F1 71,152 60,277
Allowance made during the year (Note 10) FRER (FiE10) 62,134 10,875
At end of the year FXR 133,286 71,152

(vii) Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of
the reporting period relate to debtors that are slow in making payments or are in
significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments.

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RMB1,805,432,000 (2023:
RMB2,282,679,000) that are not past due and not impaired at the end of the

reporting period.

(viii) Other receivables

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair values. These

amounts are non-trade and unsecured.

Other receivables mainly comprise (a) non-interest-bearing amounts due from third
parties of RMB142 million (2023: RMB298 million) which are repayable on demand: (b)
VAT and tax receivables of RMB558 million (2023: RMB535 million) and (c) refundable

deposits of RMB27 million (2023: RMB24 million).

(vii) RBEBRREBETERAENE SRR
B REENRRER AN BRELHR
DEGIETEING

AEEBRERBREPRERBHMEREN
Z 5 el AR 1,805,432,0007T (2023
0 AR#2,282,679,0007T) ©

(vill) EftERFE

HiEWRaNRaEEE AR BERS
FZETRRIFBHILE LEEM -

HERRATEOE(QERE=ZFEEFTEBA
R¥1.42(870 (20235 : AR#2.98187L) » IR
EREE  (b)BEFMRERFTEARESS58ET
(2023%F : AR¥5.35(7T) : R(c)REEZEE A
R#2,7008 7t (20234 : AR¥2,40087T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Loss allowance for non-trade receivables is assessed in accordance with SFRS(I) 9 for
the financial years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

14.

15.

;. 162

Movements in the loss allowance of non-trade receivables:

13.

B RHtE IR ()

BZE2024F R2023F12 A3 B ILEIBFEE » Ik E
PGB EEEGRRBGINERBHBRE
RN FISF BT o

FESRUREERLERD

Group
50
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
At beginning of the year 2] 28,758 12,256
Allowance made during the year (Note 10) FR%ER (FFE10) 42,471 16,502
At end of the year FR 71,235 28,758
BILLS RECEIVABLES 14. BRRE

Bills receivables are non-interest bearing with credit periods generally ranging from 90

to 180 (2023: 90 to 180) days.

BUREBARE  FEEH-KNFIOEISKX
(20234 : 90E180K) °

PREPAYMENTS 15. BIRE
Group Company
*5H e NG|
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT AR®TT AREFT
Prepayments to suppliers B EE A 28,831 42,761 - =
Others HAith 33,291 26,198 3,536 3,660
Total prepayment, current IR e (A1) 62,122 68,959 3,536 3,660
Prepayment for assets relating to BUORB R CERHNEE
service concession arrangements @ MR EER@ 28,127 378,999 - =
Prepayment for intangible assets EFEERMER 5,724 7,490 - -
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment M - BE REHEEAER 7,411 8,171 - -
Total prepayment, non-current FERERFETE GERE) 41,262 394,660 = =

@ Relates mainly to prepayment made for certain infrastructure relating to BOT and TOT
service concession arrangements entered during the financial years ended 31 December

2024 and 2023.
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16.

17.

INVENTORIES 16. &8
Group
550
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Inventories FE 245,199 250,123

Inventories comprise consumable supplies held for internal use.

Material accounting policy information

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group through its subsidiaries engages in the businesses of waste water treatment,
water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment in the PRC (the “operator”)
and has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with certain
governmental authorities or their agencies in the PRC on a BOT, TOT, BOO or T0OO
basis in respect of its businesses. These service concession arrangements generally
involve the Group as an operator to (i) construct waste water treatment, water supply,
waste incineration and sludge treatment plants for those arrangements on a BOT and
BOO basis; (ii) pay a specific amount for those arrangements on a TOT and TOO basis;
or (iii) operate and maintain the waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration
and sludge treatment plants at a specified level of serviceability on behalf of the
relevant governmental authorities for periods ranging from 20 to 50 years (the “service
concession periods”), and the Group will be paid for its services over the relevant
periods of the service concession arrangements at prices stipulated through pricing
mechanism. The plants will be transferred to the respective grantors at the end of the
service concession periods for BOT and TOT.

17.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS AR

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 17. RBFAFEERH ()

The Group is generally entitled to operate all the property, plant and equipment of the
waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment plants,
however, the relevant governmental authorities as grantors control and regulate the
scope of services the Group provides to the waste water treatment, water supply,

ARE-RAEEELTKEEM - KR - BB
EMLSEREMNAENE  BERRE A
i EARTANHBRIREZH IR EAEE
[FABRASKERIERR ~ KR - BB ER SRR

EREHAORBEE - LREBSKEER - 4K
- ERERER M REERMA RS FELHR
M ARSERNESERN - SRZSRBHFE
2egm—hmAREETEABRRGRELL
RE#BITUNAORARGD (WER) BT
BRHA (ERERE) EREE  AEEMRRAR
B ERBERS BT AREARRB LS
HRRSREER - KRR - BRERERNLTER
BRREIETNRBEIEKENSEET - RIFE
FHNZH -

waste incineration and sludge treatment plants, and retain the beneficial entitlement
to any residual interest in the waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration
and sludge treatment plants at the end of the service concession periods. Each
of these service concession arrangements is governed by a contract and, where
applicable, supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the
relevant governmental authorities or their agencies in the PRC that set out, /nter alia,
performance standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered by
the Group, specific obligations levied on the Group to restore the waste water treatment,
water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment plants to a specified level of
serviceability at the end of the service concession periods, and arrangements for
arbitrating disputes.

720244128318 » AEBEH 21278 (20234 :
19818) /5 KRB M RIS R A 8 & &8k » 2778 (2023

At 31 December 2024, the Group had 212 (2023: 198) service concession arrangements
on waste water treatment, 27 (2023: 23) service concession arrangements on water
treatment and distribution, 3 (2023: 4) service concession arrangements on waste F:238)5KEERSEMNRBEFTEERE
incineration and 7 (2023: 11) service concession arrangements on sludge treatment. A 3B (2023%F : 478) AR ENRBEILEL
summary of the major terms of the principal service concession arrangements entered B LAR7IE (20234 < 1138) 5 REEMRBET
into by the Group’s subsidiaries is set out below: mead  c AEENB AR UMNEERBETL
ELHNEERTBERFIMT

Type of service Daily design ~ Service

Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
RisFEE BRMMER
fFREEHNMELFAR FE&H RPEHEE BYAEH REER (M/R) BRESFEEY
Wuhan Hanxi Wastewater Treatment Wuhan Hanxi Wastewater ~ Wuhan, Hubei REMAREM  BOT (Financial 600,000 30 years from 2005
Co., Ltd. ("Wuhan Hanxi") Treatment 1st Stage and Province assets)
2nd Stage (Expansion)
REERAKERARAR ([REER]) REERKERER -8 HlanE RETARBR BOT(£REE) 600,000 B2005F 85304
R-EBERER
Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. Yiyang City Water Supply ~ Yiyang, Hunan whEmEEANAS 10T and BOT 520,000 28 years from 2016
("Yiyang Tap Water’) Province @&E (Intangible assets)
wHETERKERAR ((RHEMERK])  #BEmT#RKER e nk wEMEFMHE  T0TRBOT 520,000 H2016F 5284
%R (EFAE)
Mudanjiang Longjiang Environmental Mudanjiang Water Supply ~ Mudanjiang, RATTHEGRE  TOT (Intangible 300,000 30 years from 2010
Protection Water Supply Co., Ltd. 70T Heilongjiang SEERAA assets)
(*Mudanjiang Tap Water") Province
HATEDRREKERAR HHITERKRIOTNEE BEIEHNT HImEmRE  T0T(BFEE) 300,000 B2010F 5304
(THATERK]) ERERAF
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 17. REWAFEERH ()

Type of service Daily design ~ Service

Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
PRI HHFEE BHRMER
FREEANMELRDER HE&E REMEE B¥AEE REER (M/B) BESHEEY
Jiamusi Longjiang Environmental Jiamusi Water Supply TOT ~ Jiamusi, Heilongjiang  EARZTMEERM  TOT (Intangible 360,000 30 years from 2012
Protection Water Supply Co., Ltd. Province MERREER  assets)
(“Jiamusi Tap Water") RE&E)ER
A
ERIBRIRREKERAA EAREMAIKRIOTER BETEEAN EAREmHERN  T0T(BKEE) 360,000 B20126 85304
(MEARBTERK]) MERREER
RE(£B)ER
NS
Longjiang Group Harbin Taipin Wastewater ~ Harbin, Heilongjiang " EEfHK%EE  BOT (Financial 325,000 25 years from 2005
Treatment BOT Province BREFAT assets)
EILE BRETATSKE RETERRAR BREEHEKER BOT(SRAE) 325000 B2005F #5254
BOTIEE BREFAH
Longjiang Group Harbin Wenchang Harbin, Heilongjiang " @Em/A%KS  TOT (Financial 325,000 30 years from 2010
Wastewater Treatment Province assets)
T0T
EEL] BREMNESKR RETERRAR BEAETKER  TOT(2REE) 325,000 H2010F#530%
TOTHEE
Weifang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. Weifang City Tap Water Weifang, Shandong MM AREUF  TOTand BOT 320,000 25 years from 2007
(*Weifang Tap Water") Supply Province (Intangible assets)
EHTRTKERAR (TAHERK])  MhmEmikIER LIRS H AHMARBR  TOTRBOT 320,000 B2007E 5254
(BFAE)
Wuhan Huangpi Shangshi Water Co., Ltd. ~ Wuhan Huang-Pi Kaidi Huang-Pi, Hubei RES EEKHE  BOT (Intangible 430,000 30 years from 2008
Water Supply Province BRAR assets)
REER FBKBBRAR REMERRSEMEKEE HtaER REER LEKE  BOT(EFEE) 430,000  B2008F #1304
BRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

17.

o 166

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Receivables under service concession arrangements

As described in the accounting policy for “Service concession arrangements” set out
in Note 2.6, consideration given by the grantor for a service concession arrangement
is accounted for as an intangible asset (operating concessions) or a financial asset
(receivables under service concession arrangements) or a combination of both, as
appropriate. The intangible asset component is detailed in Note 25, and the financial
asset component is as follows:

17. BRERFFEERE(R)

BRI EERIRETRERE

MR 6 AL [ IRTS 1 FF A8 Lok | MRt ISR P
i BFARBBEFELERHHELNEEARR
BVEE(Firgen) HemeE (RBEFEE
THETRKE) SmELEa (NER) - BYE
EEMBARM 20N - MeMEEER LI
T

Group

50
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Receivables under service concession arrangements RIS RF & R T B MR 21,942,145 23,261,211
Less: Current portion classified as current assets B DERREENREHS (900,577) (887,152)
Non-current portion FERBBD 21,041,568 22,374,059

Expected collection schedule is analysed as follows: RS RRIITOT

Within 1 year 1FR 900,577 887,152
Within 2 to 5 years 2E5FA 3,707,932 3,671,624
QOver 5 years &L 17,333,636 18,702,435
21,942,145 23,261,211

During the current financial year, the Group recognised financial income of
RMB1,235,357,000 (2023: RMB1,231,658,000) (Note 4) and construction revenue of
RMB1,795,861,000 (2023: RMB1,868,213,000) as revenue from service concession
arrangements. The effective interest applied ranges from 2.60% to 7.83% (2023: 4.20%
to 8.00%) per annum.

The relevant assets pledged by the Group are disclosed in Note 39 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2024, 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2023, the Group has
RMB1,202,546,000, RMB1,850,938,000 and RMB5,978,118,000 of contract assets
pertaining to construction contracts in progress within the receivables under service
concession arrangements balance.

There were significant changes in the contract asset balances during the reporting
period due to the decrease in ongoing projects under construction during the year.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

REBBEE FEERIVYBRAARE
1,235,357,0007T (20234 : AK#1,231,658,000
7o) (MiEE4) R WA AR %1,795,861,0007C
(2023% : AR¥1,868,213,0007) {EAMRTS AT
BRGNP - ERERFENENTF2.60%=E
7.83% (20234 - 4.20% %8.00%) °

AEBERORREENMBRRMEIRE -

1202412 A31 R ~ 2023F12 4318 20234
TA1E  REERBEEFEERHEETEEK
BERETSRERREAONANEERARE
1,202,546,0007C + AR%1,850,938,0007T X AR
#5,978,118,0007T °

MR ERSEERER R - REHNANEES
BHHRENEY -



17.

18.

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Receivables under service concession arrangements (continued)

Management estimates the loss allowance on receivables under service concession
arrangements at an amount equal to 12-month ECL, taking into account the historical
default experience and the future prospects of the construction industry. None of the
receivables under service concession arrangements at the end of the reporting period is
past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant changes in
assumptions made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance
for the contract assets.

17.

FRFS IR AR E 8k ()
BRHRFEETRHATEBRE (&)
ERERESM2EANBRERBANTRGE
R E QIR T RUGABRERS - 5t B
ERNBEMRERAR - MEDRBBRBET
RERFRTRETUEBY -

NABERR - BFESNEEBREGEROML
AR EEE - FIERRTEEAZE -

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK 18. Bl () ERSHNIER
Group
50
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTT AREFT
Construction contracts BEEN 33,554 51,611
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B B RFTERDT -
Amounts due from customers for contract work BUEFEHTER 53,591 75,889
Amounts due to customers for contract work EREPANIER (20,037) (24,278)
33,554 51,611

At 31 December 2024, 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2023, advances received
from customers for contract work, representing contract liabilities amounted to
RMB383,891,000, RMB442,743,000 and RMB487,992,000 are classified under other
payables.

At 31 December 2024, net amount due from customers for contract work of
RMB33,554,000 (2023: RMB51,611,000) have been classified as current because they
are expected to be realised in the normal operating cycle of the construction projects.

Amounts due from customers for contract work included provision for foreseeable
losses of RMB25,000 (2023: RMB25,000) as at year end.

Amounts due to customers for contract work under construction contracts arise when the
Group receives payments from customers in line with a series of performance-related
milestones. The Group will previously have recognised a contract asset for any work
performed. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade
receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the customer.

2024512 A31H ~ 2023512 A31 B %2023 51
A1E BEREFPANIRET HANARAR
#:383,891,0007T - AK#442,743,0007C X AR
487,992,0007T 2 SR AR B FRIE

R2024512A318 F BREFAHNIRFFEA
FR#33,554,0007T (20234F : AR¥51,611,0007T)
BOEARE  RAZSHERHINEREEMN
—REBBHNER -

RER BUEFAHIRTBRETRRIERERE
AR#25,0007T (20234 : AR#25,0007T) °

REANETENRPREANTERAEERS
PUWEINREES - 8- RF AN 22—
B AKERNERNEREMETHIREANE
E - SHERRRNBENEAFRERAZEF
ARRREENDEREHRUFA -
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202412 A31H

18.

19.

20.

o 168

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK
(continued)

There were no significant changes in the contract asset and contract liability balances
during the reporting period.

Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers for contract
work at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default
experience and the future prospects of the construction industry. None of the amounts
due from customers for contract work at the end of the reporting period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for the
contract assets.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM
JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The amounts are non-trade, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand except for amounts due from associate amounting to RMB20,007,000 (2023:
RMB8,458,000) which bears interest at 10.0% to 12.0% (2023: 10.0% to 12.0%) per
annum and is not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months from the end of
the reporting period and amounts due from subsidiaries of RMB851,300,000 (2023:
RMB2,997,434,000) which bears fixed interest of 4.2% to 4.8% (2023: 4.8% to 5.0%)
per annum and are due in 1 year (2023: 2 years) from the end of the reporting period.

Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from subsidiaries/joint
venture/associates at an amount equal to 12-month ECL, taking into account the
historical default experience and the future prospects of the industry. None of the
amounts due from subsidiaries/joint venture/associates at the end of the reporting
period is past due.

18.

19.

iy (EfH) ERENIRER ()

RESHHANEERANAGS
.

ERTEERE

W@¢§$E$EAT¥Z§HHEEHF§J§§T§E’]?XIWE‘WE
REPANTREFOBBEER Yt RBEROKL
BERAREERAS - RAESHRMERKEFE
HIRFBE -

RABREHA - BFESNEEBRERFBOML
AR EARRYL BE

B (B MBARARE BHERERR
B/ BHHELRRE

ZELEAFEHNLD  BER REREEX
{818 - MU 2 DRI FUB AR 20,007,000 T
(2023 : AR£8,458,0007T) IREFE10.0% %
12.0% (20234 : 10.0%%12.0%) 5t & - BFEHF
eNEREMREFRKI2EAREER  MER
BB A 71308 A R #£851,300,0007T (20234 = A
E%2,997,434,0007‘c)ﬁEﬁww.z%@.s%
(20234 : 4.8%=5.0%) 58 - NEREMKEE
148 (20234 < 24) MBI -

EREREEN2EANEHEEHRNFTAEMRT
BB RRIZE / ERAECENIE /I
ERARANBREE | L BB EER
RITEAT - RBREPRBERKINBEARZE,/
ERABMERIE /RS E N R ZIBGE -

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions RAREBA - ET B EEREEM A RMK
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance. BABRERILEEE) o
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 20. ROREEMARENENEE
Group
x50
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
N1 AREBTTT
Quoted equity shares, at fair value @ IR, - RARBEE 3,555 3,073
Put option on unlisted equity securities, at fair value © FEMERESRLEE  BALEBEY 6,506 6,506
10,061 9,579
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 20. ®RAAREHAREHEMEE ()

(continued)

@ The investments above include investments in quoted equity securities that offer the Group @ FREABERETRAZRSNEE  REAEES
the opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed L FBREMARANEEKRERRR - %%
maturity or coupon rate. The fair values of these securities are based on closing quoted RELEETINHANEE - ZEEFNANER

market prices on the last market day of the financial year. BEMBRFERER S BNRKTENE -

RERENANEEREE EMEREFAER
BNARBEET - ZSREARLARANER
R ZERENRNABEBBRATSEZEE - T
BEDERARTS EABEURGIHA RFTRE

®  The fair value of the put option is determined in relation to the fair value of the underlying ®
investments in unlisted equity securities. These investments represent ordinary shares in
private companies. The fair value of these investments was determined by using the market
approach. The market approach method is a valuation method based on prices at which

stocks of similar companies are trading in a public market (Note 43). REEEE (H343) -

21. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 21. SERFEHENTE
In December 2024, management resolved to dispose of the Group’s interest in an N20245128 > EEEBRRLELAKER B
associate, Sichuan SIIC Environment Investment Development Co., Ltd.. Negotiations ERAN)I L EREREREAR AR MRS - B
with several interested parties have subsequently taken place. The Group’s interest in an BREERBBANDAET TER - ARER -/
associate is expected to be sold within twelve months, have been classified as held for BEARMESRARRTZBEARLE  ER
sale in accordance with SFRS(I) 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued BRI BIR I 1 S KR EOFAEL By 7
Operations, and are presented separately in the statement of financial position as at 31 RYBERBEUFERFDRRBELE IR
December 2024. 2024512 A31 BB BHRR R P EBZF
The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant BEHEMSRERRAEREENRE*E -
assets and accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised on the classification b TEAASHELERBND BRDAERS
of these operations held for sale. o
Material accounting policy information FEQHBERH

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is met only when the sale is highly probable, the
asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale is expected to
occur within one year from the date of classification.

DRAREHENFRBEERRREERAERE
RHERAREPOREETE - HIFRDEER
FREREBLERZMFHERAKD - BNE
ARELE - BEHENTRERS  BEVEHR
BRTUAEE - BHERASENRRHE—F

PBER - AR UL -

22. BARREHARMZERGHSMEE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Group
F5%E
2024 2023
2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Unlisted equity securities FLEMBRAES 13,400 13,400

ZERERNIUWARRNEBREERD - ZFKR
BNRABERBRAMSEET - MHELER
ARTS EAFRURNNARMREROBEE
(Ff5E43) -

These investments represent ordinary and preference shares in private companies.
The fair value of these investments was determined by using the market approach. The
market approach method is a valuation method based on prices at which stocks of
similar companies are trading in a public market (Note 43).
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23. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

m 170

23. W% BERRM

Group
*5E
Furniture, Buildings
Plant and fittings and Motor and Construction
machinery  equipment vehicles improvement in-progress Total
& RE
BERER RE&fE RE BFREE EBIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARE®TT AR%®Tn ARETT ARETR ARET:H
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2023 #2023F1 A1H 249,715 63,582 49,089 213,656 123,511 699,553
Additions NE 5,353 9,865 5,928 240 57,429 78,815
Disposals/Written off HE /s (112) (95) (807) - = (1,014)
Reclassification/Transfers ER gt 126,045 18 - 477 (134,627) (8,087)
Exchange differences ERER - 38 - 114 - 152
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 381,001 73,408 54,210 214,487 46,313 769,419
Additions NE 1,302 8,747 3,962 29,894 8,114 52,019
Disposals/Written off HE /s (2,742) (3,683) (3,162) (1,248) - (10,835)
Reclassification/Transfers ENNE /s 25,459 - - - (25,459) =
At 31 December 2024 ®2024%12A31H 405,020 78,472 55,010 243,133 28,968 810,603
Accumulated depreciation: REAE -
At 1 January 2023 #2023F1 A1H 110,890 36,726 30,948 76,219 - 254,783
Depreciation charge for the year FAREZ L 18,077 6,829 4323 8,913 = 38,142
Disposals/Written off HE /M (105) (91) (634) - = (830)
Exchange differences BHESE - 15 - 14 - 129
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 128,862 43,479 34,637 85,246 - 292,224
Depreciation charge for the year FAREZ L 40,463 6,917 4,459 10,152 = 61,991
Disposals/Written off HE /s (1,855) (3,473) (2,973) (1,168) - (9,469)
At 31 December 2024 ®2024%12A31RH 167,470 46,923 36,123 94,230 - 344,746
Carrying amount: WREE
At 31 December 2024 ®2024%12A31H 237,550 31,549 18,887 148,903 28,968 465,857
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 252,139 29,929 19,573 129,241 46,313 477,195

The relevant assets pledged by the Group are disclosed in Note 39 to the financial

statements.
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23. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

23. W% BERRE (K)

Company
FaFH
Furniture,
fittings and Leasehold
equipment improvement Total
B RERERH HEMERE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTFT ARETT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2023 2023F1 A1H 905 2,616 3,521
Additions NE 9 - 9
Exchange differences BN ZRE 38 114 152
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12 A31H 952 2,730 3,682
Written off RsH (559) (1,003) (1,562)
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12A31H 393 1,727 2,120
Accumulated depreciation: REHAE -
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H 846 2,616 3,462
Depreciation charge for the year FRMETH 47 - 47
Exchange differences B R 15 114 129
At 31 December 2023 72023F12 A31H 908 2,730 3,638
Depreciation charge for the year FRMELH 44 = 44
Written off HsH (559) (1,003) (1,562)
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12A31H 393 1,727 2,120
Carrying amount: IRE(E :
At 31 December 2024 #®2024%12831AH = = =
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 8318 44 - 44
Material accounting policy information FEEHBREH

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such cost PIEME  BERRBEEBNSRKAANE - BF
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing BABEEZSLDME  BE MREHK A R
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a B BESALAEHAERYE BEMREEE
qualifying property, plant and equipment. The cost of an item of property, plant and EIERERRA - EEEEE—ENE  BERE
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic EEBEENRREERNRRATERALREREZ
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be JBE MK AR SRt BF - ZIERMMATRRA
measured reliably. BEE

Annual Report 20245 %% 171 |l



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS AR

31 December 2024
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23.

m 17

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Material accounting policy information (continued)

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. When significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised
in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and is computed on a
straight-line basis to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less estimated
residual value over their estimated useful lives. Assets under construction included in
property, plant and equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not available for
use.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Plants and machinery — 5 to 25 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment - 3 to 8 years
Motor vehicles - 510 10 years
Buildings and improvement = 5 to 35 years

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated based on the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use, to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The Group has assessed that there is no indication of impairment for its property, plant
and equipment.
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23. W% BERRME (K)

TEEHBREH(|)
RHERE - W% - BERHEE RN AR R TE
LEMRZRESESE - ENE  BEREED
BEARBHERR—BRETUEE  FEEHEZZ
BAERANBAAREERFERTENMRE
o R ERTENRER  ARASEER
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TR - A EMEE RRERAREERERR
WIER
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o
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BFEREE - 5Z35%F

BEMENREERTEEDRMBEREARE -

A AEAEY  RREERNEDENIRERE
WMARER - Yt ERREM G EPNTE -
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BETRELRREENZNBER TRILHER - &
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GHFRERAENERET LN ERER -

REFEEY  AREHENE  BERKBZE
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24. LEASES (GROUP AS A LESSEE) 24. HE(FREEZEEAL)

24.1 Right-of-use assets 241 EREEE
The Group leases several leasehold land and office premises with lease terms between AEEHERTHELI HERAEYE  HHAS
3 to 40 years. B4 -
The Group's obligations are secured by the lessors' title to the leased asset for such AEENEBHEBAYEERENHEEENM
leases. BREEER
Group
F£E
Leasehold Office
land premises Total
HELH WaEmE &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1H 41,710 48,057 89,767
Additions NEY = 10,080 10,080
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 41,710 58,137 99,847
Additions NE 26,575 8,562 35,137
Disposals & (3,958) (8,253) (12,211)
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12A31H 64,327 58,446 122,773
Accumulated depreciation: Rt
At 1 January 2023 12023F1 A1H 11,982 32,510 44,492
Depreciation charge for the year FRAMELH 2,746 8,646 11,392
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31H 14,728 41,156 55,884
Depreciation charge for the year FRFELH 5,583 10,374 15,957
Disposals HE (1,120) (8,254) (9,374)
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12A31H 19,191 43,276 62,467
Carrying amount: IREE -
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12A31H 45,136 15,170 60,306
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31H 26,982 16,981 43,963
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24. LEASES (GROUP AS A LESSEE) (continued)
24.1 Right-of-use assets (continued)

-, 74

24. HR(FREESEEL) ()
241 ERAERE (R)

Company
3N
Office premises
WAEME
RMB'000
AREFT
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2023 20231 A1H 26,832
Additions NE 12,972
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31H 39,804
Additions NE 8,562
At 31 December 2024 202451283180 48,366
Accumulated depreciation: REHRE -
At 1 January 2023 202351 A1H 24,892
Depreciation charge for the year FRAFTETH 6,555
At 31 December 2023 72023512 A31H 31,447
Depreciation charge for the year FRTEZH 8,357
At 31 December 2024 720245128318 39,804
Carrying amount: IRE(E -
At 31 December 2024 ®2024%12A31H 8,562
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31H 8,357
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24. LEASES (GROUP AS A LESSEE) (continued)

24. HR(FREESEEAL) ()

24.2 Lease liabilities 24.2 HEARE
Group
50
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Maturity analysis: BEASHT
Year 1 —F 10,334 12,129
Year 2 W 10,984 7,041
Year 3 = 10,427 5,276
Year 4 s 5,700 5,514
Year 5 hE 5,077 4,441
Year 6 onwards NEL 19,590 16,456
62,112 50,857
Less: Unearned interest B o REREEF S (10,111) (8,243)
52,001 42 614
Analysed as: AWWT
Current E 8,191 10,494
Non-current kD) 43,810 32,120
52,001 42,614
Company
. XN
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Maturity analysis: SIERDHT -
Year 1 —F 3,032 7,208
Year 2 M E 3,032 1,981
Year 3 = 2,893 -
8,957 9,189
Less: Unearned interest B REREREF S (395) (517)
8,562 8,672
Analysed as: DWWT
Current TED 2,813 6,783
Non-current FERE 5,749 1,889
8,562 8,672
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24,

LEASES (GROUP AS A LESSEE) (continued)

24.2 Lease liahilities (continued)

- 176

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.
Lease liabilities are monitored within the Group’s treasury function.

Material accounting policy information
The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the
contract. A right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability are recognised with
respect to all lease arrangements, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in
the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate based on the quotes from
reputable banks over a similar term and with a similar security that the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in accordance to the type
of asset, tenor and country where the assets are situated.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the group's lease liabilities comprise
mainly of fixed lease payments over the lease terms.

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost comprising the initial lease liability,
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date (less any lease
incentives received), any initial direct costs and any restoration costs. The right-of-
use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease terms
commencing from the date of the lease, and are tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy similar to that adopted for property, plant and equipment in Note 23.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. Lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate when there is a
change in the lease term upon exercising extension options not previously included in
the determination of the lease term. A corresponding adjustment is made to the related
right-of-use asset.

The Group has assessed that there is no indication of impairment for its right-of-use
assets.
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24.2 HEAR(KR)
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 25. EEE
Group
%0
Patent and Total
Operating licensing Computer intangible
concessions rights software assets
BHFEER SRR ElERGE SWLIESH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Cost: 5% 3
At 1 January 2023 R2023%F1 A1H 9,264,004 8,007 33,770 9,305,781
Additions NE 900,447 - 2,879 903,326
Reclassification BHAE 1,124,182 (28) (3,597) 1,120,557
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 11,288,633 7,979 33,052 11,329,664
Additions "E 1,850,807 - 4,613 1,855,420
Disposals & - - (1,305) (1,305)
Reclassification BHAE 1,349,515 - - 1,349,515
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12A31H 14,488,955 7,979 36,360 14,533,294
Accumulated amortisation: Rt -
At 1 January 2023 720231 A1H 2,211,598 6,703 17,097 2,235,398
Amortisation for the year FREH 395,496 133 4,217 399,846
Reclassification g iimag il 29,985 - (3,247) 26,738
At 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H 2,637,079 6,836 18,067 2,661,982
Amortisation for the year FREH 527,026 133 4,538 531,697
Disposals HE = - (1,215) (1,215)
Reclassification ENNE 6,723 - - 6,723
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12A31H 3,170,828 6,969 21,390 3,199,187
Carrying amount: IRE(E -
At 31 December 2024 #2024%12A31H 11,318,127 1,010 14,970 11,334,107
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 8,651,554 1,143 14,985 8,667,682

The relevant assets pledged by the Group including those under bank borrowings are
disclosed in Note 39 to the financial statements.

AEEARNEREE  RRROEFATEE
R BMRMFEIORE -
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25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 25. |ILRE (M)

Amortisation expense ]k

The amortisation of intangible assets relating to operating concessions is mainly REEBEERA - ARBTEERNEL EEEH
included in the “Cost of sales” and the amortisation of other intangible assets is FTEHATHERNKRIET  HMEFEEZHET
included in “Cost of sales”, “Selling and distribution costs” and “Administrative ATHERA]  [HESHER I RITHAZ IR
expenses” line items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. e

Impairment testing AEAS

Management assessed for indicators of impairment annually and is of the view that EEEGFIRAETR - ¥R A2024F 2023

there is no impairment on any intangible assets as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. F12A318 - HEECNELEERE -

Company
- 3N
Computer

software

TR

RMB’000

AEBTR

Cost: B%F:
At 1 January 2023 720231 A1H 6,376
Additions NE 99
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 6,475
Additions NE 282
At 31 December 2024 72024512 A31H 6,757
Accumulated amortisation: ArHis -
At 1 January 2023 720231 A1H 506
Amortisation for the year FRHH 416
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 3318 922
Amortisation for the year FRE#H 979
At 31 December 2024 202412 A31H 1,901
Carrying amount: IREE :
At 31 December 2024 72024512 A31H 4,856
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 51558)
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25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Material accounting policy information
Operating concessions

Operating concessions represent (i) the rights to charge users of the public service
for the water supply contracts, which fall within the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 Service
Concession Arrangements; (i) the rights under the service concession arrangements
for the waste water treatment allows the Group to receive and treat waste water above
the minimum amount of guaranteed volume, at a predetermined tariff rate during the
concessionary period acquired in a business combination; and (iii) rights to operate
and manage waste water treatment plants acquired in a business combination.

The operating concessions are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. The operating concessions acquired in a business
combination are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost). Amortisation is provided on straight-line basis over the
remaining respective periods of the operating concessions granted to the Group of 7 to
50 years.

Intangible assets acquired separately excluding operating concessions

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effects of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation:

Patent and licensing rights - 10 years
Computer software = 3 to 10 years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised separately from
goodwill are recognised initially at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities (where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised) is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

25. |LRE (¥)

FREHBFEEH
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BREFELHBNBEEXURIEEBARE
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R Q2R AR R B R RERERR
SR - REA GBS RTFRERNSRAR
KEBHNAAEE (RERERAK) BR - A%
BERNEFEEETIRATE0FNHEEHRE
RERETIAEE -

ERLMNELEE (FRENTEER)
ERRBOARERTERAFROEY EERKA
WREH N 2R EB R o BETRERGE
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ERERREHETE - MEFAGTESHNFER
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EFHEBHRRA T AR RE
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26. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES 26. RAAEAERR
Group
550
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Retention monies @ REg@ 43,809 42,272
Others Hitp 37,966 42123
81,775 84,395

27.

= 180

@ The non-current portion of retention sums are carried at amortised cost using a weighted

average effective interest rate of 4.90% (2023: 4.90%) per annum.

Management estimates the loss allowance on long term receivables at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future

prospects of the construction industry.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

O RBSHIERDBOEEMEFHERFFIE
4.90% (2023%F : 4.90% ) H& & S5k 471 o

ERERASM2EANEREEBRNFIER
RORURTAERER - Yt BERORER

RAERE B - BT BB R A B M fh EH T oK
EABRITEZE -

27. MRBLARMKRE

Company
r. /N

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Unquoted equity shares, at cost FEEmREERD - KA 2,859,640 2,859,640
Deemed investments BELE 2,538,039 2,572,732
Effects of exchange rate changes [EREEHT L 342,179 354,235
5,739,858 5,786,607

Management assessed for indicators of impairment annually and is of the view that

there is no impairment loss required.
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27. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the Group’s significant subsidiaries as at 31 December are as follows:

27. RBATMKRE ()
M2A31R - FEENEAMBARFEAT -

Percentage of

Place of effective equity
incorporation interest and
and Registered voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation capital  Principal activities held by the Group
IR FRARBERRER
MELARRE EEHE BEMEE IERE BRRELG
RMB’000 2024 2023
AEBTR 2024 2023F
% %
Huizhou City Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. PRC' 65,000  Waste water treatment. 100.0 100.0
BEMTEAKEERAR HE" 65,000 JSKEE e 100.0 100.0
Shenzhen City Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. PRC! 200,000  Waste water treatment. 100.0 100.0
RNTEAKEERAR " 200,000  JEKEE 100.0 100.0
SIIC Environment Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd. PRC' 564,900  Investment holding, waste water treatment and 75.5 155

(“SIIC Weifang") reclaimed water treatment.

ERFKBROBRAR ([ LERFKE]) HE 564,900 REZR KEEREEKNA 75.5 75.5
Weifang Tap Water PRC! 153,125  Treatment and supply of potable water. 51.3 51.3
S ARK HE! 153,125  RER{EERAK - 51.3 51.3
Wuhan Hanxi PRC' 330,000  Waste water treatment. 80.0 80.0
REER " 330,000 JSKEE e 80.0 80.0
Shanghai SIIC Baojingang Environmental Resources PRC' 1,100,000  Waste incineration. 42.03 42.03

Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Baojingang”)

DELEESNRRERNBEERAR([E2MA]) & 1,100,000 EEES- 42.03 42.03
Wuhan Huang-Pi PRC? 490,000  Treatment and supply of potable water. 100.0 100.0
REE HE? 490,000 FRIRRHLESRAK o 100.0 100.0
Fudan Water PRC' 300,000  Provision of management and consultancy 92.2 92.2
SErvices.
BEKE e 300,000 fREAEE KBRS 92.2 9.2
Longjiang Group PRC! 420,000  Waste water treatment. 58.0 58.0
BIKE HE! 420000 EKEE - 58.0 58.0
Mudanjiang Tap Water PRC! 160,000  Treatment and supply of potable water. 58.0 58.0
HATERK e 160,000  FRIERALERFANK o 58.0 58.0
Jiamusi Tap Water PRC! 240,000  Treatment and supply of potable water. 58.0 58.0
AR K HE! 240,000 REREERALK 58.0 58.0
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27.

- 132

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

27.

RIB AR RE ()

Place of
incorporation

Percentage of
effective equity

interest and

and Registered voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation capital  Principal activities held by the Group
IR FRAMBERRER
[ PNGEL EEME EMEE EEH RRELH
RMB’000 2024 2023
AR®TR 2024 20235
% %
Shanghai Qingpu Second Waste Water Treatment ~ PRC' 370,000  Waste water treatment. 87.8 87.8
Co., Ltd.
FEEREAKEERARAR el 370,000 EKEE o 87.8 87.8
Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. PRC' 250,000  Treatment and supply of potable water. 90.0 90.0
whmERKBRAR HE" 250,000 RIERALESAK - 90.0 90.0
Mudanjiang Longjiang Environmental Protection PRC! 260,000  Waste water treatment. 58.0 58.0
Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd.
R IRIRRKBERAR HE 260,000 JSKEE - 58.0 58.0
Harbin Pingyi Longjiang Environmental Protection ~ PRC 170,000  Waste water treatment. 58.0 58.0
Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd.
RRETERIRRAKERETAT e 170,000  SEKERE - 58.0 58.0
Shanghai Fengxian West Waste Water Treatment PRC! 76,000  Waste water treatment. 92.2 9.2
Co., Ltd.
EEmEERDSKEEERAR hE 76,000 5KER o 92.2 922

L These companies were established in the PRC in the form of limited liability company.

2 This company was established in the PRC in the form of Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprise.

8 Although the Group holds less than 50% of the effective equity interest of Baojingang,
the Group exercises control via its 70% direct controlling interest in SIIC Yangtze Delta
Environmental Resources (Hong Kong) Limited, which holds 60% equity interest in

Baojingang.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other subsidiaries that are not

significant to the Group.

No debt security has been issued by any of the subsidiaries for the financial years

ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The above subsidiaries are audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP, China for consolidation purposes.
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27. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 27. RBATMKRE ()

All the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company or jointly by the Company e LAMBARBARRHAA R EEWB AR
and its subsidiaries. HEMERE -
Place of incorporation Number of wholly-owned
Principal activity TEEH and operation ERSIRES subsidiaries
2ENELFHA
2024 2023
2024% 20235
Investment holding REER Singapore g 1 1
Hong Kong i 10 10
BVI RBERARES 10 10
PRC HE 2 2
Seychelles EEA 1 1
Macao BF 1 1
Waste water treaiment KRR PRC i 26 2%
Water supply fitk PRC i 3 3
Others it PRC e 3 3
57 56
Place of incorporation Number of non-wholly
Principal activity TEEE and operation ERSILRESHE owned subsidiaries
FR2EMBLRBE
2024 2023
20245 2023
Investment holding RAER Hong Kong &b 2 2
PRC B 2 1
Waste water and sludge treatment KRS TREE PRC HE 93 94
Water supply itk PRC i ] 6
Waste incineration EE%EE PRC e 3 3
Others it PRC e 7 7
113 13
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27.
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The tables below show details of the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group that
have material non-controlling interests for the financial years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023:

27.

RBELFRIRE ()
TREVREZE2024F 2 2023F12 A31HILHE
FEBEENERERNAERFELZEMBLR
a1

Proportion of
effective equity
interest and voting

Place of rights held by Profit allocated Accumulated
incorporation and non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary operation interests interests interests
ERRERFBER SETF LR
MELERE R M 3 R O o B BRERZFELG ERHTAE REFRRESR
2024 2024 2024
2024 2024 2024
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% UN: AER®TT
Longjiang Group and its subsidiaries PRC 42.0 97,251 2,119,053
BIXERARBAR HE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests 249,251 3,328,388
AERFERER 2 EREEEMB AR
346,502 5,447,441
Proportion of
effective equity
interest and voting
Place of rights held by Profit allocated Accumulated
incorporation and non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary operation interests interests interests
FERESRHER AR T IR
WEARATRE TR B B PRAE R R L) =T Rt ER
2023 2023 2023
2023F 2023 2023
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETT ARETT
Longjiang Group and its subsidiaries PRC 2.0 112,597 2,021,802
EISERARBAR HE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests 303,041 3,137,147
AEERER  ERFEERB AR
415,638 5,158,949

Management determined that the remaining subsidiaries with non-controlling interests
are individually immaterial.
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27. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 27. RBATMKRE ()

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries that has DTEIIRAEAFEREENAKERBE LR

material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial FBERBE - DTHBERNHEERENRAY
information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. SHATR 2R o

Longjiang Longjiang

Group and its Group and its

subsidiaries subsidiaries

EIKER EISEK

HHEBAR HINB A

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT

Current assets MEEE 3,129,865 2,703,396

Non-current assets FnBEE 8,226,659 8,331,741

Current liabilities nEEE (1,622,219) (3,140,177)

Non-current liabilities FrRBafE (5,823,619) (4,288,668)

Equity attributable to owners of the subsidiary KBARES AEGERS 3,905,904 3,599,832

Non-controlling interests RS 4,782 6,460

Revenue WA 1,815,862 1,940,368

Profit for the year FRF|E 304,394 314,637

Profit attributable to owners of the subsidiary HIB A RS AEIEFE 306,072 316,260

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests IR L EE (1,678) (1,623)

Profit for the year, representing total FAFE  FANZEREESE

comprehensive income for the year 304,394 314,637

Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities BEFHEL RS (RE) RAFE (1,588,135) 1,082,216

Net cash outflow from investing activities RERZDEAZRSTLTE (37,062) (393,727)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities BETHELEZRESRA(RL) T8 1,380,629 (267,247)

Net cash (outflow) inflow Re (ORd) RAFE (244,568) 421,242
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 27. RBATRMKRE ()

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries FEERMELFMAERERET

The following schedule shows the effects of change in the Group’s ownership interests TRETASERTIIMBARMAAEEERE
in the following subsidiaries without a change in control, on the equity attributable to EEGIETEHANTEAAREEENTE o

owners of the Company.

Group
*5E
2023
20235
RMB'000
AREFT
Consideration for changes in ownership interest in subsidiary MEBREMEEERZEMNLE (149,598)
Non-controlling interest acquired WeiE FEE R R 230,743
Difference recognised in equity RERERNEEE 81,145
Shanghai Fengxian West Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd. LEZEERSSKEEERAR
The Group’s subsidiary, Fudan Water Engineering And Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fudan ARENHBRAR LBERAKEIEENERA
Group”), acquired the remaining 20% equity interest in Shanghai Fengxian West A(MEEEE]) KELBFERNSKEEER
Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Fengxian”) for total consideration of RMB34,600,000, Rl ([EB])WBRT20%8E  BHEAARE
increasing Fudan Group's effective interest in Fengxian from 80% to 100% as at 31 34,600,0007C - HEEEEREEMNER
December 2023. 80%12 p1E2023F 12 A31 HAI100% °
SIIC Environment Holdings (Beihai) Co., Ltd. FEREER(LE) BRAE
The Group’s subsidiary, Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. (“Nanfang Group”), acquired 35% AEBNMBRBRIBEAKBERRA([BAE
equity interest in SIIC Environment Holdings (Beihai) Co., Ltd. (‘Beihai”) for total B )W EERFER Q08 ERAR ([1HE])
consideration of RMB114,998,000, increasing the Group effective interest from 55% to H135% Mk iE - BB A ARK114,998,0007T * #
90% as at 31 December 2023. AEEMEREEAL5%EME2023F12A31H
#190% ©
Financial support HMBXE
The Company has agreed to provide adequate funds to enable several of its wholly- ARRIRZERERAHES  EPHBET2EWBA
owned subsidiaries to meet in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due ARHEEREE TR EREA BRI+ =EA
for a period of twelve months from their issuance of their financial statements. These NEHMERAE ZSNBLAAREERE
subsidiaries are investment holding entities with minimal income and expenses. The B IR c ARAR ARV B HNERE
Company deemed minimal risk in, and is not contractually obliged to provide the i ARG EENEFRLULTE -

financial support.
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28. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

28. ARLRHES

Group Company
*5H NG|
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT AR®TT AREFT
Cost of unlisted investment in joint ventures REBLEFETRENKE 432,840 432,840 305,000 305,000
Share of post-acquisition reserves, e IR
net of dividend received MRE R E (7,360) 34,820 - -
Foreign exchange difference HNE ZEE 54,964 56,565 49,141 50,474
480,444 524,225 354,141 355,474

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

RBEHR  FEENSELEFEWT

Percentage of
effective equity

Place of interest and
incorporation and voting power
Name of joint venture operations Principal activities held by the Group
FEEMGERRE
EELELR EEMREL S R B B ETEXH RGFELLH
2024 2023
20245 2023F
% %
Shanghai Pucheng Thermal Power Energy Co., Ltd.®  PRC Waste incineration power generation. 50 50
(“Shanghai Pucheng”)
LERmnAERERAR H EREHE o 50 50
(I B8 ])
Wenling Hanyang Resources Power Co., Ltd. PRC Waste incineration power generation. 50 50
RERFERENARRE F EREHE - 50 50
@ Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China for @ RANENERHEKGHAMEHEN (FRERE

consolidation purposes.

8) Bt
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

28. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 28. ERLEHER (|)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material interest in joint FEREERGECE (A LGB NERER
venture, namely Shanghai Pucheng, is set out below. The summarised financial MM BERBMERIIMT - TXHBEREZIER
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements BOGITMEERMBREEA)RENEELER
prepared in accordance with SFRS(I). FIBBRERATHEE -

Shanghai Pucheng

L
2024 2023
2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT ARBFT
Current assets MEEE 181,813 280,171
Non-current assets ERBEE 476,068 468,055
Current liabilities MEEE (76,227) (137,033)
Non-current liabilities ERBARE (65,306) (66,213)
Non-controlling interests Ferlk R (3,554) (3,548)
512,794 541,432

Shanghai Pucheng

L

2024 2023
2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TTRT AREFT

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: A FEENBELEAENTRIE
Cash and cash equivalents Be kR EEY 135,309 222,544
Revenue WA 282,495 285,520
(Loss) Profit for the year Fn (&) FE (5,299) 1,528
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year FAZHE (BE) WaB%E (5,299) 1,528
Dividends paid during the year FREMNKRE 23,332 47,241

The above profit for the year includes the following: i ERFBEEATEE

Depreciation and amortisation EREH (4,840) (12,326)
Interest income FEMA 2,155 2,932
Income tax expenses TR (427) (5,539)
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28. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of
the interest in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

28. ARLRESD (M)

BREMESNRAENE

LEMBERBREN G MBRRAERNONE

Shanghai Pucheng

LEER

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TRT ARETTT
Equity attributable to owners of the joint venture BEMCERAAEEES 512,794 541,432
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest REBFTA RG] 50% 50%
256,397 270,716
Purchase price allocation adjustments BEENRRE 17,988 17,988
274,385 288,704
Foreign exchange difference HNE Z 8 49,141 50,474
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the joint venture AEERGECENERNEREE 323,526 339,178

Aggregate information of joint venture that is not individually material ERIMELNEANEELFERES

Group
F5£E
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFTT
The Group's share of profit REBEGEFE 5,140 10,929
The Group's share of total comprehensive income AEEEGZEREERE 5,140 10,929
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEEREECENENERAE

the joint venture 156,918 185,047
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2024512 A318

29. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 29. HMEAFRE

Group

50
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Cost of unlisted investment in associates REE AR ETIRERA 247,934 247,934
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend received EEREENE - IRERRE (24,469) (14,525)
223,465 233,409
Classified as assets held for sale (Note 21) PEAFELENEE (MiE21) (107,741) =
115,724 233,409

Based on contractual arrangements between the Group and other investors, the Group
does not hold power over the associates via voting rights from majority of the board
of directors, where the relevant activities of the entities are determined by the board of
directors based on majority votes. Therefore, management of the Group concluded that
the Group has no control over the associates, and thus, all associates are accounted for
using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

REFSEEEBREETUNSNRY  A5E
TARBAEFEASURERMBELEHE AR
EAEN MAEEBNEREIBIHESERE
AZHREE - At - FREERERALEEY
ZERENELEITHIE - MAEBE DRI
BRENGAMBRRARK

RIRERR - AEEBLEQRNFENT

Percentage of
effective equity

Place of .
interest and
incorporation and voting power
Name of associate operations Principal activities held by the Group
FREMSEMRRE
HRELFRERE HEMEIRESHE FERY RERELH
2024 2023
20245 2023F
% %
Sichuan SIIC Environment Investment Development Co., Ltd.@  PRC Investment Holding. 30.0 30.0
M EERFREERARARC HE REER - 30.0 30.0
Dongguan Changan Jinxia Sanzhou Water PRC Waste water treatment. 35.5 355
Purification Co., Ltd. (“Changan Sanzhou")®
REREBEZMFRERAR ([RE=M])@ H KRR - 35.5 355
Dongguan Changan Xinmin Water Purification PRC Waste water treatment. 30.4 30.4
Co., Ltd. (“Changan Xinmin")@
REMRENRKEHERRE ([REHEHO HE VKRR o 30.4 30.4
Kunming Puzhao Water Purification Co., Ltd. PRC Waste water treatment. 30.0 30.0
(“Kunming Puzhao”)®@- ©)
RAERAEHERARAR (RRER]) OV R KRR - 30.0 30.0
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29.

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

29. BELTES (W)

Percentage of
effective equity

Place of .
interest and
incorporation and voting power
Name of associate operations Principal activities held by the Group
FEREMSERARE
BELREE HEMRIRESHE IERY REBERELH
2024 2023
20245 20235
% %
Ningan City Donghaiyang Water Supply Co., Ltd. PRC Water Supply. 15.0 15.0
(“Ningan Donghaiyang”)®- ©
ERTREFHKEREEAR ([ELHREF]) @0 H oK o 15.0 15.0
Shanghai Yangtze River Delta Water HK Investment Holding. 40.0 40.0
Environment Investment Fund Limited
FAR=AKEEREEGERAA N REER - 40.0 40.0
Luohe China Railway Weite Jingkai Water Co., Ltd. PRC Water Supply. 13.8 13.8
(“Luohe Jingkai")@ @
BN B ERKEERAR (DRTER]) @ @ e fitok o 13.8 13.8
Luohe China Railway Weite Magou Water Co., Ltd. PRC Water Supply. 13.8 13.8
(‘“Luohe Magou”)@. @
BAREBRESEKEERAR (DRAFE]) @O H oK o 13.8 13.8

(@)

(b)

Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China for
consolidation purposes.

Kunming Puzhao's 30.0% effective equity interest was held by Nanfang Water. The Group
exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest in its immediate holding
company, Nanfang Water.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the effective equity interest of Ningan
Donghaiyang, the Group exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest in its
immediate holding company, Longjiang Group, which holds 25.9% equity interest in Ningan
Donghaiyang.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the effective equity interest of Luohe Jingkai
and Luohe Magou, the Group exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest
in their immediate holding company, Henan Wennuo Environmental Protection Technology
Co., Ltd., which holds 25.0% equity interest in Luohe Jingkai and Luohe Magou.

There are no material interests in associate for the financial years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.

O HEAENEEHEKEHAEBM(FREES
BIEZ -

O BHERN0.0%ERREGETKBEE - AE
EIE BN EERERARBKBHERERER
MHERAERENEATE -

O BEAREMSERREFNERBETR20% -
AEBEBREERERARRISE (HEER
RBF25.9% 18 WEREREEMHERRE
FHMEAFE -

O BEAKEFHRTLHRZASENERKEDS
R20% » AREEBNEERERARTHERR
RERABR AR (FERTER R EE25.0%
FRHE ) B BB P A HE 28 1 0BT 48 B SR 5 8 0
NMEAFEZ -

BZE20245 % 2023F12 A3 B ILMREE - K&
ERENE L N AEAE AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2024512 A318

29. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material

30.

- 19

29. RELFES (M)
BRMEEFERHHELRNRHESR

Group
F5%E
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
The Group's share of profit AEBEELFE 9,443 3,916
The Group's share of total comprehensive income AEERGZEREESE 9,443 3,916
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests in these AEERZEHREATNERNEREE
associates 223,465 233,409
GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION 30. affEmE
Group
F5%E
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Cost B¥
At beginning of the year and at end of the year FNRER 493,599 493,599
Accumulated impairment losses Rt EER
At beginning of the year and at end of the year FMRER 36,358 36,358
Carrying amount IREE 457,241 457,241
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30. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash
generation units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that business combination.

30. aftmE ()

EBAMHESHBENERK DEERMTAZE
BAHXENREELEN - BENRBENEN

The carrying amount of the goodwill had been allocated as follows: N

Carrying amount Carrying amount
of goodwill before recognition  of goodwill after recognition

Name of subsidiaries CGU of impairment loss of impairment loss
i NGIE GeEEEN BRREERNEEREE HAREERENHEREE
2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 2023 2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.®  Municipal EPC 36,358 36,358 = =
FEREER (FRE) ERAR MIREPC
Lap Yin International Limited® Waste incineration power generation 6,692 6,692 6,692
VEBBRARRRO EEEE
SIIC Environment (Taizhou) Waste Water Waste water treatment 2,858 2,858 2,858
Treatment Co., Ltd.®
LERE (BMN) A KERERARO BRI
Fudan Water® Waste water treatment 447 691 447,691 447 691

EEKKO KRR

@ The recoverable amounts of the CGU has been determined based on value in use
calculations using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Management has considered and determined the factors applied
in the financial budgeted gross margins and average growth rates. The budgeted gross
margins are based on past performances and its expectation of market developments for the
segment. Based on the assessment performed, management has fully impaired the goodwill.

®  Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the
continuing use of waste water treatment plants/waste incineration power generation plant
over the service concession period ranging from 20 to 30 years, using a discount rate of
8.0% (2023: 8.0%). Management believes that this forecast period is justifiable due to the
long term nature of the projects. Any reasonably possible change to the key assumptions
applied is not likely to cause the recoverable amount to be below the carrying amounts of
the CGU.

Material accounting policy information

Goodwill arising from business combination is not amortised but is reviewed for
impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

@ REeELBUNTRESENEREEEENT
FUBRENRSRERAREBEREETEEE
E o BEEECEBRETENRRFHERXWR
REMFRMNERAR - EFXREDERZNE
MAERRRABRRATHEDET - REMETH
Ay ERECKEERE0NE -

O FREENABEABECRTKEER,EE
AER (RBEFE2HENFAFER0F) MEL
BRI £ T128.0% (20234 : 8.0%) BITHR X4
AMEE - ARERNRANE  EEERAZT
FHAEAE - MABRBRFEEFNSRAEE
PHTEERINE S RERR S ELBUNRR
(E)

FREAHERH
EBANELNEETTREESFELEN X
WE - SAERNRANE  BEIETAREESR
ERAHMELAGRARENSREELEN (HR
SELBEMAR)  BEOERENRSELRNE
BEETRENN  IRFSELEM HR AR
ENTREEATHETAR - HREELEMH
AkEmeRLNEREE  ARESRES LSRN
MRRD EER e EL BN EMEENKREE -
HEBRSELBNAEBENREENLHIDE
ERSEABUMEAMEE - BB ERZAERS
BAeRER R -

HEABRASELENK  BENEESEIFTA
EETHERESHEA -
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

m 1

31. RARAMEMKE

Group Company
F%E b /NG|

2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20235 20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T AR®TR ARETT
Trade payables B HEMN A 2,125,680 2,324,757 - =
Others Hit 1,656,919 1,981,676 102,776 163,773
3,782,599 4,306,433 102,776 163,773

(i)

(if)

(i)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

(i)

REERREZERARZFINE HEMAFE
HERERDITT -

Group

F5%E
2024 2023
20245 20235
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Within 30 days 308 A 769,462 702,713
Within 31 to 60 days 31Z60HA 135,296 93,223
Within 61 to 90 days 61ZE90HA 69,058 57,274
Within 91 to 180 days 91E180HR 223,112 124,272
Within 181 to 365 days 1812365 H A 146,860 641,800
Over 365 days #8i@365H 781,892 705,475
2,125,680 2,324,757

The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days (2023: 30 to 90 days).
No interest is charged on the overdue outstanding balances.

Included in other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2024 were (a)
customer advances of RMB632,800,000 (2023: RMB539,024,000); (b)
amount due to non-controlling shareholders of RMB216,067,000 (2023:
RMB242,446,000); and (c) sundry payables of RMB366,846,000 (2023:
RMB672,623,000), mainly due to monies received on behalf of third parties

(including government).

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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BENTHEEHA30ZI0A (20234F : 30
Z90H) - HERD ARERRDAE -

R2024F12 431 B RO E fn B 5108 R JE &
ERREQQ)EFEFAREG32,800,0007T
(20234 : AFR#539,024,0007T) : (b) &R
JEHER R R 0B A R 216,067,000 (2023
F: ANRW242,446,0007T) : R (c)EN 2
£ AR#366,846,0007T (20234 : AR
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32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 32. BITRAMER

Group Company
350 3N
2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20234 20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETT AEBTR ARBTT
Bank loans RITER 20,941,289 17,164,566 4,598,958 3,547,536
Other borrowings HAEHR 18,174 76,904 - =
Corporate bonds® NAIEHE 1,357,012 2,993,898 1,357,012 2,993,898
Government loans B &R 22,405 23,431 - -
22,338,880 20,258,799 5,955,970 6,541,434
Analysed as: DWWT
Current & 5,315,861 5,767,008 2,650,500 3,547,536
Non-current i) 17,023,019 14,491,791 3,305,470 2,993,898
22,338,880 20,258,799 5,955,970 6,541,434

The Company has completed the issuance of two tranches of the Corporate Bonds
amounting to RMB1,500,000,000 each in March and November 2021 on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange which bears interest at 3.89% and 3.40% per annum for the first and second
tranches respectively. The maturity date of the Corporate Bonds is five years from the
issuance date.

The Company has the discretion to adjust the interest rate of the Corporate Bonds in the
third year. Pursuant to the relevant terms of the issuance of the two tranches of Corporate
Bonds, holders of the Corporate Bonds have an option to partially or fully sell back the
Corporate Bonds to the Company at the end of the third year from the issuance date.

In February 2024, holders of the First Tranche Corporate Bonds have registered for the sell-
back of 1,415,000 First Tranche Corporate Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
RMB141,500,000 at the sell-back price of RMB100 each. The outstanding principal amount
of the First Tranche Corporate Bonds after the sell-back is RMB1,358,500,000 with the
interest rate for the First Tranche Corporate Bonds being adjusted from 3.89% to 2.99% per
annum, effective from 15 March 2024.

In October 2024, holders of the Second Tranche Corporate Bonds have registered for the
sell-back of 1,500,000 Second Tranche Corporate Bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB1,500,000,000 at the sell-back price of RMB100 each. There were no outstanding
principal amount of the Second Tranche Corporate Bond after the sell-back.

ARFEBARIR021F3A RN AL LBESR
RERETRARARES  SHREER
1,500,000,0007 * E—HRE ZHESRNEHE
251 %53.89% 123.40% - RAEIES BT AR
HFHH -

ARRARE=FHEABARERNFIEX - RIF
RTMBLREFNERGES - AREFREAR
ERERTHSRHE=FRERNFARLDES

WBHHDRRES

R2024F2F - E—HRREFFBEAEERLRK
BRARBIOTNEDEEDEASLEAARE
141,500,00070491,415,0005R £ — B A FfES °
E-RARBEFREEANAERALEAAR
#1,358,500,0007C ¢ & —#LA BEEFHAFFIEH
3.80% % E2.99% © E202453 F15H LA -

R2024510R - E-HRARSHEARERR
BRARKIOTHNOEBDEASEBAARE
1,500,000,0007#91,500,0005 £ — iR RIfE % °
REER F_HAREFMEREESSE -
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32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 32. RITREMMER ()

Details of collateral

Certain bank and other borrowings are secured/guaranteed by the Group’s assets which
are disclosed in Note 39 to the financial statements.

B9 5N

ETRITMHEMERAAREEERER #
R FERENMBRERMEII -

Group Company
F5%E b /N
2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20234 20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T AR®TR ARETT
Secured/guaranteed iR/ ER 14,268,538 9,261,883 - =
Unsecured/unguaranteed A EER 8,070,342 10,996,916 5,955,970 6,541,434
22,338,880 20,258,799 5,955,970 6,541,434
Details on interest rates FISE

The table below summarises the interest rate categories of the Group's and the
Company’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

TERBARBE ARAEERARBEFOMEIR
Al -

Group Company
x50 . XN

2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Interest-free borrowings REEBR 2,056 2,056 - =
Fixed-rate borrowings TEMER 5,366,466 4,532,576 4,007,013 3,723,898
Variable-rate borrowings FEER 16,970,358 15,724 167 1,948,957 2,817,536
22,338,880 20,258,799 5,955,970 6,541,434

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s and the Company's borrowings are

FEERARAERNERNZHENT -

as follows:
Group Company
50 XN
2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20235 20245 20234
Fixed-rate borrowings (per annum) TEER(BF) 0.8%1t03.9% 08%103.9% 2.5%1t03.9% 3.2%1t03.9%
0.8% £3.9% 08%ZE39% 2.5%E3.9% 32%%3.9%
Variable-rate borrowings (per annum) FEBH(EF) 0.8%1t04.5% 08%1t06.6% 2.4%1t02.8% 5.0%1t06.5%

0.8% £ 4.5%

0.8% £6.6% 2.4% E2.8% 50% £ 65%

For the variable-rate borrowings, majority of the contracted interest rates are based on
floating market rates at a discount of 10% to a markup of 20%, repriced at intervals
ranging from monthly to annually.
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32.

33.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

32. @TREMMER (&)

Details on contractual maturity dates SV KB HE
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s TR IS BARAREE RARRAEREO
borrowings at the end of the reporting period: K
Group Company
*5E 3|
2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20235 20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%®TT AREFT AR®TRT ARETT
Carrying amount repayable: [EEEREE :
Within one year —FR 5,315,861 5,767,008 2,650,500 3,547 536
Between one to two years —ZMFERN 2,887,073 2,407,080 1,459,513 -
Between two to five years MERFER 5,918,619 6,664,646 1,845,957 2,993,898
Over five years BRRF 8,217,327 5,420,065 - -
22,338,880 20,258,799 5,955,970 6,541,434
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 33. RftFRBAR
Group
50
2024 2023
20245 20235
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Accruals for benefits due to ex-employees Ef Al BB MM ERTIE B 34,715 36,204
Provision for major overhauls (Note 17) BRRIERE (H17) 44,748 42,890
Others Hity 34,724 36,069
114,187 115,163

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual obligations
to maintain the waste water and water treatment plants to a specified level of
serviceability and/or to restore the plants to a specified condition before they are
handed over to the grantors at the end of the service concession periods. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the waste water and water treatment
plants, except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured in accordance
with SFRS(I) 1-37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at the
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The future expenditure on these maintenance and
restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation basis is

reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

EXBER R

RERBEFLLHE - ARBAREANAEES
KRKERBAER TRESEKTORBR,/ %
EREHTCENRERB SRR R TR T
AZRIEEREEREMRE - BRERARE  ZF
RERBETKRKEERNA OB ETEREHER
RIE CH s B RS B I R S 242 B ) 3137 55
ZARERAFEERHFTRANINRERENR
XMREGEHER R E - BRBEZFRERE
ERANRX —HRATEXRE] - Gt EEGH
Bl YNEERELER -
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33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 33. RfttFmEAR (M)
Provision for major overhauls (continued) EXBERG(E)
Movements in provision for major overhauls are as follows: BERBBEREZHOT
Group
340
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFT
At beginning of the year =) 42,890 39,090
Provision made during the year FRERE 1,858 3,800
At end of the year FR 44,748 42,890
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B&E

Group and Company

FRARFLT
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
LERNE it}
RMB'000
AREFT
Issued and paid up share capital SRTRAERF
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 7202341818 ~ 202312 A31H 2,575,665,726 5,920,175
Effects of change in functional currency MEEBETHYE - 684,548
2,575,665,726 6,604,723
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared LBBBFEAGERARBMEL S REKDURE -
by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. The EERESHE - RAAKRE - TRRTER
ordinary shares have no par value. {E0
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35. OTHER RESERVES

35. Hftifkow

Group Company
%0 F4F
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 2023F 2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETT AR®TR ARETTT
General reserve —REFE 855,926 754717 - =
Translation reserve i 5 (1,084,451) (369,546) - 739,620
Effects of changes in ownership interests in RIB AR AR
subsidiaries where there is no change in BEGETENTE
control 70,979 70,979 - -
Merger reserve AP (200,315) (200,315) - =
(357,861) 255,835 - 739,620
(a) General reserve (a) —MfEfnm
In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of PRC, companies in PRC BEFBEEBEERER  PERFESF
are required to set aside a general reserve fund by way of appropriation from their BERPEETHBRED 2ROZETFF
statutory net profit reported in PRC statutory financial statements at a rate of 10% HHRBE10%EA—REE - CPEKENT
for each year. Subject to approval from PRC authorities, the fund may be used - ZARIANEE RS BEIIE NN E
to offset accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiary. NEEMER - BEBRENEEREER
The appropriation is required until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the Wi A R & ARM50% 8 7 AL « %%
subsidiary’s registered capital. This statutory reserve is not available for dividend EREBIAERRESRRE ©
distribution to the shareholders.
(b) Translation reserve (b) ERBEMRE
The translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the ERREEERENAEERARAEYEE
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional PN BB BT aE SR MINE 28 M BT I
currencies are different from that of the Group's and Company's presentation REEMERZE -
CUITEncy.
(c) Effects of changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries where there (c) RMBLARMEHERSDERFERS
is no change in control Mg
This represents the effects of changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries when HERMBARMA RS Z D EZHIET
there is no change in control. 2HTE -
(d) Merger reserve (d) &fF6EE

Merger reserve represents the difference between consideration and equity
acquired in a business combination involving entities under common control.

ANtHBRESRARENERNEBAGY
BRMERER 2 RAEE -
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36.

37.

o 200

DIVIDENDS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2024, a final one-tier tax exempt dividend
of $$0.006 per ordinary share, totalling S$15.3 million (RMB82.4 million) was declared
and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, an interim one-tier tax exempt
dividend of S$0.005 per ordinary share, totalling S$12.8 million (RMB69.8 million)
was declared and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2023. A final
one-tier tax exempt dividend of S$0.01 per ordinary share, totalling S$25.8 million
(RMB132.9 million) was declared and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2022.

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to property leases on its office
premises with lease terms between 1 to 5 years. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Maturity analysis of operating lease payments:

36.

37.

B2

HE04512ANALMBEE  A5ERHES
202312 AN AL BERER LKA RABRS
(B—#Bi#%) SREREAR0.006%77T - 471,530
EHL (AR%8,24087) -

HE2023F12ANALMBEE - A5EHES
2023512 A3 AL BERER KA+ RS
(B—#Bi#%) SRERAB0.00537T - 451,280
EHT (ARH698087) - AREHAE2022F
12 A1 LM BEEE KRR RBRE (E—#
BiEh %) SRERK0.013T - 52,580 8T
(AR®1.32987C) -

H#EHR

FREFSHAA
AEBERHEAZKRERERARBA—E0F
ZHRENFEZNEREFM - ARARBRER
BEEBEEZME o

RERENFABMBR DA -

Group
F%E
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETF T
Within one year —FR 3,332 3,057
In the second to fifth year inclusive EEEERF (BREERME) 8,199 7,696
After five years Bk 5,000 6,794
16,531 17,547
Material accounting policy information EREHBREH
The Group as lessor AEEEALBAA

The Group enters into lease agreement as a lessor with respect to its office premises.

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating lease.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on
straight-lined basis over the lease term.

When a contract lease includes lease and non-lease components, the Group applies
SFRS(I) 15 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. RF&KiE

Group
F%E
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Capital expenditure contracted for BHUTHEEMNZELD
but not provided in the consolidated BREGAVIEREARESN
financial statements in respect of VN
— Additions in construction-in-progress — EMEARBTEELHERN
relating to service concession arrangement FrIR 546,795 555,484
39. PLEDGE ON ASSETS 39. FEEH
The aggregate carrying value of assets pledged by the Group to secure banking facilities AEBAEGRIIRTHRIEESRE  HEARF
granted by these banks, leased assets by leasing company and use of certain operating MHEEEERFRAATHICEEEMERRANERE
concession assets are as follows: REREERBENT
Group
F5%E
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Pledged bank deposits BEBRIER 67,567 63,010
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERSE 4,856 6,392
Intangible assets BWEE 3,522,236 1,432,240
Land use rights THFRE 438 555
Trade receivables B S EWGIE 375,219 159,450
Receivables under service concession arrangements R EE T HEE T B GRIE 13,782,315 13,465,554
17,752,631 15,127,201
Company
407
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
Investment in a subsidiary R—REBARKEE - 260,000
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following significant related party transactions which
were carried out in the normal course of business as agreed between the parties during

the financial year:

. ABAXSR

BRIAZR B TS SRR H b 75 BT 3 BR MO B 7 B RO -
FEERATBEREATETNARETE NN K
EBRETPETNENEBRARS

Group
F5%E
Related party Nature of transactions 2024 2023
b THE 20245 20235
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Subsidiaries of the Company's intermediate Interest expenses
holding company FBMAZ - 61,252
ARBRNERARNKBA Property management services
MEEERRS 12,168 12,234
Associate of the Company’s intermediate holding company Production services
ARARPNERARREHE AT FERS 39,590 45,290
Associate of the Company’s ultimate holding company Sales and lease back services
AR AR ER R RS AR E &M E R 22,269 -
Compensation of Directors and key management personnel® EERIETEEAATFH
Group
*5E
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TR ARETT
Short-term employment benefits KEESEA 6,295 11,886
Post-employment benefits BERR AR A 1,084 1,143
7,379 13,029

@ Other key management personnel refers to the Group Chief Financial Officer and the Group

Deputy General Managers.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group do not include any executive directors of
the Company for the financial years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. Details of the

@ HiIREEBEARESBERNBEREERS

£<« }E

BZE2024F R2023F12 A3 BILHREE - K&
BREASEFMATY T BEARABEMHNTE

remuneration are as follows: F o HBFBOT

Group

F%E
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETF T
Salaries and other allowances e REA R, 2,241 4,196
Bonuses AN 548 2,781
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFIFTEIER 538 1,143
3,327 8,120
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 40. ABARS ()
Compensation of Directors and key management personnel® (continued) EFRIETEEARFHM (E)
The remunerations were within the following bands: HHEENT
Group
*50
2024 2023
20245 20234
No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAH EEAH
HKD1 to HKD500,000 1775 £500,000/% 7T
(equivalent to RMB1 to RMB461,000) (HERAARBITEAR461,0007T) 2
HKD500,001 to HKD1,000,000 500,001 %7CZ2 1,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to RMB461,001 to RMB923,000) (HHER AR 461,001 02 AR#923,0007T) 2
HKD1,000,000 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7t 21,500,000/ 7T
(equivalent to RMB923,001 to RMB1,384,000) (HHENARE923,001 T ARK1,384,0007T) 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7 £2,000,0007% 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,384,001 to RMB1,845,000) (HHERARA,384,001 T2 AR1,845,0007T) =
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001/ 722,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,845,001 to RMB2,306,000) (HERARE1845001 TE AR2,306,0007T) =
5 5

No remuneration were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

AEEYERDLFHHALOEN —BTHMH
ERBEEMARRMARE B0 RE - RERE
MRS

41. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. SBEH
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business segments based on HEEME AEERBEERMRSEDELD
their products and services, and has three reportable segments as follows: B ZEATE2HK2PBMOT

(i) Water and Sludge Treatment: (i) XRFEEHE:
Principal activities include construction, management and operation of water TEERORERBSTCE T YR T EK
and sludge related infrastructure under service concession arrangements and K REBRERSENRESR  EERELE
management and operation of water and sludge related infrastructure under non- RIEFERIS TS E 2 HE I T Bk RO5 R
service concession arrangements and financial income under service concession BHER R EIR RS S U RRB L
arrangements. BRBEETHERKA °

(ii) Water Supply: (ii) Kk :
Principal activities include construction, management and operation of water TEEBOEERBETCERHETE
supply related infrastructure under service concession arrangements. F - BE RS BHRBAER R o

(iii) Waste incineration: (iii) EIBRE -

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of waste
incineration related infrastructure under service concession arrangements.

TEXGBEERBEFCELHETE
iR EIE AR R R AR R R AR AR
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

o 204

(iii) Waste incineration: (continued)

Other operations include design and consultancy on the projects and installation
of water meters. None of these segments meets any of the quantitative thresholds
for determining reportable segments in 2024 or 2023.

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Group’s
financing and income taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated
to operating segments. Unallocated assets/liabilities mainly comprise of corporate
assets and liabilities, tax assets and liabilities and interest income and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on agreed-term basis in a manner
similar to transactions with third parties.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

M. PPEH(E)
(iii) BERE : (#)

Hin ¥R IROR REAAREEK
5% - 20245 52023%F » ZE DR EE
BEAZHS BOTATERE -

EREDHES H%%”ﬂmﬁéiﬁ
EHARBBRD B R EEFHEAREK %
RADRBE BRI -

2% EAENAGERRERTRE
HEER - AREMARAEEE
&1

7 NS
) 72
ERNHNER - AEENRERAERTY
[N
n

=7 fic
RASEEEER  fe@okEgenH -
FAAEMNEE/ ABLTERRCEBERA
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-
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

M. FBEH(\K)

Business segments BB
Water and Total for
sludge Water Waste Reportable
All amount in RMB’000 treatment supply incineration Segments  Unallocated  Consolidated
L]
FEREUARRTIH KRAREE 5k EERE kit R ait
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
2024% 20245 20245 20245 2024% 2024%
Revenue WA 5,651,594 1,272,238 671,822 7,595,654 - 1,595,654
Reportable segment profit (loss) from operations ] 2HAHELH B (FE) 1,605,115 121,811 221,486 1,954,412 (50,218) 1,904,194
Finance income B - - - - 25,965 25,965
Finance expenses YBER - - - - (779,461) (779,461)
Other non-operating income (expenses) EE g () 7,857 25,367 (200) 33,024 17,891 50,915
Share of results of associates 3 VNS 9,443 - - 9,443 - 9,443
Share of results of joint ventures EhAELEEE - - 2,487 2,487 - 2,487
Income tax expense FEREx (170,153) (38,148) (15,998) (224,299) (37,602) (261,901)
Profit (Loss) after tax el (58) 1,452,262 115,030 207,775 1,775,067 (823,425) 951,642
Segment depreciation and amortisation ARTEREH 369,664 189,708 49,687 609,059 586 609,645
Segment non-cash income AHFREUA 482 - - 482 - 482
Segment non-cash expenses ABFEREET (101,144) - (3,816) (104,960) - (104,960)
Segment assets PHEE 33,119,986 4,828,186 5,989,042 43,937,214 291,914 44,229,128
Interest in joint ventures RELEER - - 480,444 480,444 - 480,444
Interest in associates BENER 82,694 - - 82,694 33,030 115,724
Financial assets at fair value through BAABEFAER
profit or loss MepAE 10,061 - - 10,061 - 10,061
Financial assets at fair value through other BAABEF AL ZANE
comprehensive income MERAE 13,400 - - 13,400 - 13,400
Assets classified as held for sale ARERELENEE - - - - 107,74 107,741
Total assets BEGE 33,226,141 4,828,186 6,469,486 44,523,813 432,685 44,956,498
Segment liabilities B8k 15,822,664 2,101,286 4,220,870 22,144,820 6,729,168 28,873,988
Segment capital expenditure PHERRS 1,334,628 352,977 238,105 1,925,710 46 1,925,756
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

M. FBEH ()

Business segments (continued) EBSH (&)
Water and Total for
sludge Water Waste Reportable
All amount in RMB'000 treatment supply incineration Segments Unallocated Consolidated
D!
FAEBUARET A KREERE K EE%E AiEE AAR Bit
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
2023 2023% 2003% 03% 20035 2023%
Revenue WA 5,200,711 1,376,001 976,180 751289 - 7572892
Reportable segment profit (loss) from operations A 2FHBEEF|E (BR) 1,699,676 183,929 346,155 2,229.760 (127,584) 2,102,176
Finance income B - - - - 28,805 28,805
Finance expenses YBER - - - - (834,254) (834,254)
Other non-operating income EFEEERA (97,968) 43,361 18 (54,589) 136,704 82,115
Share of results of associates ElEHEnmEE 3916 - - 3916 - 3916
Share of results of joint ventures ElERALEEE - - 10,762 10,762 = 10,762
Income tax expense FERAS (206,839) (57,354) (52,735) (316,928) (56,936) (373,864)
Profit (Loss) after tax REE (BE) 1,398,785 169,936 304,200 1,872,921 (853,265) 1,019,656
Segment depreciation and amortisation AETERESH 329,880 107,369 % 437,273 12,107 449,380
Segment non-cash income AHEREUA 164 - - - - 164
Segment non-cash expenses AEHERERR (26,011) (1,408) - (27.419) - (27.419)
Segment assets NHEE 30,269,482 5,658,851 5,587,573 41515,906 311421 41,827,327
Interest in joint ventures RARTER - - 524,205 524,205 = 524,205
Interest in associates BenakEn 201,043 - - 201,043 32,366 233,409
Financial asses t fair value through BARBEGARR
profit or loss HeBEAE 9,579 - - 9,579 - 9,579
Financial assets at fair value through other RAABEAENZENE
comprehensive income HemAE 13,400 - - 13,400 - 13,400
Total assets BESE 30,493,504 5,658,851 6,111,798 42,264,153 343,187 42,607,940
Segment liabilities AHERE 12,100,596 2,604,892 3,912,881 18,618,369 8,699,115 21,317 484
Segment capital expenditure AHERRES 780,383 217125 - 997 508 % 997 532
(i)  Revenue under Water and Sludge Treatment, Water Supply and Waste Incineration () EHZE2024F12A318IFBEE @ k&5

for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 include construction revenue
arising from the construction of the Group’s service concession arrangements
related assets of RMB1,796 million (2023: RMB1,868 million).
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business segments (continued)
(ii)  The segment non-cash items consist of the follows:

41. FHBRH ()
RES (1)
(i) DEFFRLBEBEATSE

Group
350
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Segment non-cash income SBEREWKA
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BAABEAAEENEREE
through profit or loss DAEEKE 482 164
Segment non-cash expenses AEBER MR
Loss allowance EEAEE 104,611 27,398
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BENRZEEE 259 21
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEEVEERRE 90 -
104,960 27,419
(iii) The nature of unallocated segment assets is as follows: (i) ROEHDEEMMLENT :
Group
350
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREFT
Amounts due from joint venture ERAERETE 22,159 30,500
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets M BERSEBEAREVEE 4,857 13,954
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EWRIE 5,539 5,861
Prepayments BB 4,711 7,636
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBALEEY 254,648 253,470
Total unallocated assets APEEELTE 291,914 311,421
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business segments (continued)
(iv) The nature of unallocated segment liabilities is as follows:

M. SHEH(K)
RESB (W)
(iv) ROEDHAENEENT :

Group
F5%E
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETT
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAER 6,580,788 8,446,044
Trade and other payables 2 5 R H e 3RIE 148,380 253,071
Total unallocated liabilities AOEEEESE 6,729,168 8,699,115

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC. The Group's revenue from
external customers and information about its non-current assets by geographical

HEFH

AEENEBTBUNDE - AEERBIERP
HRAREZBEMENEENNIERBEENE

location of the assets are detailed below: BERmT
Revenue Non-current assets
A FRBEE

2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20234 20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT AR®TT AREFT
PRC H 7,595,654 7,572,892 34,164,920 33,323,000
Singapore Hons - - 13,418 13,954
7,595,654 7,572,892 34,178,338 33,336,954

Information about major customers FREEEFRMAEH

Revenue from PRC government amounted to RMB6,409,112,000 (2023:
RMB6,288,509,000) arising from water and sludge treatment, water supply and waste

incineration segment.

R - fUKREREFEEE o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 42. #®IR - ¢MEARRRIFER
MANAGEMENT

(a) Capital management (a) BEEE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains healthy capital ratios in relation to the nature of its industry in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes the bank
and other borrowings and lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 32 and 24, net
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The Group reviews the capital structure using gearing ratio regularly. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. As part of this review, the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital are being considered. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, return
capital to shareholders or new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt. No major changes were made to the objectives,
policies or processes during the financial years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

AREBEAEENIREGARREARE
RAOBEHETENEEBNEARLE - AH
HEEBREAREESBRRERE -

AEENEARBERERFE (BRME
REURENORTREMETUREESR
&) RERRALEFENFBRRARARAA
R (BREEBTRE  REFBERE
tofEtE) o

AEEERERAABLXEHEREAR
B AEEEERABARE  YRGEEBN
BHEHRE - RELBET F5EZE
BARARBZBETHANERR - A& H
KBBXMBS  MRREEEALETH
BARETHEGZBOREREY - FEHE
BEEAREE - HE2024F 22023512 A
SALMBRER - B  BRRABFUEE

Group

%0
2024 2023
20245 2023F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARET T

Total borrowings® Ep
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

B RekReEEY

22,390,881 20,301,413
(2,918,241) (2,885,781)

Net debt B 55

19,472,640 17,415,632

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE ARGES

10,635,069 10,131,507

Non-controlling interests RS 5,447,441 5,158,949
Total equity [ Ear e 16,082,510 15,290,456
Net debt/Equity attributable to owners of the Company ADRER AR(EESFE /ES 1.83 1.72

Net debt/Total equity ERFE /s 1.21 1.14

™ Total borrowings comprise bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities. 0 EREBAERTRAMETUAREERE
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Categories of financial instruments

42. ¢MTR eHEBRREFETE ()

(b) &MWIAEH

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the

reporting period:

TREFIRBERRVERHMTA

Group Company
50 e NG|
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 20234 2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTr ARWTE ARET:T
Financial assets SEHEE
Financial assets at amortised cost ERERATENSHEE 29,695,452 28,954,266 6,577,562 7,304,617
Financial assets at fair value through other BEARBEFARMZAKE
comprehensive income HNERMBEE 13,400 13,400 - =
Financial assets at fair value through BAREEGARE
profit or loss RMEmEE 10,061 9,579 - =
29,718,913 28,977,245 6,577,562 7,304,617
Financial liabilities SMAR
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKATENSHMEARE  (25,524,416) (24,063,199) (6,139,994) (6,959,606)
Lease liabilities HEERE (52,001) (42,614) (8,562) (8,672)

(25,576,417)

(24,105,813)  (6,148,556)  (6,968,278)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(c)

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from its
operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include
(i) foreign currency risk; (ii) interest rate risk; (iii) liquidity risk; and (iv) credit
risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the
management of these risks, which are executed by the Chief Financial Officer and

Management.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's and Company's
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and

processes for the management of these risks.

There has been no major change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks
or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

42. ¢MTR eHBRERRFTE ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) SMRREEARRER ()
(i) Foreign currency risk (i) ShesmbE
The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or AEEAERBHEIFEBENRI ST
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional BHRR  ZETHEIRBULEE
currency of Group's entities, primarily RMB. The Group has no sales ERNEEERIIM—BERE (X2
denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB whilst none of the BARB)FE - RAEEMEURA
costs are denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB. Similarly, REMNINESHENBEER - MHAA
the Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances at the end of the BRBENRARBIMNIINEEE o
reporting period have limited foreign currency exposures and bulk of the A REARESRR  TEENES
sales and purchases are denominated in the respective functional currencies EUWRERE HENTBLESRER
of the Group's entities which are mainly RMB. Currently, the Group has not REIMNERR - KE D #HE RIREN
entered into any hedge due to the limited transactional foreign currency AEBEEREMETEHE(EEA
exposure. ARE) - B AR HINERKRE
R AEEIET A -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s monetary assets DTEIRREARUAEEERS
and monetary liabilities which are significant at the reporting date that are BN RSN T ([HNE D) 3HE
denominated in currencies other than the respective functional currency of MASERARAAIEAEREERE

the Group’s entities (“foreign currency”) are as follows: “eEREE

Group Company
.3 1] 07
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
& R HE afi
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20234 2024 023 2024 20235 2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 ~ RMB’000 RMB'000 ~ RMB’000 RMB'000 ~ RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT AERBTR ARETT AERMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETR
SGD (against RMB) o AARE) 10,116 3,668,020 15,103 4,623,901 10,116 3,801,737 15,103 4,628,781
SGD (against HKD) %7 (H38T) - 5 - - - 2605337 B -
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The following table details the Group’s and Company's sensitivity to a 5%
(2023: 5%) increase and decrease in the respective functional currency of
the Group’s entities, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items, and adjusts their translation at the year end for 5% (2023: 5%)
increase in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit before tax where the above foreign currency strengthens
5% (2023: 5%) against the functional currency of Group’s entities.

TRAJARERARBRHAREERE S
MR EBIEMEH 5% (20235 : 5%) 2
BRE  MARECESERTE - HRE
AMEBRRERBHBUINETEZ ERR
B REE25% (20234 : 5%) S MARHE
BE o PTHEERRR LRINE LA EE
BRI AL B E85% (20234F : 5%) 5 2
BATA BB

Group Company
*5H b /N

2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 2023F 20245 20235
Increase in profit before tax RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
WaiFlEEM AERRTR ARETTT AR®TRT ARETTT
SGD (against RMB) #T (RARE) (249) (47,794) (249) (41,352)
SGD (against HKD) #or (LAET) = 2,292 - 130,267
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL

- 212

MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the
Group's and the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure
to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and borrowings. The
Group's policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable-
rate debts.

Interest on financial instruments subject to variable interest rates is
contractually repriced regularly. Interest on financial instruments at fixed
rates is fixed until the maturity of the instruments. The other financial
instruments of the Group and the Company are not subjected to interest rate
risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for its variable-rate borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming that
the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year.

At the end of the reporting period, a change of 50 basis points (2023: 50
basis points) higher/lower in interest rate with all other variables held
constant, would result in the Group’s profit net of tax to be RMB63,639,000
(2023: RMB58,966,000) lower/higher.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The
Group's and the Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The
Group’s and the Company's liquidity position are monitored closely by
the management. The Group's and the Company’s objective is to maintain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
stand-by credit facilities.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual
maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on
contractual undiscounted payments. The table include both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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42. ¢MTR eHEBRREFETE ()

(c)

eREREEAERBE ()

(i)

(iii)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 42. &@®IR 2WMERREFEE ()
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) £MEREEAERBE (E)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) HERLME ()

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities REBENINBEEPNERIAD
(continued) (&)

Total Carrying

1 year 1to Over undiscounted amount at

or less 5 years 5years cash flows year end

E 3] REX

1FBUT 1E5% BBSE BeRHE HEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBTE AR®TE AR®TRE AR®TRT ARBTR

Group 350
2024 20245
Financial liabilities EMmAR
Non-interest bearing £ 95N 3,187,592 - - 3,187,592 3,187,592
Fixed interest rate instruments®  EEFETA@ 3,213,793 2,091,169 299,613 5,604,575 5,418,467
Variable interest rate instruments® JFEhF|& T A0 2,735,833 8,215,627 9,242,288 20,193,748 16,970,358
Total =H) 9,137,218 10,306,796 9,541,901 28,985,915 25,576,417
2023 20235
Financial liabilities eMARE
Non-interest bearing E35) 3,806,456 = = 3,806,456 3,806,456
Fixed interest rate instruments® — EEFETAE 1,450,663 3,284,344 166,960 4,901,967 4,575,190
Variable interest rate instruments® ¥ EHF|& T A© 5,039,356 7,192,839 5,999,254 18,231,449 15,724,167
Total = 10,296,475 10,477,183 6,166,214 26,939,872 24,105,813
Total Carrying
1 year 1to Over undiscounted amount at
or less 5 years 5 years cash flows year end
E ik REFX
1EBETF 1E5%F BiBSE HenEdE BRI E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AERBTR AR®TR AER%TR AR®TR
Company TN
2024 20245
Financial liabilities SMARE
Non-interest bearing =8 184,024 - - 184,024 184,024
Fixed interest rate instrument© EEFMETA 2,280,742 1,819,701 - 4,100,443 4,015,575
Variable interest rate instrument®  JFEHFETAO 506,315 1,561,729 - 2,068,044 1,948,957
Total = 2,971,081 3,381,430 - 6,352,511 6,148,556
2023 2023 %
Financial liabilities EMAR
Non-interest bearing F3o) 418,172 - - 418,172 418,172
Fixed interest rate instrument® ETFETAO 856,873 3,157,073 - 4,013,946 3,732,570
Variable interest rate instrument® JFEHF|E T A 2,895,737 - - 2,895,737 2,817,536
Total =H) 4,170,782 3,157,073 - 7,327,855 6,968,278
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL

- 214

MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

(iv)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
(continued)

@ The effective interest rates ranged from 0.8% to 4.9% (2023: 0.8% to 4.9%)
per annum.

®  The effective interest rates ranged from 0.8% to 4.5% (2023: 0.8% to 6.6%)
per annum.

© The effective interest rate ranged from 2.5% to 3.9% (2023: 3.2% to 4.9%)
per annum.

@ The effective interest rate ranged from 2.4% to 2.8% (2023: 5.0% to 6.5%)
per annum.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group
and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high
credit rating counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising
losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades
only with recognised and creditworthy counterparties.

Exposure to credit risk

As at reporting period end, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the statements of financial position. The Group's
principal financial assets are trade and other receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangements, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position
are net of loss allowance.

The credit risk concentration profile of the Group's trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period is 100% concentrated in PRC (2023: 100%).

Receivables under service concession arrangements relate to consideration
recoverable from certain governing bodies and agencies of the government
of the PRC in respect of construction of water treatment plant/waste
incineration plant and are generally considered as having low risk of
default.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 42. £BTIR - &MERREFEE (§)

MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued)
The Group's and the Company's credit risk on cash and cash equivalents

and pledged bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks
with good reputation.

The Group develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The Group uses its
trading records to rate its major customers and other debtors. The Group
does not hold any collateral to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

(c)

eREREEEEREE (1K)
(iv) fREERE (&)

EHHEERR ()

BEREFANREERFZRIT
HARERARRAREKREEEY
REERRTEROEERRER -

AEBHERERENEERRS
& LME}TEFEEZ’JHM#WMHA
WMAETHE - AEEMNAEEST
fj“uﬁﬁixg}f‘&ﬁ’m HAETT
AR ARELESEEMERRA

RERHSREERBNEERR -
The Group's current credit risk framework comprises the following AEENRITEERBERBE T
categories: Al
Category Description Basis for recognising expected credit losses (ECL)
8] s RRANGEEEENEE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any past-due amounts.  Trade receivables and amounts due from customers for
contract work: lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
BORWTEREREPENTIREN  FENELGE
BE-UREERERR
Other financial assets and other items: 12-month ECL
R REHFHMENERRERT BRHFE - EtemEEREMER  12EARBEERR
Doubtful Amount is more than 90 days past due for corporate/individual debtors and more Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
than 3 years past due for government debtors or there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
5 2/ BABBANTERSRENARENESANGERRRARIFHEY FEREREEHE - UARERERE
hRRREERREREEEM -
In default Amount is more than 1 year past due for corporate/individual debtors and more  Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
than 5 years past due for government debtors or there is evidence indicating the
asset is credit-impaired.
EN Nal/BABBANTEASHERI FRARERANERSERFHAE HEARNEEEE - $4EERE
BRILBEEAE -
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and the ~ Amount is written off
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery.
fiis# BEBETERARARENYERE L ASBTRAARTREEBH HHEEESR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

m 216

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(iv) Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk (continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets and
other items, as well as maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating

42. ¢MTR eHEBRREFETE ()

(c) EMBRREZRBARKRE (M)
(iv) fEEEmBE (#)

EHOEEER (5)
TREMAEMSBEERABIES
WEREENREEERRIRIES

grades: ME=EERRHO :
Gross Net
Internal credit ~ 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Note rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount
128 BEHEY
M ABEEFR RUGEESR FEESE  FRER RERE
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
3 1] ARBTRT ARWTRT AR%TR
2024 20245
Trade receivables B EYGE 13 Performing/Doubtful Lifetime ECL 5,652,354  (133,286) 5,519,068
RIF/ 5t FEHESREEER
Other receivables HivfelsioE 13 Performing/Doubtful 12-month/Lifetime ECL 388,678 (71,235) 317,443
2R/
RIt /R FEURSERER
Receivables under service RBETEERFET
concession arrangements WA 17 Performing 12-month ECL 21,942,145 - 21,942,145
RiF REREHEESE
Amounts due from customers for
contract work FEWEREAHTRER 18 Performing Lifetime ECL 53,591 - 53,591
RiF FEHRHEEFR
Long term receivables RHEYGE 26 Performing 12-month ECL 81,775 - 81,775
RiF REREREESE
Amounts due from associates A=Y E 0 19 Performing 12-month ECL 40,650 - 40,650
RiF REABBEEEE
Amounts due from joint venture ~ FEMAELEFAE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 11,000 - 11,000
RiF REABBEESE
(204,521)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(iv) Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

42. @MIA

ERMERREFEE (W)

(c) EMBRREZEBARKRE(HE)

(iv)

EEERE(R)
HHNEERR (8)

Gross Net
Internal credit ~ 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Note  rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount
12@R &Y
M ABEEFR RUGEESR FEESE  FRER RERE
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
5@ ARBTT ARBTRT AERTRT
2023 023
Trade receivables ZHEE 13 Performing/Doubtful Lifetime ECL 4,090,321 (11,152) 4,019,169
RIt/BR FEREHNEERR
Other receivables At Y 13 Performing/Doubtful 12-month/Lifetime ECL 464,854 (28,758) 436,096
RIF /5t 12188/
FENRSEEER
Receivables under service RBEHCERHEET 17 Performing 12-month ECL
concession arrangements BB 23,261,211 - 23261211
RiF REREHEESE
Amounts due from customers for ~ EREFAHTRR 18 Performing Lifetime ECL
contract work 75,889 - 75,889
RiF FRHRHEEER
Long term receivables KRR 26 Performing 12-month ECL 84,39 - 84,39
RIF REAREHEESE
Amounts due from associates il GA=UNSE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 23319 - 23319
RiF REAESEERS
Amounts due from joint venture A E(EFUR 19 Performing 12-month ECL 30,500 - 30,500
RiF REREHEESE
(99,910)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 42. &@®IR 2HERREFEE (i)
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(¢) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) EMRREEBSERBE (M)
(iv) Credit risk (continued) (iv) fEERR (&)
Exposure to credit risk (continued) AHNEERR (&)
Gross Net
Internal credit ~ 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Note  rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount
12 A8 FER
Mg ABEEFR RAOESER FEERE ERER FERE
Company RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
VNG| AR®TT AR®TT AERTRL
2024 024E
Other receivables Eth YR 13 Performing 12-month ECL 792 - 792
RiF REAEBHEEEE
Amount due from subsidiaries G EYNTE ] 19 Performing 12-month ECL 6,430,861 - 6,430,861
R REABBEEEE
2023 2023F
Other receivables Bt A 13 Performing 12-month ECL 1173 - 1173
RiF REABBEERE
Amount due from subsidiaries B ARFE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 171717 -
RiF REAEBHEEEE
Amounts due from joint venture  EWA B £R 19 Performing 12-month ECL 22,439 - 22,439
R REABBEEEE
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, REBERERARTABEREEERN
grossed up for any allowances for losses, represents the Group’s maximum CRHEEROEREALEENGESEE
exposure to credit risk without taking into account of the value of any B - W& R FTES TR R
collateral obtained. BI{E(E -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of cash flow as cash flows

from financing activities.

(d) HMREDFRELARHYIR

42. ¢MTR eHBRERRFTE ()

TERBEIAZERELSHTELARNE

#E ARRERIIFREY - REEDM
EXNABARERIARRAERELEE
BEREREXRANIIAREETHELNE

LRNEME -

Bank and other Lease Amount due to
borrowings liabilities non-controlling Interest
(Note 32) (Note 24)  shareholders payable Total
BITREMER HERR & £} S F B

(PHEE32) (PHEE24) BRRIE EfFR it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AER%TR AER%TR AER%TR AER%TR AER%TR

At 1 January 2023 #2023F1 A1H 19,147,539 42,435 134,344 111,475 19,435,793

Financing cashflows BERER 929,714 (11,124) (89,692) (769,761) 59,137
Non-cash changes HHELE

Dividend declared BEERRE - - 48,196 - 48,196

New leases HE - 10,080 - - 10,080

Finance costs recognised EHRRHEER - 2579 - 830,576 833,155

Acquisition of non-controlling

interests Wb S R - - 149,598 - 149,598

Exchange difference EHESE 181,546 (1,356) - (54,001) 126,189

At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31H 20,258,799 42,614 242 446 118,289 20,662,148

Financing cashflows BERER 2,191,541 (11,304) (85,389) (837,384) 1,257,464
Non-cash changes HHLE

Dividend declared BEEIRKE - - 59,010 - 59,010

New leases g - 28,640 - - 28,640

Disposal of leases HERE - (9,180) - - (9,180)

Finance costs recognised ERERNEER - 4592 - 773,887 778,479

Exchange difference EHEH (111,460) (3,361) - 9,392 (105,429)

At 31 December 2024 72024F12 A31H 22,338,880 52,001 216,067 64,184 22,671,132
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43.

220

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Except as detailed in the following tables below, the directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabilities that are
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements to approximate
their fair value, due to their short-term nature, that they are floating rate instruments
that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period, or
the discount rate used to amortise the instruments approximates the prevailing market
interest rates.

(i) Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

43. RERARMHLARE
BRTRAFAESN  ARBREERRAA MR
ARBRREBERAENEREEREREE
MEREEEAAABERE  REAABESE
B AERBREHRIEOREHROTHENEE
MEENFHNETE  FARBHEEH AN
RERERTHHMNERME -

(i) EMRELAAREDNREREERSELR
fAE

Valuation technique ~ Significant

Financial assets Fair value Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable input  Range
FIEHER EXTUER
SMEE NRARE NAREER EENANR BARE ]
2024 2023
2024% 235
Group RMB’000 RMB'000
358 ABBTE  ARETR
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BORREHARMRERRNEMEE
Unlisted equity security 13,400 13,400 Level 3 Market approach Discount for lack of 25%
marketability
FLmRAES E= k)5 Rz mER R
Financial assets at FVTPL
BORREHAREHERMEE
Listed equity security 3,555 3073 Level Quoted price in an Not applicable Not applicable
active market
EkAES E- RERTSRE AER TERm
Put option on unlisted equity security 6,506 6506  Level3 Market approach Discount for lack of 25%
marketability
EETRAEF DA e £=8 5 ez EnRtE

For unlisted equity securities, a significant increase/decrease in discount for lack
of marketability would result in a significantly lower/higher fair value.
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43. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

(ii) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis and whose carrying

43. RERARMOAME (W)

(i) FRERZEFHERULOAREFBAR
BFEELFAARENSEELEZEMR

amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value EREMARHAREE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount Value amount value
IRE{E [REE FEE NREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AREFT ARBTT
Financial assets EMEE
Receivables under service PRAHF T E TR T
concession arrangements® fEd A 20,739,599 22,007,453 21,410,273 22,740,832
Financial liabilities eMAR
Bank and other borrowings: RITREME
— Fixed rate borrowings® - ERERO (5,366,466) (5,542,463) (4,532,576) (4,584,566)
(@)  The fair values of receivables under service concession arrangements and bank and (a)

LRATEE RIS FEE R PR T RRR
BARBITREAMESORABEDER
ARBERRFE=S DABERRSHR
BBFABRBARRSRERTHELER
MRS - RE 2 EMBEBLIEM ORl
D) HBRAREEFERE TR (L) -

other borrowings as disclosed in the table above are classified under level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy and the fair values are estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows at prevailing interest rate or borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting
period. Any significant isolated increase (decrease) in the discount rate will result in
a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.

44. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN SFRS(I)S AND IFRS ACCOUNTING  44. (%ihnis BB R 35 85 &5 4E R ) 2 B P & ot 22 B

45.

STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS BOARD

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, there were no material
differences between the consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared under
SFRS(I)s and IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed that a final
dividend of $$0.011 per share be paid to shareholders. This dividend is subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Annual General Meeting and has not been included
as a liability in these financial statements. The total estimated dividend to be paid is
5$28.33 million (approximately RMB152.54 million).

45.

BEERMGMN(ERRBEEEN) GEL
kol

HZ2024F12 318 R2023F12 A3 BILERE -
R CHTANsE B BR B A 3RS 2 A1) R BB 2 51 &R
BEeRMmAO(EBRMERSEN) ST LR RS
MAEBGANERABEEAZE -

HEMEER
RERREZ  EZEZRRRENRAREER
0.011# 7T « LRBENBIRBEFAEG LMERR
e ARZEMBRRPLEFERBBIR -
KT B At B BB R2,8338 T (MARY
1.5254{87T) °
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
BRATEE

As At 7 March 2025
R2025%3 ATH

Number of Shares

RRiR& B

Number of Treasury Shares and Percentage
EFERHBERESL

Number of Subsidiary Holdings and Percentage
MEARBRYERESLL

Class of shares
B R %R

Voting rights

2,575,665,726
2,575,665,726

Nil
it

Nil
&

Ordinary Shares
EER

One vote per share

e L ——F4
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS HROE
NO. OF NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS % SHARES %
SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS HEBE 3 1T % RiA®E %
1-99 1-99 39 2.37 738 0.00
100 - 1,000 100 - 1,000 206 12.49 102,758 0.00
1,001 - 10,000 1,001 - 10,000 555 33.66 3,037,041 0.12
10,001 - 1,000,000 10,001 - 1,000,000 769 46.63 76,008,341 296
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 1,000,001 BA 80 4.85 2,496,426,848 96.92
TOTAL Wit 1,649 100.00 2,575,665,726 100.00
TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS ;[ N L
NO.  NAME NO. OF SHARES %
Fik &8 Bir®E %
1 S.I. TRIUMPH POWER LIMITED 709,589,551 2755
FEABERAR
2 THE HONGKONG AND SHANGHAI BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED 321,759,614 12.49
BB LBESRTERAR
3 UBS SECURITIES HONG KONG LTD 285,781,209 1110
UBS SECURITIES HONG KONG LTD
4 BOCISECURITIES LTD 244,040,217 947
FREREFERAF
5 S1INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED 165,418,475 6.42
LTEERERERRA
6  OCBC SECURITIES BROKERAGE (HK) LTD 116,167,900 451

- 2

ERRLEL (BR)BRAA

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH



NO. NAME NO. OF SHARES %

Fit &8 B E %

7 CGS INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES SINGAPORE PTE. LTD. 86,214,900 3.35
CGS INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES SINGAPORE PTE. LTD.

8 GUOYUAN SECURITIES BROKERAGE (HONG KONG) LIMITED 76,078,400 2.95
BT HER (BR) BRAR

9 CGS INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES HK LTD 42,459,000 1.65
FRRTESAEERAA

10 CHINA GALAXY INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES (HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED 34,365,000 1.33
FRIRTEIRES (B#) BRAA

1 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 34,071,953 1.32
DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

12 STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (HONG KONG) LIMITED 25,646,300 1.00
BITIRTT (BB) AR AR

13 CITIBANK N.A. 25,268,452 0.98
TEIEIRTT

14 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 24,167,444 0.94
CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD

15 RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED 23,943,102 0.93
RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED

16 BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED 20,074,000 0.78
RERTT(BE) BRAF

17 INTERACTIVE BROKERS HONG KONG LIMITED 15,520,328 0.60
BERSBBRBERDA

18 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 12,442,957 0.48
PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD

19 CITIC SECURITIES BROKERAGE (HK) LTD 11,922,000 0.46
Pl (BE) BRAA

20 HSBC BROKING SECURITIES (HONG KONG) LIMITED 11,160,000 0.43
ELRES (FE) BRAT
TOTAL
#at 2,286,090,802 88.74
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
G RE

As At 7 March 2025

202543 A7H
Substantial Shareholders as at 7 March 2025 R202553ATAMEERRK
(As recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders) (MEERREMHAER)
Direct Deemed
B RE
Number of Number of
Shares % Shares %
Bin&E % B8 e %
S.I. Triumph Power Limited (‘Triumph”)® FENBERAR (HE) O 986,929,551 38.32 - -
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII")" LTEEEERERAR ([ LEER]O 165,418,475 6.42 986,929,551 38.32
SIHL Treasury Limited!" LEEXMBERBRLAR 116,137,900 451 - -
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL")" PEBEERERAR ([ LERE])O - - 1,268,485,926 49.25
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited" LEREZERAERARO - - 1,268,485,926 49.25
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited™  Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited - - 1,268,485,926 49.25
SIIC Trading Company Limited'" LBEEBSERAR0 22,358,000 0.87 - -
Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited ~ F/8E¥ (£8) R A ((LE)HO
(“stic”)m = - 1,290,843,926 50.12
China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection FEIETREIRIR (B8 REBR
(Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited (‘CECEPHK")® AE] ([hEnge (&))@ 223,712,917 8.69 - -
China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection PR EIRREEERAA
Group (‘CECEP")® [hEEREERR ) - - 223712917 8.69
Value Partners Limited (‘VPL")® BEASCEENR ([ER])6 7,524,940 0.29 - -
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited (‘VPLHK")® REAESCEEEAERLA
((EBEE]C 224,075,980 8.70 7,524,940 0.29
Value Partners Group Limited (‘VPGL")® ERSEERAR ((REKME])O - - 231,600,920 8.99
Cheah Capital Management Limited® Cheah Capital Management Limited® - - 231,600,920 8.99
Cheah Company Limited® Cheah Company Limited® - - 231,600,920 8.99
BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Ltd as trustee of BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Ltd
The C H Cheah Family Trust® (EBHBEBREETNTTA)G = = 231,600,920 8.99
BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited® BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee
Company Limited® = = 231,600,920 8.99
Cheah Cheng Hye® HEEe - - 231,600,920 8.99
To Hau Yin® HI5EE = = 231,600,920 8.99
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Notes:

(1) Each of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited, which is controlled by
the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government (through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIIC Capital (B.V.l.) Limited, SIIC Trading Company
Limited, Shanghai Industrial Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Company Limited and SIC CM
Development Limited, holds more than 20% of the issued and paid-up share capital of SIHL,
which owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of S, which in turn owns all the issued and
paid-up share capital of Triumph. In addition, SIHL owns all the issued and paid-up share capital
of SIHL Treasury Limited. As such, Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited,
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIHL and SlI are deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Triumph and SIHL Treasury Limited (excluding SlI).

Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is directly interested in approximately 47.77% of the
total issued share capital of SIHL and is indirectly interested in approximately 7.36% of the total
issued share capital of SIHL through its wholly-owned subsidiary SIIC Capital (B.V.l.) Limited.
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited is directly interested in 100% of the
total issued share capital of Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited. In addition, SIIC is interested
in approximately 63% of the total issued share capital of SIHL through its directly and indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Therefore, each of SIIC, Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury
Company Limited and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in a total
of 1,290,843,926 Shares by virtue of their interests in SIHL.

(2)  CECEPHK is deemed interested in the shares held through account of BOCI Securities Limited
in CCASS Depository. BOCI Securities Limited is the agency of CECEPHK. CECEP is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by CECEPHK as CECEP owns the entire issued share capital of
CECEPHK.

(3)  VPLis a fund manager deemed to be interested in the Shares by reason of Shares held directly by
the funds under its management. CCML is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 21.82%
ownership in VPGL. VPGL is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in
VPLHK. VPLHK is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in VPL. CCL
is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in CCML. BNP Paribas Jersey
Nominee Company Limited holds the shares in CCL as nominee for BNP Paribas Jersey Trust
Corporation Limited. Cheah Cheng Hye is deemed to be interested in the Shares in his capacity as
the founder of a discretionary trust (“The C H Cheah Family Trust") with BNP Paribas Jersey Trust
Corporation Limited as the Trustee. To Hau Yin is deemed to be interested in the Shares in her
capacity as the beneficiary of The C H Cheah Family Trust.

SHAREHOLDINGS HELD BY THE PUBLIC

Based on the information available to the Company as at 7 March 2025, 32.16% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company are held by the public. Accordingly, the Company
had complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and Rule 8.08 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

st

(1) LEREZ(EE)ERAR (HEEHARRAERE2E
KB (BN LR EERER AR - SIIC Capital (B.V.1.)
Limited - LEEXBSBERAR - LEEESRIER(F
B)ERRAK FEXESHARERERAR) 21 &
BEELEERZ20% A EEBTREARRA - FBER
BELEER2HERIRARKRA  MEBRERES
Nz EBERTRARRAE - o LEERES LS
EENKERBRARAZZHERETRARRA - Iﬁt
FEEX(EE)ERAR - LEREZRERA
%Wﬁ&t?%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%&ﬂaiﬁﬂ‘% f%ﬂﬁ
DA (TRELEER) BEZRNPHREES

FEREERERARERES LEERERITRAE
BOATTT% R s - WRRE2EMEBAFSIC Capital
(B.V.I.) Limited @ # %A FEERBETRALEL
7.36%H#E25 ° Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury
Company LimitedE#%#AE LEREERERAREET
WRABE100% Mz o Wit FEBBEERREES
BRANMBAREE LEEREBITRABIELNGI%
##E25 - Itk - F& - Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited & E/8R B ER A AIEEH
WER EERRAERS MR ARA $£1,290,843,926 %
RipH A ER o

2)  PHERE (BE) BREAREATRERESERAANES
RPREEARESFERSANRN T EEES - PR
BEREFERARAATEE (FE) RER - Al E

R RRER T (FE) NE2HERTRA - gHE
ERERRBARMEN P ETRE (B8 AR P AR

() DERHEEBEEASHMERZERN W%E%EVEW%”EP%
BHEZNESEEA - CCMLEBNTIREE 221.82%%
BREMBEGERRNTHEER - BREEEANEEER
BZ100% EEEMBRERRDPEG#R - BBEES
BRANEE2100% EEEMBRERRDPES#E
CCLEBMRCCMLZ100% BB MR EIERBR DT HES
125 ° BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited &1
ABNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited A3 A
B CCLAR G - #E/8EE ABNP Paribas Jersey Trust
Corporation Limited (fE&XFTA) M—BEBEES ([H#3
BREET]) MEB AT BERERRD P #EER - 19
BERERHBE IR G EANE B R m B RIERRN P&
B o

DREGH

BEBEARRIN2025F3ATHNAFER  RARFBELLD
AR BITERRA32.16% At - ARRZETH N
(LHFM)FETBHER(BEBERXIMNERARES L
THRA) F8.08 4% -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RREER

Headquarters, Registered Office and Principal Place of Business in
Singapore

One Temasek Avenue

#37-02 Millenia Tower

Singapore 039192

Headquarters and Principal Place of Business in China
33F Shanghai Golden Plaza

No. 98 Middle Huaihai Road

Huangpu District

Shanghai 200021

PRC

Place of Business in Hong Kong Registered under Part 16 of the
Companies Ordinance

Unit 1307A, 13/F

Two Harbourfront

22 Tak Fung Street

Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Company’s Website
www.siicenv.com

Board of Directors

Executive Director

Mr. Zhou Yuding (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Ji Guanglin

Mr. Wang Xiwang

Mr. Yang Xing

Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming
Mr. An Hongjun
Mr. Zhong Ming

Executive Committee

Mr. Zhou Yuding (Chairman)
Mr. Ji Guanglin
Mr. Wang Xiwang

Audit Committee

Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman)
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming
Mr. Zhong Ming
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Nominating Committee

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming (Chairlady)
Mr. Zhong Ming

Mr. An Hongjun

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zhong Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Yuding

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming

Mr. An Hongjun

Risk and Investment Management Committee

Mr. Ji Guanglin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Yuding
Mr. Wang Xiwang
Mr. Yang Anyuan
Ms. Xu Xiaoging

Joint Company Secretaries
Mr. Lee Wei Hsiung (ACS, ACG)
In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd.
36 Robinson Road

#20-01 City House

Singapore 068877

Mr. Man Yun Wah (ACG, HKACG)
In.Corp Corporate Services (HK) Limited
Unit 1307A, 13/F

Two Harbourfront

22 Tak Fung Street

Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Legal Advisers
As to Singapore law:

ADTLaw LLC (in formal law alliance with Ashurst LLP)

12 Marina Boulevard
#24-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

As to Hong Kong law:
Ashurst Hong Kong
43/F, Jardine House
No. 1 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong

REZRE
ARSEL (/)
BHAE
TAFERE

FHEES
e X e ()
BFRkE
ERSE L
THELE

BRERREEZRE

REMLE (/)
BATREE
IFELE
BRRLE
rERTL

BREOFRE
FERUERTEACS, ACG)
EEPERBERAR
36 Robinson Road
#20-01 City House
Singapore 068877

XiEE %% (ACG, HKACG)
EROERY (B5) BRAA
VIR AR

EL22%%

ARG

131 1307A=

3 ]

g ER

ADTLaw LLC (E2Ashurst LLPIESERCERE )
12 Marina Boulevard

#24-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

BRER:
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BETR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RRIER

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Singapore:

In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd.

36 Robinson Road

#20-01 City House

Singapore 068877

Hong Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Investor Relation

Strategic Financial Relations (China) Limited
24/F, Admiralty Centre |

18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong
sprg-siic@sprg.com.hk

Auditor
Ms. Seah Gek Choo

(appointed since the financial year ending 31 December 2024)

Deloitte & Touche LLP
6 Shenton Way, #33-00
OUE Downtown 2
Singapore 068809

Principal Bankers

DBS Bank

0CBC

Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.
Company Registration No. 200210042R

One Temasek Avenue, #3702 Millenia Tower
Singapore 039192

Tel: (65) 6538 2598

Fax: [65) 65382896

www.siicenv.com

Paper | Supporting responsible forestry
AR | 3 AR
FSC® C021898
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